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BZ _2EE- - B=+—8IL5F For the year ended 31 Dacember 2006
—REXRF —¥THE (BEF)® —EPOEFE (&)
BYERT EREBT AETRT
2006 2005 (Restated)® 2004 (Restated)®
' HK$ million HKS million HKS mitlion
=% 65,437 53,891 47,078
Turnover
B AT R 3,969 3,175 2,056
Profit before taxation
A BRG] 2,776 2,220 1,480
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
EREREF (BET) $1.19 $1.02 $0.70
Basic earnings per share’ (HK$)
BRES (B¥T)
Dividend per share (HK$)
by $0.14 $0.13 $0.11
Interim
EX:4 $0.26 $0.25 $0.16
Final
$0.40 $0.38 $0.27
f R E $1.00 — —
Special interim
RERRAE it 2 5 itGH RoPEmME

t=B=+—-8 +ZAZ+-8 @) +ZAZH—8 (BN
As at 31 December Asg at 31 December As at 31 December

2006 2005 (Restated)’ 2004 (Restated)®
HKS million HKS$ million HK$ million
' AOEAHEEEERS 19,141 18,196 15,125
Equity attriputable to shareholders of the Company
S HERRAE 2 5,824 4,747 4,811
Minority interests
s 24,965 22,943 19,936
Total equity
b B E X 1,781 3,283 4,925
Consotidated net borrowings
BTk 2 7.1% 14.3% 24.7%
Gearing ratio?
mEt R 1.08 $.12 1.27
Current ratio
BREEFE : REE (B%¥T) $8.12 $8.15 $7.12
Net assets per share: book valug {HK$)
Kt
Notes

1. BREEERHGEREAEGERIHEAD T ITREG R TN -
Basic earnings per share have been cafcuiated by dividing the profit atiributable to sharcholders by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the yoar.

2. ARHIHESBLEHRBGBRILH -
Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidatad net borrowings to total equity.

3 XEEH—FENF— A BENOBRBEN AN ON RREX AL G 0L « HOHBRERIERRLLE - _CFTOER " CTEFONETHRBTOFEN -

B BN B RO ER S ENF A RR R A+ A+ B OB E S CAF A+ A=+ — AR _FFTEF+ A= F—HULFEDN
AL - -
The Group has changed its accounting poiicy on jointly controlled entities to proportionate consolidation for the financial perod commencing from 1 January 20086,
The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and certain 2004 and 2005 comparative figures are restated accordingly, However, the change in accounting
policy would not have any impact on the consoldated net assets as at 37 December 2004 and 31 December 2005 and the consolidated net profit for the year ended
31 December 2004 and 31 December 2005.

SWUBIUBI [BIoUBULY 25 Yk 6
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Financial Highlights
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SEBIRERE - THIE - TENBHEATRN DR

Analysis of Turnover and EBITDA'

BE-_FFAFTA=+—HLLFE Forihe year ended 31 December 2006

BEREKZBER

Turnover by segment

38% 38%

1%

EEAMZRMFE - BIE - i RMEFHTEN
EBITDA by segment

m ¥ — %& R
Retail Beverage fFood Processing and Distribution
= LMz m THEEHEREH = BE RIS
Investment Property Petroleum and Related Products Distribution Investments and Others

2 FPHIRSR 2 E China Resources Enterprise, Limited * Annual Report 2006 48




HE"ERAFT-A=+—8ILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2006

ZEFRE
IRERE (=F7))?
ENTER HEEEET i)
2006 2005 Increased/
{Reslated)®  (Decreased)
EREWmZBER Turnover by segment HK$ million HK$ million %
220 7 Core Businesses
24 Retail 20,418 16,202 26.0%
fRan Beverage 9,455 6,855 37.9%
ARNIEEHE Food Processing and Distribution 6,092 5,624 B8.3%
X5} 3 Texiile 4,453 4,291 3.8%
R Investment Property 349 299 16.7%
N1 Subtotal 40,767 33,271 22.5%
Hb#R Other Businesses
A EMEREHE Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 25,100 20,847 20.4%
BE R HEEER Investments and Others — — —
Sy Subtotal 25,100 20,847 20.4%
65,867 54,118 N.7%
HEREBRMZES Elimination of inter-segment transactions (430) (227) 89.4%
am Totat 65,437 53,891 21.4%
EEEFBZRNNE - BIR -
FERBHRT EBITDA by segment
K Core Businesses
T Retail 1,044 756 38.1%
o éh Beverage 1,306 1,056 23.7%
REGIIEEH Food Processing and Distribution 703 630 11.6%
ESTE Textie 346 343 0.9%
B Investment Proparty 783 815 (3.9%)
At Subtotal 4,182 3.600 16.2%
p=gid-7. 4 Other Businesses
Hia R AREREH Petroleun and Related Products Distribution 1,273 961 32.5%
BALRR bR Investments and Others® 253 27¢ (9.3%)
Aot Subtotal 1,526 1,240 23.1%
ng Total 5,708 4,840 17.9%
At -
Notes

1. EBITDABFNHE - BIH - HERBHAFIEF -
EBITOA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amortization.

2 XMW — QA FE— A — OEH B B R AT IR O 5 B0 F B PIS GLF - O3 REE FRMMHESIF - —FFAFHE TR FYTEHS -
M FROHERTONER B RE+ A=+ — At 8 BEFER R E QA F A= — A FRAT ST -
The Group has changed its accounting policy on jointly controlled entities to proportionate consolidation for the financial period commencing from 1 January
2006. The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and certain 2005 comparative figures are restated accordingly. However, the change in
accounting policy would not have any impact on the consolidated net assets as at 31 December 2005 and the consolidated net profit for the year ended
31 December 2005.

3. RERHURFEIEELERTL aJLUERRI BB
Invastments and Others include share of net result of associates less corporate overheads.

#RLIRER DT China Resources Enterprise, Limited « Annual Report 2006 £ 3
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Analysis of Profit Attributable to Shareholders

HE-_TTNFTA=+-—BLLFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2006

ERERZRERGER

Profit attributable to shareholders by segment

EEEBMRARYEAERHY E EEEORE R RE 2 IR
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of investment property revaluation and major disposal of
non-core assets/investments by segment

¥ K& RdR A0 1 R A 8 e
- Retail - Baverage - Food Processing and Distribution - Textile

[ wRmE ] R EANEREHE - BRARHMER
Investiment Property Patro'aum and Related Products Distribution Invastments and Others

4 BEMAIZER 25 China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 4




BE-RSSF+-A=+—BL%E Forthe year ended 34 December 2006

—RRRE ok : 3 -5 g3
BYERT EMEHT Bmn/ES)
Increased/
2006 2005 {Decreased)
ERER R TR Profit attributable to shareholders by segment HKS$ million HK$ million %
B Core Businesses
T Retail 217 107 102.8%
X an Beverage 174 136 27.9%
BRI LREH Food Processing and Distribution 435 414 5.1%
Eif ] Textile 61 81 {24.7%)
EEDE Investment Propenty 647 690 {6.2%)
PR Subtotal 1,534 1,428 7.4%
pogifid g Other Businesses
G EEMEm R Petroleumn and Related Products Distribution 1,002 624 60.6%
BARHMER investments and Others 421 356 18.3%
ot Subtotal 1,423 980 45.2%
2,957 2,408 22.8%
DL ENEEERA Net corporate interest and expenses (181) (188) (3.7%)
ey Total 2,776 2,220 25.0%
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding
SEEBMBREYHERGER  the effect of investment property revaluation
S B EE, 2% and major disposal of nen-core assets/
QXREEEETEF investments by segment
FZRY ¥, 3 Core Busingsses
T Retalil 203 90 125.6%
-4 Beverage 174 136 27.0%
ARMTEEH Food Processing and Distribution ' 435 355 22.5%
i Textile 59 78 (24.4%)
BARYE? Investment Property? 215 182 18.1%
hat Subtotat 1,086 841 29.1%
Ht%H Other Businesses
Bt AR BB Petroleurn and Related Products Distribution® 519 411 26.3%
BARRMER Investments and Others 421 356 18.3%
i Subtotal 940 767 22.6%
2,026 1,608 26.0%
AERRHEFEARRA Net corporate interest and expenses {181) {188) (3.7%)
a%s Total 1,845 1,420 29.9%
Az -
Notes

1. RBNIRBEHEFS YD FRNTRIEL QR L 553 FIREN 59,000,000
Nat gain on disposal of an associated company amounting to approximately HK$59 mitlion has been excluded in the 2005 results of the Food Processing and
Distribution division.

2 BREFpSMFORAT 015250 RGN 432,000,000 (= FREE : BY 5080000007 ) siR 5 EREGERE O E TG EURATFH
Net valuation surplus and disposal gains of certain non-core investment properties with an aggregate amount of HK§432 million (2005: HK$508 million) have
been excluded in the results of the Investment Property division.

3 BRI SAE R R T E T S TS H A EN 483,000,000 7T (S EFEE [ B 213,000,000 1l O — TR AT B PR EE 4 o
Net gain on disposal of an investment and net valuation surplus with an aggregrate amount of HK$483 mitlion (2005: HK$213 millon) have been excluded in the
rasults of the Petroleum and Related Products Distribution division,

M2 F R Q8 China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 8 5
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Company Profile

-

ERAXERAE ([EHAR]) SBEABERZHM LTHAR - #
BEOEPEAREREEAHERE - MEBUK AT BERKARIEL
HERERA/ES - REBULEE  FEFMEEMSFZARBESE - L
HRETE R SRoMHBNREOEBNEEA  BUTISEE
ff - FEHBEBERCELE LERBIFEBRME  HbhREm - &
mBHBERATERHHERN -  EeLAEENEREERER
FHEE -

China Resources Enterprise, Limited (CRE) is a listed company
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with business emphasis on
the consumer sector of the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong. Our
mission is to become the largest consumer company in China. To
achieve this, the Group has already established leading presence in
our business domains, in particular, the four core businesses namely
retail, food, beverage and textile. There are operational synergies
among these consumer-related businesses. Notably, food, beverage
as well as textile form part of the supply chain for the retail business,

and they grow together driving the Group's overall development.

6 IEMAIMEM 2 S China Resources Enterprise, Limited « Annual Report 2006 15
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Corporate Structure

e EFR AR

ChinaliesourcesiEnterpriseYliimited)

BmMI
PLE ]
g8 R& Food ik
Retail Beverage Processing Textile
and
Distribution
RN
Focdstuff
BEMIE RN Distribution
Supermarket
PEMENEt | | emmicws - i) B A
and Logistics _ ERTE o
AROE Spinning and
{51%) HEAR Weaving
iR HEB% 4 China Food Processing
k] and Stock
) Resources . RR
Brand-fashion Raising
o Snow Garment
Distribution Breweries
Limited B - Bk Hitr
bV EEIE H
RETAR (51%) &_ Others
Other Retail Abattoir
Stores Operation,
Transportation
and Others
Kt -
Note

BEME
Investment
Property

REwE
investment
Properties

AmEHEE
EmEH
Petroleum
and Related
Products
Distribution

TREEZ
RibER e
Petroleum
Operation in
Hong Kong Now;

BER
Hit 218
Investments
and Others

HIT
Investments
Limited
(10%)

Hutchison
Ports Yantian
Investments
Limited
{10%)

P ESAFEA - KEEYRHECRESHTRRBITILEN - EXERRERINTRERBATRYE BT OERTEAGHRENEREEATNE -
On 14 March 2007, the Group entered inta a framework agreement regarding tha disposal of its petroleum operation in Hong Kong. If the Group eventually succeeds
in completing the disposal considerad under the framework agreement, it will no Jonger have any interest in the petrofeurn and related products distribution business.

HRARHR A T China Resources Enterprise, Limited « Annual Report 2006 £ 7




—_EE /\EE‘Q%%EQ
Milestones in 2006

s RN RMNEREEER QS « BN WERHOFEHRAEHES
B5% 1Bt RAMEEERYEN - @ EHREARiGE -
B RARE R R - A five-year revolving credit/term
The acquisition of an 85% j-a/\/‘ . syndicated loan facility agreement

interest in Quanzhou Qingyuan of HK$3 bilion was signed.

Brewery Company Limited,

being the first brewery

purchased in Fujian Provincs,

was completed.

RIS ESR AT -
The acquisition of Zhejiang Yinyan
Brewery Company Limited
TR EESHTETH® \W @ was completed.
EALES
A global roadshow highlighting

our supermarket and beverage [ \ ?’Y .

businesses was conducted.

s BMENRERMNEESERER

CHAM

BE - GOLD
Our first greenfield trewery, KA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE

located in Dongguan,
cE(DNBEIEREBRMIER

ERTEAXTELEE KA ITHBFSL
MHRE-ATEHE -

The Group was selected as the
largest retail organization for
China in Retail Asia Pacific Top
500 Awards organized by Retail
Asia Publishing.

commenced its operation.

8 EMAIMER LS China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Reporl 2008 438
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s E(BUM BB HETNEEFAT S REAHEPEIEE - __{, @
The Group was ranked overall number one in a corporate

governance survey published by Euromoney on global O (/'r‘
emerging markets. '

CHFANFANMFRAARI—FTEAE

BN EE] - _{, . @
The Board was named an Awardee

for the “Directors Of The Year Awards N 9/\/

2006" organized by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

cHETARMBAZLLEREIREFARE

BECIFACHBARBENA - - 19 81 & 5,300,000 7 - MERREH
The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. B2 BRI

Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon were appointed With a beer sales volume of 5.3 million
Board members, increasing the number of kiloliters, our beverage business became
Independent Non-Executive Director to six. the largest brewer on the mainland.

e EHEETHTEARRCIBHERNETER
Wy TRMEN—BAREHIINEL SR
AT -

The disposal of our entire interests in piped
gas and chemical distribution businesses in
China was completed and a special dividend
of HK$1 per share was paid in the following
month.

HMAR M 2 8 China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 £8 9
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Letter to Investors

e 94 3 [é?mmihm

Rieh 5 0O0n2idal Pl ntyadw -
Bh@Rr1le S b0 ENM MEYW 24
BIh iRkl s&neine 438
tE R AT REYASE  UBTHEBMYN
& BIBREEHMOE -S54 4 LR LG
AT MEIRORRE RSB LLOEY
T AERMEE A4 E50% -

H -5 KM By ot lehi
w1 EBIBTAIIRhonkAdd 248
| A BREHELENAEE(LINBRIOBY YL
Ml s c2Adrdunputan Bl ady
Bpdhw s iR NL o e EE B
F#REATSLH46(% B8 -~ A5 (FEME
)M&w%@va%&ﬁﬁtﬁkm%a

'°W% IR
Bk B R B

EEH KA LBOCEE % ARAAHRGATIwEd o 42 54448
$AREEY Av M3 iwedn (Ml E) sk e4e T
Iy AHI A wBESFTALELIBFTAR [k A F0d
AR SN UL R FAVE - SR AETE I WER |

it [A2r SR LAF9ATFC ?JWﬁﬁ%&*ﬂﬂh@iii
Bo %5 2588 (EMEE) & M%ﬁz$@? KEBRECE ¥%%
IBUBEIUESBRLET - - 2oL s r08% - %%ﬁt%%ﬁ
?&ﬂ*%@%?i&&ﬁ&%@%ﬁﬁwﬁﬂT'ﬁﬂ%@$%1ﬁ°




In my letter to you last year, | described our business was a tree of energy and life, and it
was my belief that our best days were ahead. | am extremely pleased to report that 2006
was a year of significant accomplishment. Once again, we posted record financial results,
further increasing our turniover and earnings. In particular, there was strong underlying
profit growth of 307 led by the core consumer-related businesses, including retail, beverage
and food.

On the other hand, we realized considerable shareholder value from the disposal of the piped
gas and chemical distribution businesses in the Chinese Mainiand and had returned over
B0% of the proceeds by way of a special dividend payment of HK$1 per share. Including this
special dividend, we were able to return a record of HK$1.4 per share, or about HK$3.3 billion,
to you. Qur share price also rose 61% in 2006 and reached its highest level since 1998, the
year after the outbreak of the Asian financial crisis. It outperformed the Hang Seng Index
by 20%.

Our dedication to corporate governance is gaining recognition from the investment
community. Among the many prestigious accolades we received last year, it is noteworthy
that we were ranked overall number one in a corporate governance survey published by
Euromoney on global emerging markete. Our Board was also awarded the “Directors Of
The Year Awards 2006 organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. We are highly
dedicated to acting in shareholders' best interest.

We have made significant strides towards our goal "to become the largest consumer
company in China”. Last year, we were named the largest retall organization for China by
Retail Asia, and our brewery business also became the largest on the mainland in terms
of sales volume. These were the results of many years of hardworking. in spite of highly
competitive consumer markets, CRE is committed to delivering excellence through concerted
efforts of a team of talent.

Song Lin
Chairman

4 April 2007
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Chairman’s Statement
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Final Results

With the flourishing econromy in the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong,
reinforcad by the Group's parallel efforts to expand core consumer businesses
and realize the value of non-core assets, the Group reported another record year
in 2006. Consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 December 2006 rose 21%
over 2005 to a new high of HK$65,437 million. Profit attributable to shareholders
was HK$2,776 million, a 25% increase from the previous year, the highest it has
been since our listing. Earnings per share, on a weighted average basis, was
HK$1.19 comparad to HK$1.02 in 2005.

Excluding the after-tax effect of revaluation of investment properties and major
disposals, which led to aggregate gains of HK$931 million in 2006 and HKE$800
million in 2005, the Group’s underlying consolidated profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders would have increased by 30% for the year ended
31 December 2006. There was strong organic growth across most of our
operations.

Dividends

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.26 per share for 2006 {(2005:
HK$0.25 per share) payable on or about 15 June 2007 to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 28 May 2007.
Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.14 per share and the special dividend
of HK$1 per share paid in December 2006 in respect of the disposal of the
Group's piped gas and chemical distribution businesses, the total distribution
for 2006 will amount to HK$1.4 per share {2005: HK$0.38 per share). This
represents a 268% increase over 2005.

Closure of Register

The Register of Members will be closed from 28 May 2007 to 31 May 2007,
both days inclusive. In order 1o be eligible for the final dividend, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the refevant share certificates must be lodged
with the share registrars of the Company, Standard Registrars Limited of 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 25 May 2007,

Strategy Implementation

Corporate Strategy

With an objective of becoming the largest consumer company in China, the
Group has been investing in the core consumer businesses to enhance market
position, improve competitiveness and develop platform for future growth. For
the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group incurred nearly HK$4 billion on
capital expenditure, with a majority on beverage and retail businesses. Major
acquisitions during the year included the five breweries in Fujian Province,

12 HPEIR AR £ T China Resources Enterprise, Limited s Annual Report 2006 £
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Zhejiang Province, Anhui Province, Shanxi Province and the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region. In addition, there were investments in the greenfield
breweries under construction and existing breweries under renovation for
capacity upgrade. The capital expenditure on our supermarket operation last
year was mainly for new store opening and purchase of store properiies. A
total of 122 supermarket stores were opened and 25 supermarket stores were
acquired during the year.

Concurrently, the Group has been divesting businesses or assets which are
cutside our core portfolio or which lacked critical mass. In 2006, our entire
interests in piped gas and chemical distribution businesses in the Chinese
Mainlang were sold to China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, the
Company's immediate holding company, for HK$2,780 million. In view of our low
gearing at the time of disposal, the Group returned over 80% of the proceeds to
shareholders by way of a special dividend.

The Group is also making satisfactory progress in the implementation of our
refail-fed distribution strategy. The Group’s food, beverage and textile operations
have started to form part of the supply chain for our supermarket business. in
particular, the food operation, which has a long history of supplying fresh meat,
vegetables, rice and other food products to our supermarkets in Hong Kong, is
currently one of their largest suppliers. Their cooperation has recently extended
to Guangdong and Zhejiang provinces. “SNOW", our national brand for beer, is
also sold extensively in our mainland supermarkets. Our property division, which
is very experienced in operating the Group’s retail properties in Hong Kong, will
develop shopping malls in the Chinese Mainland, with our supermarket stores as
anchor tenants.

The Group has also been accelerating its investments in the Chinese Mainland.
For the year under review, about 59.3% of turnover and 41.4% of profit before
tax was from the mainland, compared with 55.9% and 40.6% respectively in the
year ended 31 December 2005.
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Business Strategy

The mainland consumer market is highly fragmented with low efficiency while
competition is focused on pricing. In addition, there is considerable dissimilarity
in the economics, demographics and customer preference of each province
and municipality. The Group will analyze in detail the targeted district before
entry. Once decided to enter, it will adopt a district dominance strategy in
expansion so that economias of scale can be achieved. Both acquisitive and
organic growth will be pursued depending on the nature of the business and
market opportunities. For acquisitions, the Group has a strong cost discipline
while benefits against alternative options are always thoroughly reviewed. Apart
from building scale, a culture on cost efficiency in daily operation, looking for
concurrent cost control and productivity enhancement, has been promulgated
internally to deliver shareholder value.

The Group puts heavy emphasis on branding strategy to differentiate itself
from competitors. Our brewery operation has a national branding strategy for
"SNOW" complemented by the district and local brands. “SNOW” targets the
younger generation, and the brand has been associated with “life's progression”.
In 2008, the brand was marketed as “the official partner of beer-lovers 128
B EM LIS ", On the other hand, our supermarket operation is
developing its image as a distinguished retailing chain via enhanced service and
store format innovation. Its new format, “Olé”, a high-end international food hall
targeting upscale consumers, has positively received tremendous response in
Shenzhen and Beijing. The “Ng Fung” brand of high quality fresh meat has been
well established by our food business. It has recently launched more general
food products under this brand which can be broadly classified into eight
categories of rice, rice noodles, fruits, wine, eggs, frozen food, canned food and
preserved meat.

Other business strategies have also been implemented at different levels. The
hypermarket of cur supermarket operation has adopted a trade up strategy by
improving its merchandise mix and layout. More fashionable apparel products
are introduced, and the proportion of seif-operated counters is rising, especially
in the fresh food and soft line sections. Our beverage business has been
reforming its distribution channel to exercise better control over distributors and
enhance supply chain efficiency. Cur food distribution business is exploiting
the mainland fresh meat market for growth with two projects in Shanghai
and Shenzhen already in operation. Our textile business focuses on the niche
products in production, including MAKQ yarnsg, denim casual wears and nylon
iextured yarns. The proportion of high-end products has increased following its
technology upgrade program.

Operating Environment

The mainland consumer market is undergoing rapid development but still
very fragmented. Retail sales in the Chinese Mainland grew 13.7% to about
RMB7.641 billion in 2008 with continuous market consolidation. According to
the Ministry of Commerce, sales of the top 100 retailers increased by 25% to
RMB855 billion and constituted approximately 11.2% of total retail sales.
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Growth of the mainland brewery market accelerated last year with total
production volume increased by an estimated 14.7%, compared to 10.4%
in 2005, to 35.2 million kiloliters. In 2008, the Group’s brewery operation
enjoyed a market share of about 15% whereas the top three players accounted
for approximately 38% of the market, compared with 36% in 2005 and 19%
in 2000.

In 2006, the production of cotton yarns and fabrics in the Chinese Mainland
increased by 22% and 20% over the previcus year respectively. Qur focus on
technology upgrade and rationalizing products with the intention to produce
more upmarket products remains unchanged. Quality high-end products are
graduaily replacing low-end mass products in our product mix. During this
adjustment process, our yarns and fabrics production decreased by 1.8% and
6.9% respectively over 2005.

As disposable incomes rise and living standards improve, the proportion of
household expenditure on food will increase. There has been a stable growth
in the maintand pork industry, the major food of Chinese, with an increase of
approximately 4% in consumption last year. Meat consumption per capita in
China, however, is still low on international scale.

The Hong Kong economy further improved last year. Retail sales increased by
7.3% alongside rising domestic consumer confidence and buoyant tourism.
Supermarket sales and department store sales increased by 4.2% and 8.1%
respectively in 2006 over the previous year. For fresh meat consumption,
imported and locally produced live pigs and cattle amounted to about 1,988,100
heads and 46,500 heads respectively in 2006. This represents a decline of 3%
and 4% respectively when compared to 2005. Import of chilled pork from the
Chinese Mainland was allowed in August 2006 but this marginally impacted on
the fresh meat consumption.

Corporate Governance

The Board strongly believes in upholding the highest ethical standards in the
course of conducting its business. It is well aware that corporate governance
embodies a discipline that builds trust, in the absence of which the Group can
hardly achieve economic success.

The Board recognizes that having acquired the listing status, the Group's
shareholders and other stakeholders would understandably want to know
its practices, systems, controls, standards and values. Transparency and
information disclosure are central to well-informed investment decisions and
minority shareholders; it follows that they are also the key components of the
Group’s corporate governance framework, Since November 2002, the Group
has been producing quarterly financial and operational review on a voluntary
basis. It is the first and also the only conglomerate company among ihe
constituent stocks in the Hang Seng Index to initiate such a move, well before
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange made it a recommended best practice for main
board listed issuers.

The Company's Corporaie Governance Practice Manual has laid down the

Board's objective 10 increase the proportion of Independent Nan-Executive
Directors to at least one-third over time. We are glad to see that this was fulfilled
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during the year under review. The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu
Kwing Chue, Gordon joined the Board as Independent Non-Executive Directors
in November last year; and after their appointment, the Board consists of six
Independent Non-Exgcutive Directors out of a iotal of 17 members.

The Group has a proven track record of enforcing good corporate governance
practices. Its efforts to implement a sound and eifective corporate governance
framework have been well received by the investment community, and the
following accolades attest to the recognition gained by the Group in 2006:

* it was ranked overall number one in the 2006 Euromoney “Best Corporate
Governance” survey on global emerging markets;

* it was honored as an Awardee in the Board Category for “Listed Companies
(SEHK - Hang Seng Index Constituents)” in the “Directors Of The Year
Awards 2006" organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors;

s it was rated one of the companies with the best corporate governance in
China and also one of the best managed companies in China by FinanceAsia;

* it was selected as cne of the recipients of the “Recognition Awards 2008 -
The Best of Asia” by Corporate Governance Asia; and

* it was named one of the outstanding enterprises among blue-chip
companies in Hong Kong by the Economic Digest.

The standard of good corporate governance practices is always changing. In
order to keep up with this dynamic environment, the Group will continue to
monitor the adequacy of its existing practices.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and its
effectiveness to ensure the accomplishment of corporate goals, smooth running
of the operations, assets and stakeholders’ interest are safeguarded as well
as reliability of financial statemenis. The Group adopts the control framework
consistent with the frameworks recommended by both the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (*COSO") in the United
States and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as our
standards in establishing control systems and the best practice among our
group companies.

The Board conducts regular review of the Group's internal control system. For
the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board has reviewed and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the Group’s current internal control system in place. A
detailed elaboration of the Group's internal control system is set out in full in the
Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

Social Responsibility

How corporations should deal with the ethical, environmental and social
impacts of their business cperations has drawn much attention from the
public in recent years. Stakehoiders, including not only shareholders but also
customers, suppliers, employees and the society at large, increasingly expect
the Group to conduct its business more responsibly and be more accountable
to the environment and community. The Board is aware that the absence
of apprapriate responses to such expectation would hold back the Group’s
sustainable development.

Qur guiding principles are to adopt open and transparent business practices that
are based on ethical values and respect for the community, the environment,
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employees, shareholders and other stakeholders so as to deliver sustainable
value, and to incorporate such values into our business decisions and processes.

Environmental protection is one of the focal areas that we address. The
Group endeavors to conduct business in ways that protect and preserve the
environment. There are policies to guide us in this regard, which stipulate
that the Group should, among other things, evaluate the environmental and
ecological impact from its operations, and assess the potential environmental
risks before any proposed business acquisition should be proceeded. One of the
examples of our corporate culture to protect and preserve natural resources is
the pledge by our supermarket division in Hong Kong to reduce the distribution
of plastic bags and the participation in the “No Plastic Bag Day” event. The result
was encouraging. Also, our mainland supermarket division has been looking
for ways to improve its energy system’s efficiency. Initiatives included raising in-
store air-conditioner temperaturg and installing energy saving lighting system,
In addition, the Group promotes public awareness of the need to protect our
environment. For the second consecutive year, our beverage operation taunched
the campaign called “The Great Expedition with SNOW (1180 - B XE)".
The 2008 campaign produced a docurnentary program on adventures to trace
the origin of the Yangtze River, with an aim to encourage the public to protect
our water sources.

The Group also cares for the community and constantly works for the good of
the underprivileged. During the year, our beverage division organized different
activities the purpose of which was to provide financial assistance to poverty-
stricken students in the Chinese Mainland, and at least 600 students benefited
as a result. Our supermarket division helped raise money for charity through
in-store donaticn collection boxes, and sponsored the establishment of the
third primary school in the Chinese Mainland since 2004. Like the year before,
Chinese Arts & Crafts put up an exquisite art item for auction and donated the
entire proceeds to a charitable fund.

The Group's community involvement goes beyond donations to charitable
organizations. Our supermarket division in Hong Kong obtained the Caring
Company Logo Award from the Hong Kong Council of Soctal Service in February
20086. This logo was awarded to companies which satigfied the six criteria of the
Caring Company Scheme and demonstrated good corporate citizenship.

——...-_ﬂsn,,
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“SNOW"™ offered financial assistance to poverty-
stricken students in China.

sponsored by "SNOW™.
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The Group conducted a large-scale customer satisfaction survey on our
businesses in both the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong together with
consultancy firms last year. This regular exercise enables us to identify our
strengths and weaknesses in the marketplace, so as to improve our products
and services from customer perspective. We respect the opinions of our
customers and view their satisfaction as an attribute in fulfilling our social
responsibility as well as a tool to enhance our competitive edge.

In view of the diversity of the Group’s busingsses, the issues of corporate social
responsibility can be tackled from many angles. We will coniinuously explore
naw initiatives to fulfill our duty as a good corporate citizen,

Investor Relations

Our ultimate goal is to create a steady, long term growth in shareholder value.
The Group has been encouraging a tripartite communication system among
investors, senior management and operational management to reach high
standards of corporate governance. Understanding the unique features and
specific needs of a conglomerate enterprise of different businesses, we strive
to go beyond merely improving investor relations, but also promating effective
communication ameng investment community, senicr management and various
business units.

The Group maintains an open dialogue with the investment community. Our
practice for conducting a three-week global roadshow annually around April
to visit institutional investors in Europe, the United States and Asia has highly
been appreciated by the investment community. The focus in the 2006 global
roadshow was on our supermarket and beverage operations and detailed
analysis on our niche, strategies and the competitive environment was presented.
Chief executives of the two operations also participated in the roadshow together
with senior management from the headquarters. The Corporate Day held in July
for analysts and fund managers was also well received. During the three-day
tour, the syndicate visited our meat processing centre in Shanghai, supermarket
and brewery operations in Zhejiang Province. In 2006, top management along
with senior managemaent of different business units met with about 630 analysts
and fund managers in over 230 meetings including one-on-one meetings, site
visits, luncheons as well as conferences arranged by financial institutions.

EEPREPHTIBFERASAMEDEFZTEE - SHL IE.E’.Q
FATT I ey B -

Deputy Managing Director Kwong Marn Him led the analyst and
fund manager syndicate to visit the brewery plant at Hangzhou,
Zhejlang Province.
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Share Performance

CRE's share price rose 61.4% to HK$22.35 in 2006, outperforming the Hang
Seng Index by 20.2%. During the year, its daily closing share price hit a post-
Asian financial crisis high of HK$23.70 on 13 December 2006. The lowest
closing price was HK$13.80. CRE's market capitalization also grow 70.4% to
HK$52,711 million in the year.
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Year-end closing price and market capitalization of CRE for 2002-2006
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Dividend Payout Ratio

The Group has long had a goal of gradually improving its basic cash dividend
payout ratio and has continuously delivered upon this goal. We plan to pay
basic cash dividends that balance the cash generated from the growth of the
company’s earnings with the cash needed to fuel future profit growth. In addition,
special dividends would be considered for exceptional events, subject to the
prevailing financial position, funding needs and market environment. In 20086, a
special cash dividend of HK$1 per share was paid following the disposal of the
Group's piped gas and chemical distribution businesses. Special dividends were
also distributed in 2002 and 2003 during which the ncn-core assets in banking
and building materials were divested.

ZEP_Z_RESEERAMRBRERES  Earnings and dividend per share for 2002-2006
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A special distribution in specie of ore share in
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for
0.00 ] every ten shares of the Company was distributed
2002 2003 2004 2005 in 2003.
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Total Shareholder Return

With the gradual re-alignment of our business focus on the consumer sector,
robust operating performance and rising corporate governance standard, CRE's
shares achieved a total return for sharehclders of 291.5% over the past five
years, as measurad by share price appreciation and reinvested dividend. This
is caonsiderably higher than that of the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng
Commerce & Industry Index. For the year 20086, the total return for shareholders
was 72.5%, compared to the average 39.0% of the Hang Seng Index and
53.1% of the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry Index.
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Total shareholder return of CRE relative to market indices for 2002-2006
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2006 was a remarkable year for cur core consumer businesses. There was
encouraging profit increase in our retail business led by our supermarket
operation. With a 34% rise in beer sales volume to 5.3 million kilofiters, our
beverage business became the largest brewer on the mainland. The tremendous
growth of the national brand, "SNOW", als¢ reinforced its position as the
country's largest beer brand. tUnderlying net profit growth of our food business
was the strongest in recent years while its mainland meat processing projects
progressed well. For our textile business, despite a profit decline amidst
challenging operating environment, there was a strong demand for its high-end
yarn products, MAKO, after technology upgrade and our future focus will be on
producing niche products and product mix enhancements.
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The mainland supermarket business is highly competitive as global players are
increasingly attracted by China’s robust private consumption growth and the
liberalized retail market. Market consolidation will accelerate and the Group's
supermarket operation needs to continually enhance its core competence and
market niche. Future expansion will be very focused in terms of location and
store format to establish dominance within the target district in the most efficient
way. We will open mainly hypermarket and standard supermarket depending
on the local demographics and economies. To improve shopping environment
and alleviate the impact of rising retail rentals, we are !easing out some of the
hypermarket space to complementary tenants. We are also buying some of
the store properties on stringent requirements and have started to integrate the
procurement and logistics networks in Eastern China.

Our beverage business will continue 1o spread its brewery network along the
coastal line and Yangize River into the neighboring areas. Although the start
up cost is high for new districts, this is essential in order to develop an efficient
national distribution network. At the same time, we aim to attain profitabie
expansion via operational improvements. A three-pronged approach will be
adopted to grow production capacity through acquisition, greenfield investment
and capacity upgrade. The reduced reliance on acquisition is made possible with
the rapid developrnent of “SNOW" as a national brand. The popularity of "SNOW”
is the result of cur success in brand positioning, marketing strategies and market
consolidation. We will step up our sales efforts for “SNOW” this year in the major
cities including Beijing, Guangzhou and Shanghai as there is rising demand for
quality beer.

Import of chilled pork from the Chinese Mainland was allowed in the second
half of last year but there has been little impact on our food business, which
imports livestock from the mainland. We have successfully developed “Ng Fung”
brand as high quality fresh meat, creating a strong premium brand image amidst
growing concerns over food safety. Supply of fresh pork from the local farms,
the only other source of live pigs in Hong Kong, will be further reduced by the
introduction of a pig farm license surrender scheme in middle 2006 to conirol
Hong Kong's pollution problems. The shortfall will be satisfied by imports. Our
mainland meat processing projects in Shenzhen and Shanghai are progressing
well. We have developed a competent supply chain from pig sourcing,
slaughtering, meat production to retailing in the two cities. OQur experience
and reputation put us in a favorable position to capture further investment
opportunities in the mainland meat market.

Following a slack result last year, which was partly due to the restrictive quotas
on mainland textile products, our textile business will concentrate on products
with better competitiveness and margins, We have established our comparative
advantage in higher end yarn and nylon products to match strong overseas
demand for high quality shirts and stockings. We are also targeting denim casual
wears to lead our garment export.
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The economic environment of the markets we operate is positive. China’s
economy continued to churn ahead in 2006. To ensure balanced and sustainable
economic development, the central government has set stable economic
growth and low inflation targets for this year. It has made boosting domestic
consumption a priority for driving economic growth and introduced measures
to narrow the income gap. The recent measures to slow down the mainland
aconomy are only specific to certain over-invested sectors. In Hong Kong, the
economy is strong with falling unemployment rate, increased salaries, rising
tourist arrivals and steadily improving property market.

Looking ahead into 2007 and beyond, our focus is on the execution of our plan
to build the Group into the largest consumer company in China. Divestment
of the non-core assets will also continue. After the sale of our piped gas and
chemical distribution operations in the Chinese Mainland last year, a framework
agreement has been signed recently relating the disposal of our petroleum
distribution operation in Hong Kong, the only remaining business in our
petroleum division. These parallel efforts have a common goal — to improve
shareholder return. We are optimistic that the earnings gap created after the
disposal of our non-core assets will be gradually filled by our core businesses
and new contributions from re-investment of the disposal proceeds. As the
maintand consumer market is huge and growing fast, we are excited about the
opportunities in the years ahead and are confident in our ability to capitalize on
thern and deliver superior results to our shargholders.

Appreciation

We have considerably strengthened our Board in recent years to promote
corporate governance practices. In late 2006, two Independent Non-Executive
Directors joined our Beard, namely The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, whose knowledge and expertise will surely be
invaluable to the Group. | would like to extend a warm welcome to Mr. Chan and
Mr. Siu.

With a team approach in our operation, our success highly depends on the
full dedication from our hardworking employees. Their innovation as well as
commitment to excellence have helped us build a unigue result-oriented culture,
and | take this opportunity to thank them. I also wish to express my gratitude to
our shareholders, customers, business partners and other stakeholders for their
support of the Group.

SONG LIN

Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007
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The Group’s retail division mainly comprises three business segments:
(1) supermarket and logistics; {2) brand-fashion distribution in the Chinese
Mainland and (3) other retail stores operation.

In 20086, the Group’s retail division showed improved performance, underpinned
by sustained organic growth in the supermarket operation and further boosted
by China Resources Cikelong {Zhejiang) Supermarket Co., Ltd. ("Zhejiang
Cikelong”) I EMEEREFTHMR AT acquired in late 2005. Turnover
and attributable profit amounted to HK$20,418 million and HK$217 million
respectively, representing an increase of 26.0% and 102.8% over 2005.

At the same time, the economy of the Chinese Mainland sustained considerable
growth. Foreign trade continued to grow fast with an increase in foreign direct
investment. Improvement in job market has raised individual income levels in
both the urban and suburban areas. Ingreasing domestic consumption drove up
local consurner goods retail sales, and the Group's consumer businesses have
thus benefited as a whole.

In Hong Kong, overall market sentiment remained positive due to buoyant
export trade in 2006. The general increase in household income, continuous
improvement in the local job market and steadity improving property market gave
rise to a distinct pick up of local consumption expenditure. Market outlook of
the local retail industry is encouraging with steady growth.

Supermarket and Logistics

Turnover of the supermarket and logistics operation for 2006 was HK$18,187
million, representing an increase of 28.7% over 2005. Attributable profit for 2006
amounted to HK$152 million, an increase of 1.8 times.

The division’s regional development strategies delivered promising results
in 2006. Through new store openings, acquisitions, line-up with franchised
stores and continuous expansion in retail networks, the Group increased its
market share in target regions. As at the end of December 2006, the Group
altogether operated a total of approximately 2,100 stores in Hong Kong and the
Chinese Mainland, of which approximately 48% were self-operated and the rest
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were franchised stores. Major store formats are hypermarkets, superstores,
supermarkets and convenience stores. In terms of geographical contribution,
Eastern and Central China, Southern China, Hong Kong and Northern China
respectively accounted for 55.2%, 26.6%, 12.6% and 5.6% of the division's
turnover for the year under review.

Turnaver growth in 2006 was mainly driven by store openings as well as a
remarkable same store growth. Overall same store growth for the year was
8.2%, in particular a 9.6% increase was achieved for the Chinese Mainland. The
increase in payments from suppliers, which included incentives, store display
and promotion income, further boosted the turnover growth and improved the
overall operating results. The increasingly centralized purchase system from
improved retail networks strengthened the bargaining power in negotiations with
suppliers. In addition, optimization of operational logistics and rationalization of
management structure helped improve efficiency and achieve cost effectiveness.
Consoclidated earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA") for 2006 amounted to HK$773 million, representing a 34.2% growth
over that of 2005.

The Eastern and Central China operation recorded a satisfactory same store
growth of 10.0%. Suguo succeeded in maintaining its market share and
optimizing its distribution network through the adoption of a multi-format
approach with mass coverage, active business promaotion in the media as well as
consolidation of franchised stores during the year, which have achieved a same
store growth of 10.1%. However, Suguo’s newly opened hypermarkets, a new
store format adopted in 2005, still need adjustments to drive shoppers flow. To
improve the profitability of new stores and non-performing stores, key processes
and administration setups were modified and incentive schemes were refined.
Zhejiang Cikelong, acquired in late 2005, reported satisfactory profit contribution
for the year. To further enhance store clusters and market share in Zhejiang
Province, the Group also started a joint venture with a local supermarket chain in
Ningbo during the year.

In Southern China, store facelifts, better supply chain management and
innovative marketing initiatives delivered satisfactory results. Same store growth
of hypermarkets and superstores reached 11.2% and 13.4% respectively.
Streamline and optimization of management structure also helped rationalize key
processes and drive down cost. Whilst the performance of siores in Zhongshan
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and certain hypermarkets and supermarkets, which include the lifestyle store in
Dongguan, were still slack for the year under review, the Group will concentrate
its efforts in product mix enrichment as well as supply chain and store operation
reinforcement to drive the overall profitability of the segment.

The 26.3% turnover increase in Northern China was mainly attributable to
the acquisition of stores in Tianjin and new store openings. In spite of this,
the operation recorded net loss for the year owing to head-on competition
from foreign retail operators in same areas and withdrawal of certain in-store
consignment counters. Certain redevelopment works in the areas also affected
customer traffic. The Group is slowing its pace of expansion in the region,
putting in more efforts to rationalize existing stores and its related supply chains,
and adjusting the product mix to improve store profitability,. Meanwhile, the
Group has entered into an agreement in October 2006 to set up a distribution
centre in Beijing for the integration of procurement and logistics network in
Northern China.

The Hong Kong operation faced strong competition from major local market
players. The Group cautiously monitored the concessions offered to customers
while securing its market share at the sarme time. With solid revival in domestic
consumption expenditure, sustainable retail sales growth and growing demand
for quality warehouse space, it is believed that the Hong Kong operation will
benefit in medium to long term.

To cope with prevailing keen competition in the retall market, the Group will focus
on new acquisitions and development of hypermarkets and superstores through
new store openings and moving into second and third tier cities in order {o raise
market presence in the target regions.

Brand-fashion Distribution
The brand-fashion distribution segment reported turnover and attributable profit

for 2006 of HK$1,553 million and HK$26 million respectively, representing an
increase of 11.1% and 85.7% over 2005.
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The “Esprit" brand delivered strong growth in turnover and attributable profit of
34.4% and 50.0% respectively for the year under review. The growth of retail
and wholesale business was largely the result of existing stores facelifts, new
store openings, active business promotion for higher brand recognition, together
with enhanced product design. Self-operated stores recorded a same store
growth of 19.7% while satisfactory sa'es growth of franchised stores also helped
improve the performance of wholesale business. The distribution network of the
“Esprit” brand as at the end of December 2006 comprised approximately 730
self-operated and franchised stores in the Chinese Mainland.

The continuous brand portfolio review since the last quarter of 2005 has showed
effect; distribution of certain brands ceased upon expiry of the distribution
contracts, while certain brands considered 1o have limited development potential
have been pulled out, Clearance sales and successive store closures in 2006
impacted the overall profitability of the segment.

Other Retail Stores
Other retail stores segment reported turnover and attributable profit for 2006

of HK$678 million and HK$39 million, which remained relatively comparable to
last year. The Group’s chain of retail stores as at the end of December 2006
consisted of 5 Chinese Arts & Crafts 4 # stores in Hong Kong and 37 CR Care
I E stores in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

Owing to an increase in turnover during the second half of the year largely from
business promotion associated with re-opening of a relocated store at Pacific
Place in June 2006 and another store in Central in August 2006, Chinese Arts &
Crafts % reported improvement in profitability.

Ongoing product mix enrichment to capture increasing demand for health food
and traditional Chinese medicine, amidst rising health awareness amongst local
community, contributed to improved gross profit for CR Care EF ¥ stores
in 2006. However, cost pressure from increased store rentals resulting from
tenancy renewal upon expiry or stores relocations have caused the operation
to report a small loss far the year under review. Through enhancement of store
layout, resources alignment and the development of its own branded products,
improvement in overall profitability of CR Care ZE 3 stores is anticipated.
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The beverage division reported turnover and attributable profit for 2006 of
HK$9,455 million and HK$174 million respectively, representing a comespending
increase of 37.9% and 27.9% over 2005.

Sales volume of beer rose by 34.4% to approximately 5,305,000 kiloliters
for 2008. In particular, our national brand “SNOW" achieved remarkable
performance, with sales volume reached 3,037,000 kiloliters, representing
57.2% of the total sales volume and an impressive growth of 91.9%. The
increase in turnover and sales volume was mainly contributed by organic growth
with a notable sales volume increase in Sichuan, Liaoning, Auhui, Heilongjiang/
Jilin and Beijing/Tianjin regions. This was mainly attributable to the successful
brand name integration through initiatives in the “SNOW” brand promotion and
in market distribution. Market demand was further driven by the hotter than
expected weather in typical peak season and the warmer weather in winter.

For the year under review, the Group put in continuous efforts for product mix
enrichment in most of the regions so as to cater for the lifting of consumer’s
taste. The slight increase in average seliing price per kiloliter compensated for the
increase in production cost; overall gross profit margin remained comparable.
However, considerable investment was expended on building sales distribution
channels and consumer popularity of the "SNOW" brand during preliminary
market expansion in certain regions. As a result, the increase in average seliing
and distribution expenses per kiloliter offset the contribution of sales volume
increment to profitability.

As at the end of 2006, the Group operated approximately 50 breweries in the
Chinese Mainland with an annual production capacity of approximately 7.6 million
kiloliters. The Group successfully completed several new acquisitions during
the year. With a strategic move to reinforce the Group's market position and to
supplement the operations in existing and target regions, the Group acquired an
85% interest in FAEIREEAR D8 (Quanzhou Gingyuan Brewery Company
Limited) and a 100% interest in #7iL R A5 R 22 7] (Zhejiang Yinyan Brewery
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Company Limited), and the related brewing assets in ZH#EILNTRBRARE
£ 5] {Anhui Huaibei Xiangwang Brewery Company Limited), BRI RREREA
¥ ERE £ 25 Wulanhaote Mengyuan Brewery Company Limited) and tLé8
Bl BEHR ST (Shanxi Yueshan Brewery Company Umited).  Additionally,
the new brewery in Harbin, Heilongjiang, which is also for the production of
the “SNOW” brand beer, commenced trial operation in January 2007. tn the
same month, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire the remaining
38% interest in the brewery companies in Sichuan and a 100% interast in a
brewery company in the Guizhou Province of the Chinese Maintand through the
acquisition of the entire interests in B & () 5B E E 2 5] (Blue Sword (Group)
Company Limited).

Production expansion is driven by market expansion. To consolidate its position
as the largest beer producer in the Chinese Mainland in terms of sales volume,
the Group has concrete plans to enlarge the production capacity of certain
breweries that have currently reached maximum beer production capacity, in
order to support the growth of our national brand “SNOW".

Moving forward, intensified competition in the China beer market is anticipated.
To strengthen its competitive advantage, the Group will keep on putting
emphasis on branded product mix enrichment, operaticnal improvement for cost

saving, continuous market integration and expansion to capitalize on the growing
momentum in the beer consumption in the Chinese Mainland.
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Geographical distribution of the Group's breweries as at 31 December 2006
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6,092 5,624 8%

435 414 5%

703 630 12%

235 3%

The food processing and distribution division reported turnover and attributable profit for
2006 of HK$8,092 milion and HK$435 million respectively, representing an increase of
8.3% and 5.1% over 2005. Excluding a HK$59 million gain on disposal of an asscciated
company in 2005, attributable profit of the division for 2006 increased by 22.5%.

Foodstutf distribution operation reported a notable growth in profitability. In light of growing
concerns over food safety and quality, together with determined efforts in distribution
channel rationalization, the "Ng Fung" brand of high quality fresh meat continued 1o be
highly appreciated. Ongoing enrichment in product mix, introduction of new products to
meet customer demand trends, coupled with vigilant expansion of sales and distribution
network for frozen meat and other assorted foodstuff distribution business also contribuied
to the business growth of the division.

Despite the record high fuel prices impacting on the profitability, the marine fishing and
aquatic products processing operation reported satisfactory growth in turnover and
attributable profit. For the year under review, sales volume rose by about 2% through
effective branding and marketing in the overseas markets. Regular on-site menitoring
of fishing fleet fuel utilization and cost saving measures werg carried out to keep the
production costs under control, leading to a substantial profitability improvement.

The Shenzhen operation reported a marked growth in profit contribution in 2008, which
was mainly achieved through proactive expansion of fresh meat sales network and
effective operating cost control initiatives in pig sourcing, slaughtering and fresh meat
production. The encouraging performance of its meat processing division was attributable
to the effective launch of promotional campaigns and enhancement in distribution network.
Its brand *¥ " was recognized as the weli-known brand in Shenzhen.

The Shanghai meat processing centre, which commenced operation at the end of 2005,
has increased its slaughtering volume and reported profit contribution for the year under
review. The effective launch of promotional activities has raised the poputarity of its brand
"R R in local market. Initial sales network was established in the Shanghai market
with nearly 1,000 sales outlets, inctuding group procurement customers and those in
supermarkets and specialty shops. Stringent cost contro! initiative drove down costs in
the course of procuremnent, production as well as selling and administration, which in turn
increased profitability.

The Group's expertise in slaughtering techniques and management in Hong Kong will pose
core competence in litting the slaughtering quality and management lavel in light of hygiene
awareness of both Shenzhen and Shanghai operations.
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Turnover of the textile division for 2006 was HK$4,453 millicn, representing an
increase of 3.8% over 2005. Attributable profit for 2006 amounted to HK$61
million, representing a decrease of 24.7% from 2005.

Turnover growth was mainly driven by a boost in export sales of high-end
products, namely MAKQ yarns and nyloen HOY, and FDY yarns under robust
market demand. Product mix enhancement, a result of technology upgrade,
contributed to a 15.8% increase in average selling price of yarns. The more
economic usage of cotton mix and the gradual shift in the use of imported
cotton has reduced the raw material costs for production. However, a material
waorker's compensation incurred for workforce redundancies of two factories, the
continuing underperformance of the dyeing business as well as the rising cost
pressure from the increase in electricity price in July 2006, altogether lowered the
profitability of the textile division for the year under review. The reduction of VAT
refund on export of textile products from 13% to 11% effective in the last quarter
of 2006 brought further cost pressure to the division and will pose a challenge to
the profitability in the coming year.

Moving forward, in view of the continuous change in the trend of the textile
market, our focus will be primarily on the production of high-end products.
Scheduted technology upgrade of certain production facilities in 2007 will further
improve the proeduction efficiency and in turn will help drive the overall turnover
and profitability of the division in the long run.
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The property divigion, which comprises rental property segments of retail,
office and industrial premises, reported turnover for 2006 of HK$349 miltion,
representing an increase of 16.7% over 2005. Attributable profit for 2006
amounted to HK$647 million. Excluding net-of-tax valuation surplus and disposal
gains of certain nen-cere investment properties with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$432 million (2005: approximately HK$508 million), attributable
profit of the division for 2006 increased by 18.1%.

Retail rentals during 20086 regained its momentum after a period of market
consolidation in the second half of 2005. Against expected further economic
growth and increasing consumption expenditure of the local households, retail
sales are expected to benefit and provide further growth impetus to retail rentals.

Satisfactory rental increases were attained for both new and renewed tenancies.
Capitalizing on the favorable retall market opportunities, the newly redeveloped
multi-storey retail property on the Hennessy Road, Wanchai has been fully let out
since September 2006 and made steady rental income contribution.  This led to
an overall increase in effective rent per square foot and satisfactory occupancy
rates of the Group's retail properties portfolio.

The mall STFET @4 at Jiangmen, with our supermarket as its anchor tenant,
commenced operation in Aprit 2006 with its latest occupancy rate having reached
about 82%. Specific measures and events were launched to further drive up
rentals and shoppers flow during the initial stage of the operation. The shopping
mall at Xinhui is currently under renovation. Both malls, being the property
division's initial market entries to the Chinese Mainland, will bring in new revenue
streams as well as expenence to capture further investment opportunities in the
mainland market.
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Turnover and attributable profit of the petroleum and related products distribution
division for 2006 amounted to HK$25,100 million and HK$1,002 million
respectively, representing an increase of 20.4% and 60.6% over 2005. Excluding
a gain from the disposal of the 100% equity interest in China Resources
Petrochems Heldings Limited in 2006 and the gains from the disposal of certain
non-core assets in 2005, attributable profits for 2006 increased by 25.0%
over 2005,

Turnaround in profitability of filing stations operation in Hong Kong was primarily
attributable to the reduced intermission of price-fixing mechanism effective from
March 2006. Volatility in oil prices during the year under review had a slight
impact on the gross margin of the petroleum distribution.  The improved profit
contribution from the piped gas and chemical cperations in the Chinese Mainland
also contributed to the increase in overall profitehility.

Consistent with the Group’s focus on the core consumer businesses, the Group
disposed of its interests in the piped gas, chemicals distribution and other
petroleum refated businesses in the Chinese Mainland during the year. On 14
March 2007, the Group has entered into a framework agreement to dispose of its
100% equity interest in China Resources Petroshems Investments Limited, which
is the holding company of alt the Group's petroleumn distribution business in Hong
Kong, including the wholesaling of petroleum products and the operation of petrol
stations. The formal agreement is expected to be signed in mid April, 2007.
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Attributable profit for 2006 amounted to
HK$421 million {2005: HK$356 million).

Container Terminal
The Group has a 10% interest in HIT

Investments Limited and Hutchison
Ports Yantian Investments Limited. The
Hong Kong and Yantian deepwater
port operations continued to maintain a
stable profit performance in 2006.

Capital and Funding
As at 31 December 2008, the Group's consalidated cash and cash equivalents

amounted to HK$7,056 million. The Group's berrowings as at 31 December
2006 were HK$8,837 milion with HK$4,997 million repayable within 1 year,
HK$3,836 million repayable after 1 year but within 5 years and HK$4 million
repayable after 5 years. Committed borrowing facilities available to the Group,
but not drawn as at 31 December 2006 amounted to HK$1,300 million. Al the
borrowings were subject to floating rates. On 15 May 20086, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, together with 16 other banks, signed a S-year revolving
credit/term syndicated loan facility of HK$3 biliion, interest bearing at 0.28% p.a.
over HIBOR. The proceeds are for general corporate funding and the refinancing
of the redemption of US$230 million convertible guaranteed bonds upon maturity
in May 2006.

On the basis of the Group's net borrowings relative to the shareholders’ funds
and minority interests, the Group's gearing was approximately at 7.1% as at
31 December 2008 (31 December 2005: 14.3%). The decrease in net debt of
the Group was mainly resulted from the cash inflow from operating activities
particularly the beverage business and the consideration received from exercise
of share options.

The Group's principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. As at 31 December 20086,
22.2% of the Group’s cash deposit balances was held in Hong Kong doflars,
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36.7% in Renminbi and 40.0% in US dollars; hereas 61.1% of the Group's
barrowings was denominated in Hong Keng dollars and 26.2% in Renminbi with
12.6% in US dollars. Moreover, to mitigate fofeign currency and interest rate
exposure, the Group entered into certain forward contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge against part of its borrowings. ‘

|

Pledge of Assets '

As at 31 December 2008, assets with a carrymg value of HK$153 million (31
December 2005: HK$228 milion) were pledged for total borrowings of HK$214
million {31 December 2008: pledged for total bqrrOWings of HK$248 miflion).

Contingent Liabilities 1
The Group did not have any material contungpnt liabilities as at 31 December

2008, |

Employees

As at 31 December 2008, the Group, excluding its associated companies, has a
staff size of around 113,000, amongst which r'nore than 93% were employed in
the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong Kong and overgeas.
Remunaration packages are assessed in accordance to the nature of jobs
duties, individual performance and market trends with built-in merit components,
paid in the form of cash bonuses and share options.

CHEN SHULIN

J
By order of the Board ||
Managing Director |‘

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007
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Mr. SONG LIN, aged 44

was appointed Chairman of the Group in December 2004. He is concurrently Vice
Chairman and President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation, Chairman of China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited as well as China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Song is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Geely Automabile Holdings Limited. He is also the Deputy
Chairman of China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Song has
extensive experience in corporate management and is currently responsible for the
overall business development and strategic ptanning of the Group’s business. Mr. Song
ho'ds a Bacheler's degree in Machanics from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai,
China. He joined China Resources (Holdings} Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. CHEN SHULIN, aged 53

has been an Executive Director of the Group since December 1998 and was appointed
Managing Director in March 2C05. He is also the Director and Vice President of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation as
well as Chairman of Ng Fung Hong Limited and China Resources Vanguard Company
Limited. Pricr to joining China Resources {Holdings) Company Limited, Mr. Chen was
a senior official with the MOFTEC {Ministry of Commerce} and a commercial attaché
in Australia and New Zealand. He obtained his Bachelor's degree from Beijing Foreign
Languages Institute, China and MBA degree from Victoria University, New Zealand.

Mr. KEUNG CHI WANG, RALPH, aged 51

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1996 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in May 2000. He is alse a Director of HIT Investments Limited. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Keng Polytechnic
University) and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Keung
overseas the Group's finance and treasury function, legal and secretarial function as
well as corporate merger and acquisition and investment activities. Mr. Keung joined the
Group in September 1994.

Mr. WANG QUN, aged 50

has been an Executive Cirector of the Group since January 2000 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2008. Mr. Wang is a Director of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. He is also
an Executive Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible
for the entire operation of the Group's brewery business. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of
Finance degrea from the People's University of China. He has previously worked in the
China National Economic Committee and held key management position in a Shenzhen
based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1994.

Mr. LAU PAK SHING, aged 57

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1997 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006. He graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist
University {formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountanis and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr, Lau represented the Executive Committee
of Hong Kong Cold Storage Merchants Association Limited as Chairman for many years.
Mr. Lau has around 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting, corporate finance,
property, godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently in charge of the
Group's Hong Kong property division and logistics business, Mr, Lau joined the Group in
January 1994,
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Mr. KWONG MAN HIM. aged 42

joined the Group as an Executive Director in Februan,l 2002 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006, Mr. Kwong has a Bachelor of Science degree from
the University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of Ithe Hong Kong Securities Institute.
Mr. Kwong has extensive experience in corporate planning, equity research, merchant
banking and financial analysis. He is in charge of ths Group's corporate planning and
development. He also manages investor relations, promotes corporate goveritance and
participates in merger and acquisition activities.
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Mr. QIAQ SHIBO. aged 52
was appointed Executive Director of the Group in July 2001 and had been a Deputy

Managing Director since November 2001 until his re-designation as a Non-Executive
Director in March 20086, He is also the Director and|Vice President of China Resources
(Holdings) Comgany Limited and China Resources National Corporation, and is
responsible for the operational management and strategic restructuring of China
Worldbest Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Qiao holds a Bachalor's degree in Chinese Language
from the Jilin University, China. '

Mr. YAN BIAQ. aged 45 |

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in 1994 and was a Deputy Managing
Director before his re-designation as a Non-Executive Director in March 2006. Mr. Yan
is a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Com;ljany Limited and China Resources
National Corporation and is the Director of Legal AI:fairs of the China Resources Group.
He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land Limited. Mr, Yan is
currently responsible for the operational manageinent and strategic restructuring of
China Worldbest Group Co., Ltd. He has a Bacheflor of Laws degree from the Peking
University, China and an MBA degree from the Univi'ersity of San Francisco, USA.

I
Mr. JIANG WEI. aged 44 ‘

has been a Director of the Group since 1995. Hia is currently the Director and Chief
Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings} Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Jiang is a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Logic
Limited, China Assets (Holdings) Limited and élso an Indspendent Non-Executive
Director of Greentown China Holgings Limited. He is also a Director of China Vanke Co.,
Lid., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his Bachelor's degree
in International Trade and Master's degree in Intérnational Business and Finance from
the University of Internationa! Business and Econo:lnics in Beijing, China.

|
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Mr. WANG SHUAITING. aged 51

was appointed Directer of the Group in March 2008, He is the Birector and Vice
fresident of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporaticn. Mr. Wang is currentiy the Chairman of China Resources Textiles
(Holdings) Company Limited. He is also an Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited. Mr,
Wang has extensive experience in the electricity industry in the PRC. Prior to joining
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, he worked for the General Office of the
Government of Jiangsu Province from 1985 to 1987 and was subsequently the Head
of the Industrial Office as well as the Deputy Secretary-General of the Government of
Xuzhou City. Mr. Wang holds an EMBA degree in business administration from China
Europe International Business School.

Mr. XIE SHENGXI, aged 45
has been a Director of the Group since August 2001. Mr. Xie is a Non-Executive Director

of China Resources Land Limited, He is also a Director of Shan Dong Dong-E E-Jiao
Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Xie graduated with a Bachelor's
degree in Economics from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics, an MBA degree
from the University of South Austratia. He is alse a qualified accountant in China with
extensive experience in the field of internal audit and financial management,
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Dr. CHAN PO FUN, PETER (BBS, MBE, JP, FCPA(Aust)), aged 85

has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced accountancy in Hong Kong
for 59 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleun Technotogy and Modern Chinese
Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater Technology. Dr. Chan is
a trustee of the Hong Kong Shue Yan University {also as its Research Professor) and
the United College of Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of The
Kowlcon Stock Exchange, a founding Director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited and has served three terms as the Chairman of the former Hong Kong
Federation of Stock Exchanges.

Mr. HOUANG TAI NINH, aged 53

has been a Director for the Group since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon
investments Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree
irom the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.
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Dr. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC (FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP}, aged 53

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003|. He is Senior Partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants {Practising), member of the Tenth National
Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference and former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kon'g SAR. He holds directorship in a
number of listed companies inclizding Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng
Bank Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International
Holdings Limited, Wong's International (Holdings) Lirpited, CATIC International Holdings
Limited, RoadShow Holdings Limited, Sinofert Ho‘dings Limited, Meadville Holdings
Limited, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

i

I
i

i
Mr. CHENG MO CHI (GBS, OBE, JP), aged 57,
has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. He qualified as a solicitor
in Hong Kong, United Kingdom, Victoria Australi:ln and Singapore and is the Senior
Partner of Messrs. PC. Woo & Co., a firm of solicit{)rs. He is currently Director of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and had sejved as a member of the Legislative
Council from 1991 to 1995. Mr. Cheng is the Hon. President and Founding Chairman
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Presently, he holds directorship in a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong, including Beijiing Capital International Airport Comparny
Limited, China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China Mobile Limited, City Telecom
(HK) Limited, Guangdong investment Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
(formerly known as K. Wah Construction Materialg Limited), Kader Holdings Company
Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Shui On Construction and Materials Limited
as well as Tian An China Invesiments Company Linited.

The Hon. BERNARD CHARNWUT CHAN (GBS, JP), aged 42

was appointed a Director of the Group in Noverntier 2006. He is the Executive Director
and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited 'c}nd Asia Insurance Company Limited.
He also acts as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Fublic Company Limited, Hong Kong
Branch. Apart from the roles in the business cammunity, Mr. Chan also serves as a
member of the Legislative Council representing thJe insurance industry and a non-officiat
member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition, Mr. Chan holds
directorship in a number of listed companies ir, Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong
Haldings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage Holdings Limited, Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited.

|

Mr. SIU KWING CHUE, GORDON (GBE, CBE, JP}, aged 61

was appointed a Director of the Group in Noverber 2006. He had been a government
official for over 36 years before his retirement fr0|'n the civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose
to the rank of Secretary, Government Secratariat in 1993 and served a number of high-
ranking government positions, namely the Secr(iztary for Economic Services, Secretary
for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and E\Irentually retired from hig last posting as
Secretary for Planning, Envircnment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited and two of its
subsidiaries, as well as [CEA Finance Holdings L'mited.

I
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Vice Presidents

Mr. LAU KIN SHING, CHARLES, aged 51
was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He heads the Group's

internal Audit Department. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor's degree in Accounting and Master's
degree in Business Administration as wel' as in Information System Management. He
is & chartered accountant, New Zealand, Australian FCPA, a Canadian certified general
accountant and U.S. certified internal auditor. He has extensive experience in internal
auditing, financial management and cperations review. Mr. Lau joined the Group in
February 2000.

Mr. ZHU DAN. aged 45
was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He is also the President

of China Resources Petrochems {Group) Company Limited since July 2001, He hotds
a Bachelor of Economics degree from the University of International Business and
Economics, China and has more than 20 years of corporate management experience
in the area of petroleum and related products trading and distribution. Mr. Zhu joined
China Resources Petrochems (Group) Company Limited since 1984 and was previously
the General Manager of China Rescurces Petroleum Company Limited and China
Pesources Chemicals Company Limited.

Corporate & Operational Management

Mr. CHEN LANG, aged 41

is currently the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard
Company Limited and the Chairman of Sugue Supermarket Cempany Limited. He is
also a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
Mational Corporaticn. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui
University, China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of San Francisco, USA. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
in 1989. He was previously the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China
Resources Logic Limited. Prior to that, he was the Chairman and General Manager of
China Resources Development and Investment Company Limited and was in charge
of a nurmber of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources
(Heldings) Company Limited.

Miss CHEUNG SIU LING, agad 44

is the Group Financial Controfler. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from the University of Newcastle, United Kingdom. Miss Cheung is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kang Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified General Accountants
Association of Canada. She worked for an international accounting firm for over 13
years. Miss Cheung joined the Group in January 2001.
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Ms. GUO JINQING, aged 41 [
has been the Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong L;imited since 2001, She joined Ng

Fung Hong Limited in 1991 and assurmed the rofe of Deputy Managing Director in 1996.
Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor of Economic degree from the University of International
Business and Economics, China and a Master of BLJsiness Administration degree from
Murdoch University, Australia, She has substantial eXperience in trading and corporate
management. [

|

Miss HUI LEUNG CHING, PATRICIA. ageoI 39

is the Head Legal Advisor overseeing the Group's Legal and Secretarial Department.
Miss Hui holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from Ki{1g‘s College, University of London,
and is qualified to practice law in Hong Kong as w{e[l as England and Wates. Prior to
joining the Group, Miss Hui has worked in private practice and with a listed company
and has substantial experience in corporate and commercial legal work, regulatory
compliance and company secretarial matiters. She jolined the Group in October 2006.

Mr. SHI SHANBO, aged 41 !
was appointed Managing Director of China Resolirces Textiles (Holdings) Company

Limited in 2006. Mr. Shi holds a Master's degree injEconomics from Dongbei University
of Finance and Ecenomics, China. He joined Chil'\a Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1991 and has been the Vice Chairman and General Manager of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited since Jun¢ 2003. He has over a decade of
experience in corporate finance, human rescurces dwanagement and strategic planning.

i
Mr. TANG XU DONG. aged 47 I
is currently the General Manager of China Rescurces Retail (Group) Company Limited
as well as the Chief Executive Officer of Tactical Solutions Incorporated, a joint venture
hetween the Group and Esprit Holdings Limited, specialising in the distribution of
apparel, fashion accessories and cosmetics. Mr.|Tang holds a Bachelor of Business
degree from the Lacning University, China and a r\daster of Economics degree from the
People’s University of China. Prior to joining the Glroup, Mr. Tang worked for the CITIC
Group. He is also a member of the Shanghai Changning District's Chinese People's
Political Consultative Committee, Mr, Tang joined the Group in November 1997.

;
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate governance
framework is essential to the successful growth of the Company and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value. The Company is committed to attaining
and maintaining high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles
of corporate governance emphasising a quality board, accountability to all
stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices
On 8 Agpril 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Gavernance Practice

Manual ("CG Manual”). The CG Manual incorporates almost all the Code
Provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices {("CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {“Listing Rules”) and includes the
implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where appropriate, the
Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual can be downloaded from our
website and copies are available on request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with all the Code Provisions in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 20086, with deviations from Code
Provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code as summarised below. The Company
has also exceeded the reguirements under the Listing Rules and the CG Code in
various areas of its corporate governance practices.

In addition to meeting the reguirements of the Listing Rules, the inclusion of the
Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report is intended to keep our
shareholders abreast of the corporate governance practices of the Company and
their development throughout the reporting year and to invite our shareholders’
views thereon.

The Board
The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s affairs. The

Directors recognise their responsibifities to enhance shareholder value and to
conduct themselves in accordance with their duty of care and loyalty.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their decisions include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial objectives of
the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments, disposal of
assets or any significant capital expenditure of the Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;

6. Review of the financial performance and results of the Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final dividend and the
declaration of any interim dividends.
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The Directors are responsible for the preparatioﬁ of the accounts of each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the :IState of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flows for that period. Since November 2002, to enable
the shareholders to appraise the operations and performance of the Group, the
Group has been releasing quarterly financial highlights and operating review. The
financial statements are prepared and presentéd to enable a clear and balanced
assessment of the financial position of the Group. Regular management reports
on the financial position and prospects of eagh business unit of the Group are
reviewed by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Compary.

In the financial year ended 31 December 20086, there were the following changes

o the membership of the Board: l'

{1) Mr. Qiao Shibo and Mr. Yan Biaoc were re-designated as Non-Executive
Directors on 10 March 2006. I

(2) Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing and Mr'. Kwong Man Him were appeinted
as Deputy Managing Directors on 10 Marc;h 2006.

(3) Mr. Wang Shuaiting was appointed as Non-Elxecutive Director on 10 March 2006.

{4) The Hen. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr, Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon were
appointed as independent Non-ExecutiveI(Directors on 30 November 2006.

|
|

As at the date of this Report, the Board ¢omprises 17 Directors, including
the Chairman, the Managing Director, fouj Deputy Managing Directors, five
Non-Executive Directors and six |ndepencl[ent Non-Executive Directors. The
biagraphical details of the Directors are set dut on pages 44 to 47 of this Annual
Report and can also be found on our website. The relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships} if any, among
members of the Board are disclosed. ThereI is no such relationship as between
the Chairman and the Managing Director. ‘

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing!; Rules, the Company has received
written confirmation from each of the ind:ependem Non-Executive Directors
confirming his independence from the Company, and considers all of ihe
Independent Non-Executive Directors to bejindependent.
I

The experience and views of our lndepéndent Non-Executive Directors are
held in high regard and contribute to the effeciive direction of the Group. The
Company exceeded the minimum requirements under the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment ¢f at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors with
the appointment of its fourth Independent Non-Executive Direcior, Mr. Cheng
Mo Chi, in November 2005 and the fifth and sixth Independent Non-Executive
Directors, The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Cr]'an and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon,

|
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both in November 2006. Two of our Independent Non-Executive Directors have
appropriate accounting qualifications, which also exceeds the requirement of the
Listing Rules. With the appeintment of The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, the Company has achieved its long term goal of
maintaining the proportion of its Independent Non-Executive Directors to at least
one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a taifored induction programme for its newly
appointed directors. Continuing develepment and information are provided to the
Directors to keep them abreast of the latest developments involving the Group's
businesses and cperations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of skilts and
expertise appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the Company.
Appointments are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board
for decision.

All Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) are not appeinted
for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary term of office
and would like to retain sufficient flexibility to organise the composition of the
Board to serve the needs of the Group. All Directors are subject to re-election
by shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least every three years on a rotation basis. The Articles of
Association of the Company require that one-third of the Directors (including
Executive and Non-Executive Directors) shall retire each year. The Directors who
are required to retire each year shall be those appeinted by the Board during the
year and those who have been longest in office since thair election or re-election.
A retiring Director is gligible for re-election.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately
by Mr. Song Lin and Mr. Chen Shulin respectively. The segregation of duties
of the Chairman and the Managing Director ensures a clear distinction in the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Managing Director’s
responsibility to manage the Company's business. The respective responsibilities
of the Chairman and the Managing Director are more fully set out in the
CG Manual.

Due to an overseas engagement, Mr. Song Lin was not in Hong Kong on
2 June 2006 and therefore could not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on that day. The Managing Director and either the chairman or
at least cne member of the Audit Committes, Compensation Committee and
Nomination Committee attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at approximaiely
quarterly intervals to review the financial performance of the Group. Between
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these regular meetings, the Board mests ic discuss and consider major issues
(whether or not required by the Listing Rules) and also on other occasions
when board decisions are required. With respect to regular meetings of the
Board, Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of the meeting and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no loss than three days prior to the
meeting. With respect to other meetings called, Directors are given as much
notice as is reasonable and practicable in the citcumstances. The Directors have
full access 1o information on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors. '

|
The Board met on 13 occasions during 2006, The attendance of the Directors at
Board meetings and principal Board committee meetings held in 2006 is set out

in the table below:
}

LR | ppEAe | FHEA® MOS0 | HBSQe | REzZAe
Board Audit Compensation Executive Finance | Nomination
R | g | Commitiee | Committee Colmmillee Commitiee | Committee
TS
BHEEAEED | Mr. Qiao Shibot? 1
ML Mr. Yan Biao®™ 2 i f
BEEE Mr. Jiang Wei 1 ' 1
FRIFEELE® | Mr. Wang Shuaiting®@ 1 i 2
BRERE Mr. Xie Shengxi 1 K
BREFgL Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 4 | 8 4 3 i 2
EXESE | Mr. Houang Tai Ninh 4 | 7 4 i 2
ZEEEL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2 7 4 '
MPREEE | Mr. Cheng Mo Chi 3|2 2 !
BREBMES | The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan @ 1 J
MAELE® | Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon @ 1 :
Execulive]Bireclors
EHEE Mr. Song Lin 2 1 ’ 1 19
RS | Mr. Chen Shulin 4.1 4 R 24 1
BHE%E | Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 4] 8 2 T 24 1
AL Mr. Wang Qun® 1 1 : 9 18
BIEREE® | Mr. Lau Pak Shing 3 I 18
R HEE® | Mr. Kwong Man Him® 4 8 , 1 1
A EENTIRER ‘ ‘ ‘
e 2083 . w e 3 0wl 2
At :
Notes

R: ERH Regular Meeting
S HEIHE Special Meeting

(1) FERFERORAE R _FFAF=R+EBBEHBIERTEY -

Mr. Qiao Shibo and Mr. Yan Biao were re-designated as Non-Executive Directors on 10 March 2006.
(2) XL RS ENFE=Z A+ HMEERFRITEN -

Mr. Wang Shuaiting was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 10 March 2006.
(3) RESAANEABRAEER —FEANFF— A=+ ENEFLRRUHITTEE -

i
|

The Hon. Bernard Chamwut Chan and Mr. Siv Kwing Chue, Gordon were appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors on 30 November 2006.
(4) TRALE  REREL BN R ER —FFAFE-RFABEABESQEE - T
Mr. Wang Qun, Mr, Lau Pak Shing and Mr. Kwong Man Him were appointed as Deputy Managing Directors on 10 March 20086,

(5) Rp+N\AHBELGABAREANEAS -

There were 18 timas where the resolutions were passed by the Finance Committee by way of written resolutions.

|
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Delegation by the Board

While the Board retains at all times full respensibility for guiding and monitoring
the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are delegated as follows:

(@) Committees — various committees have been established by the Board to
administer certain specified functicns of the Company's affairs. The main
committees include: the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Compensation
Committee. The terms of reference of the Executive Committee, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Gommittee and the Compensation Commitiee
which set out, amoeng other things, the duties, functions and composition
of these committees are set out in the CG Manual and available on the
Company’s website;

Managing Director — the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business is delegated to the Managing Director who is accountable to the

(s)

~—

Board; and

{c) Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate and operating
management are delegated to senior management of the Company within
the parameters as specified by the Beard.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2006, the Nomination Committee comprised three
Independent Non-Executive Direciors, namely Mr. Houang Tai Ninh (chairman),
Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter and Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, and one Non-Executive
Director, Mr. Yan Biao. The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make recommendaticn
after such review and 1o assess the suitability and qualification of any proposed
director candidate. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then
put forward for consideration and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which set out its duties and
procedures are available on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 December 20086, the Nomination Committee held

two meetings. The work of the Nomination Committee included the following

recommendations to the Board:

* the re-designation of Mr. Giao Shibo and Mr. Yan Biao as Non-Executive
Directors;

* the appointment of Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing and Mr. Kwong Man
Him as Deputy Managing Directors;

= the appointment of Mr. Wang Shuaiting as a Non-Executive Director;

« the appointment of Mr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles and Mr. Zhu Dan as
vice presidents;

¢ the appointment of The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan as Independent
Non-Executive Director; and

* the appointment of Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon as Independent
Non-Executive Director.
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Compensation Committee
As at 31 December 2006, the Compensation Committee comprised three

Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr: Chan Po Fun, Peter (chairman),
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh and Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric,!and one Executive Director, Mr.
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph. The duties of the Co](npensation Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of remuneration of Directors and sentor manage'ment. establishing a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy orj remuneration and determining
the specific remuneration packages for all dirchtors and senior management.
The terms of reference of the Compensation Committee which set out its duties
and procedures are available on the Company's | ebsite.
|

The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives is determined
with reference to the performance and responsibilities of the individual, the
performance of the Group, prevailing markej conditions and remuneration
benchmarks from comparable companies. Directors and employees also
participate in benus arrangements based on the performance of the Group and
the individual.

During the year under review, the Compensatiopn Committee met two times and

passed written resolutions once on matters incldding:

» approval of the remuneration packages foy 2006 for Directors and senior
executives of the Company,

+ review and consideration of the fees payable to Directors (other than the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) for 2008;

« approval of the remuneration packages for 2006 and discretionary bonuses
for directors and senicr management of the Group.

Audit Committee |
As at 31 December 2006, the Audit Committee comprised four Independent

Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cl‘reung, Eric (chairman), Dr. Chan
Po Fun, Peter, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh and Mr. Cheng Mo Chi. Two of its members
have appropriate professicnal qualifications 0[ accounting or related financial
management expertise. No member of this Committee is a member of the former
or existing auditors of the Company. The membership of the Audit Committee
has exceeded the Listing Rules requiremant that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualification. The existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee are modeled
on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and have also adopted the principles set out in the
CG Code. !
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The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making

recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditors, review of the Company's financial information and oversight

of the Company’s financial report system and internal control procedures. During

the year under review, the Audit Committee met on four occasions. The work of

the Audit Committee in 2006 included reviews of:

* the external auditors' report to the Audit Committee in respect of 2005 audit;

» the 2005 annual report and annual results announcement;

* the external auditors’ internal control memorandum in respect of the
2005 audit;

* connected party transactions;

* the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March 2006 and the
related results announcement;

¢ the 2006 interim report and interim resuits announcement;

¢ the guarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September 2006 and the
related results announcement; and

= the quarterly reports of internal audit activities.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the external auditors on
three occasions without the presence of any Executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and independence
of the exiernal auditors of the Company. The Audit Commiitee concludes
that the independence of the external auditors of the Company has not been
compromised by non-audit services performed for the Group. During the year
under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s external auditors
amount to approximately HK$21 million (2005: approximately HK$16.2 million};
fees related to non-audit services paid and payable amount to approximately
HK$0.6 million (2005: approximately HK$0.5 million).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The interests held by the Directors in the Company’s securities as at

31 December 2006 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 66 to 72
of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005, the Company has adaopted a Code of
Ethics and Securities Transactions ("Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model
Code") set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The prohibitions on securities
dealing and disclosure requirements in the Code of Ethics also apply to specified
individuals who include the Group's senior management and perscns who are
privy to price sensitive information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having
made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2006.
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Internal Control |
The Board recognizes that it has the overall Iresponsibility to establish and

maintain a sound and effeclive internal contro| system to ensure the smooth
running of the operations, safeguard the Graup's assets and shareholder’s
interest as well as ensure the reliability of financie'il statements.
|

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the frameworks
recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission in the United States and the H-I)ng Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as the standards in establishing control systems and
the best practice amang our Group companies. The Group's internal control
system includes five key elements, namely the|existence of an effective control
envirenment, risk management, communicaticn and information system, cost
effective control process and proper monitoring Imechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and asl,sess the risks and impact on the
respective business unit at least once every year. The executive management
team of each business unit is accountable for the conduct and performance
of each cperation in the business unit within the agreed strategies and
similarly the management of each operation isi accountable for its conduct and
performance. Polictes and procedures are designed for safeguarding corporate
assets, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring transactions are
executed in accordance with management authorisation. Monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operation indicators are reviewed by the
Executive Commitiee of the Board. Regular maetings are held with the executive
management team of each business unit tol review the actual performance
against budget. |

The Internal Audit Department is responsitle {or assessing the Group's internal
conircl system, formulating an impartial opinioI ¢n the system, and reporting its
findings to the Executive Committee and the AEdit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department conducts independent reviews on the Group's internal control on an

0Nn-going basis.

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual business
units, the scope of work performed by thelinternal audit function covers all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. |

Key control findings are reported to the Audit Committee at least once every
quarter and the corrective actions are taken t[Jy the relevant business units. The
Board conducts regular reviews of the Group's internal control system through
monitoring the activities of the Group's Internal Audit Departrment and the Audit
Committee.
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Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 Decembar 2006, the Board
and the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal controls provides
reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded and there is no
significant area of concerns that may affect shareholders.

investor Relations
The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and

fair disclosure of information to its shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is
necessary for shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and
performance of the Group.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally disclosed
information deserve a reasonable reply. The Corporate Planning and
Development Department is responsible for investar relationship functions and
will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts' enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing and
prospective partners and counterparties with information on the Company's
corporate governance practices. Copies of such information can be obtained
from the Company Secretary upon written request.

For and on behalf of the Board

CHEN SHULIN
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007

58 #EAXEER L China Resources Enterprice, Limited » Annual Report 2006 “F 3B




EESHE
Report of the Directors

ERgo A\RARBE_SF F+-A=+—HL
FHZHERBELZHMERSENMETEM -

FOOH

FRBETERFTE RO ARMTREHE &
B oRBELERDARAMERRE - A0z E
DRBELAMERE RISEIER - B EHME DT R
BRRZzEBETIRNEIS1EE169H « KEBXTF
EEAREE NEHER T EREHMERA -

LE18%H
SHAHE-_BRAFET A=+ —BIERE 2B
IR FEBS A Z G REERA -

. 3 e
R B4 2N £ TR B P HARS 8 G AT RAR AN 1440 -
BMEZEHRNEIREET -

HERR —BEAF T ABERS IR S SR E AR
AL BEEER2356HBT

BEREEARNR S RERRAE - AR
Me16REN WERERR_FERLEATHERH
RiEEETPHRAER-_FBLERA-TN\BELAY
BREREFHAZAL -

BEiia
ARMEEFRLBRRAFERBETEA 2 B UBATH
REERERHE TR -

wil
FREAG . EEMRUENRRN B 70REE T3
He

2 23
FEEZREEPHERHERUBRENE =1~

54}
ZRAEFRE 2 HERBAFE 2 B EER D BT
RESREEREHREMBRSHE=T—"-

The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their report
and the audited financial statements for| the year ended 31 December
2006.

Principal Activities |

The Group is principally engaged in retail! beverage, food processing and
distribution, textile, property investment and petroleum and related
products distribution businesses. The principal activities of the Company
are property investment and investmepnt holding. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on pages 161 to 169. An
analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business segments is
set out in note 5 to the financial statemants.

Group Profit ‘

The consolidated profit and loss account'is set out on page 85 and shows
the Group's profit for the year ended 31 ‘Decernber 2006.

Dividends
An interim dividend of HK14 cents per ordinary share amounting to HK$328
million was paid to shareholders during ’the year,

A special dividend of HK$1 per ordinary share amounting to HK$2,356
million was paid to sharehglders in Decslamber 20086.

The directors recommend a final divid!end of HK26 cents per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$616 million payable on or about
15 June 2007 to all persons registered|as holders of ordinary shares on
28 May 2007 . |

|
Fixed Assets |
Movements in the fixed assets of the Grloup and the Company during the
year are set out in note 15 1o the finanolial statements.

I
Properties \
A schedule of the principal properties :of the Group is set out on pages
170 to 173. ‘

Share Capital ‘
Movements in the share capital during'the year are set out in note 31 to
the financial statements. ‘

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consclidated statement of changes in equity and
note 32 to the financial statements regpectively.
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BONE Charitable Donations

AFEATEEBREANARE HET - Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
HKS$1 million.

g Directors

AFEAREAHEEMEEREMT : The directors who held offica during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

£ Chairman
s Mr. Song Lin
gy badi Managing Director
FREdMST A Mr. Chen Shuiin
BIEBTAEIE Deputy Managing Directors
ERT&E Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
i3 e (M-B®xF=A+H Mr. Wang Qun {Re-designated as Deputy Managing
BEAR TS EEIE) Director on 10 March 2008)
FEmEE (R-ER F=A+A Mr. Lau Pak Shing (Re-designated as Deputy Managing
At BRNEEREIE) Directer on 10 March 2008)
-1 bt (R-—BB E=A+H Mr, Kwong Man Hirn (Re-designated as Deputy Managing
AT LRIEEERIE) Directer on 10 March 20086)
iy Directors
HEEE (R-ETAF=R+H Mr. Qiao Shibo {Re-designated as non-executive director
(GESFTHE) WEHIEHMITESE) {Non-executive Director) on 10 March 2006)
iz rted (R-ZFAE=AR+H Mr. Yan Biao {Re-designated as non-executive director
(FES7TEIE) AT AIEMITIEE) {Non-executive Director) on 10 March 2006)
BiEks Mr. Jiang Wei
(FEMFTEEH) {Non-executive Director)
FapiEE S (HR-FBAE=ZA+A Mr. Wang Shuaiting {Appointed on 10 March 2008}
(FEENFTEEEE) &ML (Non-executive Director)
HBEALE Mr. Xie Shengpxi
(FEMTTHIE) {Non-executive Director)
EHM+ Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(B IEHTTEF) (Independent Non-executive
Director)
HAEEL Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
(B IEHiTHE) (independent Non-executive
Director}
FRFELT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(BUIFEsiTHE) {independent Non-executive
Director)
EEEE g Mr. Cheng Mo Chi
(B IERITIEE) {Independent Non-executive
Director)
FEEHRS (RZFBREF-A=1H The Hon. Bernard Charrwut Chan {Appointed on 30 Novernber 20086)
(BuEHims) HEE (independent Non-executive
Director)
[y Ebagtes R=-EBXRF+—H=+H Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon  {Appointed on 30 November 2006)
(BuIsiTEF)  HWED (Independent Non-executive
Director)
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Directors (continued) I

In accordance with Article 110 of the Co‘mpany's Articles of Asscciation,
Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing, Mr! Qiao Shibo, Mr. Yan Biao, Mr.
Jiang Wei and Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter| shall retire by rotation and are
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company's Article of Association,
The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gorden shall
retire and are eligible for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts
None of the directors has a service confract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

|
Directors’ interest in Contracts
No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidigries were a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material i'nterest, gither directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at afy time during the year.

!
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Biographical details of directors and S(ranior management are set out on
pages 44 to 49, |

Share Option Schemes I

During the year, the Company operatlas a share option scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional comnmitment and dedication to the
objectives of the Company by the pa[ticipants (the “New Scheme"). In
addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under a share
option scherme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated
on 31 January 2002 (the "Old Scheme”).

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which is subsequently amended on 20 August 2004
by ordinary resolution passed by shareholders, and shall expire on 31
January 2012. The board of directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible participants including employees, executive or non-axecutive
directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as suchy,
any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any
employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), any executives and employees of
and consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive, substantial shareholder
of the Company, associated companies of the Group, associates of
directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder of the Company,
and employees of substantial shareholder and where a substantial
shareholder is a company, empltoyees of subsidiaries of a substantial
shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of the prevailing Ruies Governing the Listing
of Securitigs on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {“Listing
Rules"), the exercise price shall be such price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion. The maximum entitlement of each
participant under the scheme (including options to be granted to the
directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
any of their respective associates) is equivalent to the maximum limit
permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules. The scheme mandate limit
under the New Scheme was refreshed and renewed by ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general mesting held on
20 August 2004 which enabled the grant of further share options to
subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares representing 10% of the shares in
issue as at the said date. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue upon exercise of all options which may be granted
under the New Scheme is 159,686,321 shares which represent 8.77% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable within a
pernod of 10 years immediately after the date of grant or are vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a
grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted (or granted
in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant share option scheme during the year in
relation to each of the directors or their respective associates, employees,
and other participants of the share option scheme.
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raf: 3 X)) g KOwP Share Option Schemes (continued)

() EHSHBREA {a) Directors or their associates

RoBERRFH-A=+—8 THHEHSE As at 31 December 2008, the following directors had interests in
REA SR EHSI R EE RN 2R respect of options to subscribe for shares granted under the Old
FERENE 2 - AR AIIRET D - MFHAMM Scheme and the New Scheme of tlwe Company. Share options held

AR DT by directors granted under such sthemes are set out below:
RRERE" FRARBMR
Number of share options’ Price of Company's shares?

gt £ e

#oveAs | t2A  EREz Eg@2

R -A-8 RIFE REEE  REFM KEER =+-B 1 12
BML  RETHE i 4 i H# k% HRAR BT BNR

Exercise Outstanding Granted  Ewercised  Cancelled apsed OQuistanding  For options  For options
f#iHem Price at  duingthe durngthe  dusingthe  dufing the at granted  exercised
Esns Name of diregtor Date of grant HKS 11172006 year year year ! year 3111212006 HKS HKS
I
BITBRELTEN  Executive and
Non-Executive '
Directors ‘
e Song Lin 20/06/2000 719 200,000 - 200,000° - - - - 16.298
07/02/2002 TAT 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - (- - - 16.228
1410172004 972 2,500,000 - 2500000 - .- - - 16.241
R B Chen Shufin 2114172000 708 1,185,000 - 1,186,000 - - - - 15,991
07/02/2002 747 1,328,000 - 1,326,000 - (- - - 16.228
14/01/2004 972 2,000,000 - 2000000 . - - - 16.241
02/06/2004 955 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 - | - - - 16.250
5% Keung Chi Wang, Ralph  20/06/2000 79 1,400,000 - 1,400,000 T - - - 16.194
07/02/2002 717 500,000 - 500,000 - - - - 16.228
147012004 972 215,000 - 216,000 - - - - 16.241
02/06/2004 955 850000 - 850000 - - - - 15250
B Wang Qun 20/06/2000 7.19 400,000 - 400,000 - ‘ - - - 16.194
07/02/2002 717 400,000 - 400,000 - - - - 16.228
HE Lau Pak Shing 20/06/2000 749 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - - - 16.194
1410172004 9.72 500,000 - 500,000 - | - - - 16.241
02/06/2004 955 1,000.000 - 1,000,000 - - - - 16.250
B Kwaong Man Him 07/02/2002 747 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - ‘ - - - 16,228
14/01/2004 9.72 222,000 - 222,000 - - - - 16.241
02/06/2004 9.55 772,000 - 772,000 - | - - - 16.250
B Qiag Shibo 07/02/2002 747 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 - - - - 16.228
14/01/2004 872 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - | - - - 16.241
]} Yan Biac 20/06/2000 7.19 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - - - - 16,194
07/02/2002 747 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - } - - - 16.228
i Jiang Wei 08/03/2002 7.50 600,000 - £00,000 - - - - 16.308
EEoL ¥ie Shengxi 08/03/2002 750 180,000 - 180,000 o - - - 16.308
it Sut-lotal 28,552,000 - 28552000 - I - - - -
BURBTHE Independent I
Non-executive '
Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 - NiAS
Houzng Tai Ninh 210642004 9.5 200,000 - - - - 200,000 - /A
Li Ka Gheung, Eric 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - ‘ - 200,000 - Nias
Sub-total 600,000 - - - [ - £00,000 - -
Total 29,152,000 - 28552000 - - 600,000 - -
' IRER GBS RIFE R E=80H0E - B : By virtue of Section 344 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
FEFEHEARERL AR T HACS 2 200,000 ("SFO"), Mr. Song win is deeed to be interested in the share option
AR mAsiRR g 2 4t - for 200,000 ordinary shares ?ranted by the Company to his spouse.

RN 4R 2 5] China Resources Er;terprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 38 63



R
() RARKLERE

Share Option Schemes (continued)
(b) Employees and other participants

BEFEIEIITI S - ERFZHEEFEA Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the Company
FREZER  BEEHTFoBRERMERLE are employees of the Group and details of share options held by
X{(F)REE - UTREFRPES (TaAL them are disclosed in paragraph () above. Summary of share options
AREE) PHASEESHBRENHER - granted to employees of the Group {other than directors of the

Company) and other participants are set out below.

(} @R TEEELFESN) il  Employees (other than directors of the Company)
g =) FAERHBRE
Number of share options’ Price of Company’s shares?
RoRRAE
BoRRAF +=8 EEHZ 2z
TR —A-8 REER REESR i =35 REFE =+-d BRia R
iy 5 B RITE 4] frie (7 3 BT AN BT
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding For options For aptions
RHEH Price at during the during the during the during the at granted exercised
Date of grant HK$ 17172006 year year year year 3112/2006 HKS HKS$
anm
Cld Scheme
20/06/2000 7.18 2,145,000 N/AS 1,670,000 - - 475,000 - 18.551
21/11/2000 7.08 2,213,000 N/A? 1,268,000 - - 945,000 - 16.006
HET Sub-tonal 4,358,000 NAT 2,938,000 - - 1,420,000
st
New Scheme
07/02/2002 717 5,488,000 - 4,854,000 - - 634,000 - 16.420
19/04/2(K02 7.40 3,850,000 - 3,366,000 - - 284,000 - 17.259
23/05/2002 8.90 14,000 - 14,000 - - - - 10.877
02/08/2002 8.32 3,834,000 - 2,454,000 - 660,000 720,000 - 16.455
Q711172002 7.70 1,752,000 - 1,752,000 - - - - 17.335
24/01/2003 7.25 578,000 - 528,000 - - 50.000 - 17.414
14/04/2003 6.29 3,968,000 - 3,604,000 - - 274,000 - 15.992
01/08/2003 7.10 550,000 - 580,000 - - 80,000 - 17.872
08/10/2003 8.90 1,661,000 - 1,220,000 - 89,000 352,000 - 16.646
02/12/2003 9.00 1,070,000 - 1,070,000 - - - - 16.327
14/01/2004 972 31,525,000 - 13,430,000 - 2,982 000 15,113,000 - 16.737
20/04/2004 9.89 5,216,000 - 2,296,000 - 28,000 2,892,000 - 16.008
25/05/2004 9.15 24,443,000 - 20,289,000 - - 4,154,000 - 17,422
02/06/2004 9.55 300,000 - 300,000 - - - - 16.250
22/07/2004 9.80 1,580,000 - 1,252,000 - 178,000 160,000 - 19.034
04/10/2004 10.35 45,464,000 - 27,514,000 - 328,000 17,622,000 - 16,607
171012005 11.40 1,580,000 - 580,000 - 880,000 120,000 - 16,760
22/07/2005 12.50 950,000 - 240,000 - - 720,000 - 17.510
/"5 Sub-total 133,753,000

- 85,433,000 - 5,145,000 43,175,000
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Share Option Schemes (continued)'

EJRRRIGHE !
(Z) RERHMSREG@M) (b) Employees and other participanis (continued)
iy HUBRE (i)  Other Participants ’
mEEng *ATIRGRE
Number of share options’ ! Price of Company's shares?
RIQEeRE
gt -2 +=A ERtz ez
TR —-A-B REER REEE % § REEE =+-B 1. 1.0
YT A& TR Bl T B E3 ERITE it BT
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Qutstanding For options For options
#Hag Price at during the during the during the during the at granted exercised
Date of grant HKS 111/2006 year year year year 31/12/2006 HKS HKS
it 1 ]
New Scheme |
05/03/2002 7.35 11,486,000 - 8,121,000 - - 3,365,000 - 17.452
23/05/2002 8.90 30,000 - 30,000 - - ‘ - - 19.877
14/04/2003 6.29 248,000 - 128,000 - - . 120,000 - 15.992
T
/J\it Sub-total 11,764,000 - 8,279,000 - . 3,485,000

1. BREMERE IR R 2 A0 AR, -

2. HESLMREFERXALFRNIUE - ABRER
PRESFERLARA—EXAA - BHEELRSR
BAAERDA (B2 ARz EmE - RERE
ITEBREMER 2 A0 FRGRE - HRIEBEE
1786 B BAT - BR (A AW ZX PR AT 2 e 0 2 DOAE
T -

FEE R TR RS SRR A & SR TIRKEA A B R
HoFR e

BHECR-BR_F—A=+—RBTPLERE - S
LA - FLRBERBEEIE N T ARARE -

LA DT 7 RS BRAEL RRER T
ZEER  SREHERE ANAERIT -

MR EE 7 FRBRERRRFERNEETE - &8

BB REETEA -

8. MRE-mA—XEHER - RELAREDIT
#: AAHRAUBR  TARLRREHDEFR
g

1.

Nurnber of share options refers to th
Company covered by the sharg optiol

e number of underlying shares in the
1S,

The price of the Company’s shares disglosed for options granted is the closing
price quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited {the “Stock

Exchange") on the trading day imme
the respective options. The price of th
options exercised during the year is
prices quoted on the Stock Exchange

diately before the date of the grant of
e Company's shares disclosed for the
the weighted average of the closing
mmediately before the date of exercise

of options.

The accounting policy adopted for tﬁe share options granted is set out in
note 2( to the financial statements.

The Old Scheme was terminated orﬂ 31 January 2002, and therefore no
options have been granted under thslz Qld Scheme since then.

All the share options granted as rnelntioned above will expire on the date
falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is

HK$1.00.

As the relevant sharg options grante‘d have not been exercised during the

year under review, no price disclosu(e is applicable.

Share options are generally gither fully vested and exercisable immediately
after the date of grant or vested ir] five tranches and exercisable over a

period of 4 years from date of grant

|
|
|
|
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AU

() RELACHTEBERREMBES PHAEY

B

EEns
Name of Directors

Be/ kA
Long position/
Short position

Directors’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 December 20086, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, including interests and short positions which the directors and chief
executive of the Company are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant o the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@ Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
AT L
HEARR & B Aggregate
Bt e Number of percentage of

Number of shares underlying shares’ interest? (%)

A e
Song Lin l_ong position
LR wE
Chen Shulin l.ong position
ERR e

Keung Chi Wang, Ralph

Long position

T e
Wang Qun Long position
BlEm A
Lau Pak Shing Long position
iR e

Kwong Man Him

Long position

Eie. A
Qiao Shibo Long position
il gE
Yan Biao Long position

1,800,000 - 0.08
2,412,000 - 0.10
1,166,000 - 0.05

360,000 - 0.02
1,000,600 - 0.04
1,194,000 - 0.05
1,400,000 - 0.08
2,600,000 - 0.1
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() mELRACRTEBREREARRGPHARTH

W24

EEns
Name of Directors

5391
Long position/
Short position

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

{a) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

the Company (continued)

BtteE
Number of shares

*EBHE'H&!!E‘

Number of
underlying :shares‘

FEHERT P

Aggregate
percentage of
interest? (%}

e
Jiang Wei

a3
Wang Shuaiting

HEE
Xie Shengxi

g5
Chan Po Fun, Peter

BAE
Houang Tai Ninh

TR
Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Ly
Long position

iy

Long position

HE
Long position

e
Long position

e
Long positian

HE
Long position

HE
Long position

1. ELEX(REE S —EE e R LR ERT S e
ELTHEMALY - SRR BRI LAY

WA ARETETA -

2. EFARRGEEERGTONEEREERATIR
FEAFTAZT - RCHETRFREMNT AL -

3. EEBAEEEEITEE8.25%E BITRRZ LT

t54d -

4. RBREE3BEMREEN  FHRSAERE#HHEE

FURBEAAZH GRS -

I
240,000 | - 0.01
30,000 ; - 0.001
180,000 | - 0.01
I
336,000 £|300.000 0.03
170,000% ‘
I
- i20(),000 0.01
I
- "200,000 0.01
1. This refer to underlying shares of lhg Company covered by share options

granted as detailed above under(the section headed “Share Option
Schemes”, such options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of the Complany to the total issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2006.

3. Such interest is held by a company of which Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is

interested in 88.25% of its issued share capital.

4. Save as otherwise specified under nete 3, interests disclosed hereunder are
being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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NMozRSNS Directors’ Interests in Securities (continusd)
() HHEZEERTEEREARK G RHEA/ (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

o associated corporations

[A - s T ESHGEREE (ESRGEH As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the issued

FHAE ARG MR BT E B B AR B AR IR ordinary shares and underlying shares covered by options granted

BIsaiR o] SRIEAR 10 - AR A g - 5% under the share option schemes of associated corporations (within

SHEESBRELGUENTWORETE the maaning of SFOY, such options being unfistad physically settled

TIH: equity derivatives:

) RBRARZE-EIELEERT fi  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options cutstanding
([(EREN)EFTERREBREER under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
BHMBRESNERTEBRES China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land"):

HERE
e
i) % 7 (€3 TEm ankse
i =) AT Aggregate
Ba/ %e kg8 Number of Exercise Percentage
8 E Long position/ Number of share options Price #BHem of interest®
Name of Directors Short position shares  outstanding’ HKS Date of grant {%)
F HE - 900,000 1.230 01/06/20052 0.03
Song Lin Long position
Btk HE - 700,000 1.230  01/06/20052 0.02
Chen Shulin Long position
] 1A - 500,000 1.270 02/06/20053 0.02
Lau Pak Shing Long position
iR gE - 700,000 1.230 01/06/20052 .02
Qiao Shibo Long position
i3 L3S ) 2,400,000 - - - 0.07
Yan Biao Long position
i3 gE 892,000 - - - 0.03
Jiang Wei Long position
FhbiE 5= - 540,000 1.590 04/03/20025 0.02
Wang Shuaiting Long position
HEE 50} 80,000 500,000 1.230 01/06/2005* 0.02
Xie Shengxi Long paosition
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FRHABRR s RS BAENEURBRERAZ B
HE -

Directors’ Interests in Securities {continued)
(b} Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations {continupd)
1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Land covered by the share options

l
2. Except for options granted by CR Land;on 4 March 2002, 1 June 2005 and

2 June 2005 which are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date
of grant, the expiry date for all other share options mentioned above is 27
May 2007. Consideration for each of the;grants mentioned above is HK$1,00.

3. QOptions are vested in four tranches ancli exercisable on 2 June 2006, 2007,
2008 and 2009 to 1 June 2015, Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

4. Options are vested in four tranches anc:i axercisable on 1 June 20086, 2007,
2008 and 2009 to 31 May 2015. Conslideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

5. Options are exercisable from 4 Mlarch 2002 to 31 January 2012.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1 00

8. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR
Land as at 31 December 2006.

7. All interests disclosed above are being‘ held by each director in his capacity
as beneficial owner. ‘
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MoZRSHE Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(Z) AR TTERJIAMBHFERN {b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
HE#1 () associated corporations (continued)
iy BE—MNARLIEA-NRDBRERALAF (il
([EEER]) B BT ERBRIRER
B BEREARSRITEERES

Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic™):

MRS
HiGiED
ob Ippidi] TR Bk
RRENE BT Aggregate
50 =931 RitBE Number of Exercise Percentage
BERgs Long position/ Number of  share options Price b e of interest?
Name of Directors Short position shares  outstanding' HK$ Date of grant {%)
EN 0E 3,600,000 6,900,000 0.590 21/09/2000° 0.45
Sang Lin Long position
HE 2,000,000 0.806 13/01/2004%
Long position
[#Ea HE - 6,000,000 0.790 04/12/20013 0.22
Yan Biao Long positicn
$#iE e - 720,000 0.820 08/04/2002¢ 0.03
Jiang Wei Long position
T B - 540,000 0.820 09/04/2002* 0.02
Wang Shuaiting Long poesition
HBEE e - 450,000 0.820 09/04/2002¢ 0.02
Xie Shengxi Long position

BEEwE ERBESAS RN TRREERBR R
By -

YRIF A PR R g B AR (7 B AR AR (D R B R
BEHIRRAF T A=+-BER{TRTEES
Bt e

R AR ] A0 1R L4 FIDA AR 4R B BRE S - F R
e -

AR ESEAE FYH -~ FRE - SNANABREE
ZE—=FAANBILHAETE - "o AMEET
H-FF_FOANE —RE-E . _FTME
EoRRAE-—F—RE-—R——FmA/NBILH
TE - T EREHASERAREIR -

LEXFERs ERDEASHBLARSEETAZ A7
A -

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Logic covered by the share options.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Logic to the total issued share capital of CR
Logic as at 31 December 2006.

Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant options.

Opticns are either vested immediately and exercisable from 9 April 2002 to
8 April 2012 or vested in four tranches and exercisable on 8 April 2002, 1
January 2003, 2004 and 2005 to 8 April 2012. Consideration for each of the
grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity
as beneficial owner.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities|{continued)
(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)
(i)  Interests in issued ordinan} shares and options outstanding
under the share option scheme of an associated corporation,
China Resources Power I-'ioldings Company Limited (“CR

HES Power™):
! FAGHED
=] Shard: ] i"rffﬂli aask’
REENE AN Aggregate
Ba/ ke KiresE Number of Exercise Percentage
g ] Long position/ Number of share options Price RHBEH of interest*
Name of Directors Short position shares outstanding’ HK§ Date of grant (%)
|
R HE - 2,000,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.08
Song Lin Long position 900,000 3.9;9 18/03/2005°
\
RN L3yEy - 600,000 2.a|0 12/11/20032 0.03
Chen Shulin Long position 500,000 3.99 18/03/2005*
|
I
TH T - 500,000 2.§0 12/11/20032 0.01
Wang Qun Long position |
|
Flank HA - 500,000 Q.éO 12/11/2003? 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Lcng position ‘
|
i HiE - 600,000 2.E;50 12/11/20032 0.03
Qiao Shibo Long position 500,000 3.9{)9 18/03/2005%
- 30,0008 2.E|50 12/11/20032
Gif=1 Fa - 600,000 2.5;30 12/41/20032 0.03
Yan Biao Long position 400,000 3.5')9 18/03/2005°
|
BE ey - 1,000,000 2.80 12/11/2003 0.04
Jiang Wei Long position 600,000 s.i‘ag 18/03/2005
ThNE HE 2,000,000 2,350,000 2.80 06/10/2003* 0.14
Wang Shuaiting Long position $00,000 B‘IFQ 18/03/2005*
BEE 155} - 400,000 2.;80 12/11/20032 0.02
Xie Shengxi Long position 300,000 3.;99 18/03/2005°
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

{b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)
The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Power covered by the share options.

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. Ali
options expire on 6 October 2013, Consideration for each of the grants
mentioned above is HK$1.00.

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. All
options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration for each of the grants
mentioned above is HK$1.00.

Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from date of grant of the
relevant period.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of CR
Power as at 31 December 2006,

tr. Qiao Shibo was deemed to be interested in the 30,000 underlying shares
through interests of his spouse.

Save as otherwise specified in note 6, all other interests disclosed above are
being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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Shareholders with notifiable interests

As at 31 December 2006, other than the interests and short positions as
disclosed above, the following persons!have interests or shori positions
in the shares and underlying shares of thz Company as fall to be disciosed
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
recorded in the register required to be hlept by the Company:

R REHHRE

BERLNRGEE

Number of

shafxres in which
tPe interested HRREN
party is deemed Percentage of
BRERHER Name of interested party to have interests shareholding (%)
mEER AL ((ERELR) China Resources National Corporation ‘1,‘1227,862,380 52.06

("CRNC")
EERGARLA (H1) China Resources Co., Limited {(Note 1) 1,;22?,862.380 52.06
CAC Bluesky Limited (Fi{3¥1) CRC Bluesky Limited {Note 1) 1,;22?.862,380 52.06
ERH(RE)ERLA ([ERREAE]D China Resources (Holdings) Comparny 1,227,862,380 52.06
(BizE1) Limited ("CRH") (Note 1) !

S R RT (F5E2) Commonwealth Bank of Australia (Note 2) !21 1,723,767 8.98
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. (F{#3) J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. {Note 3) i140,440,757 5.95

Lots

1. ¥R ME HCRC Bluesky Limited 2 EH B R F)
MCRC Bluesky Limited BERRGHER T2 A HE
HMLF - MEARGBEELRANHENADRENE
99.98%4% 2k o

2. BREGEHFLBETEIDEXVEIE_RAEZSHRE
MALAEENT AT - TG dRMNE DR
HIEERHEE T 100%IEHE 2 ERHAE -

3. BREGHRENGIDEXNVERE-RIF=FHAE
RFTEAERAEERAT - RERIDALP. Morgan
Chase & Co. RASEZE RIF0BHMT

Notes: |

|
1. CRHis a 100% subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned
as to 100% by China Resources Cp., Limited, which is in turn held as to
99.98% by CRNC. I

2. According to the information disclo:sed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFQ, these shares were held by corporations
controlled direclly or indirectly as |to 100% by Commonweaith Bank of
Australia.

3. Accordingly to the information discIJJsed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, these alshares were held by J.P. Margan Chase
& Co. and corporations controlled by it (Note 4) in the respective following

capacity: 1
i RKE
-4 Capacity X No. of shares
WHEEA Beneficial owner 4,496,700
9REE Investment manager 48,502,000
BATHER R E Approved lending agent 87,442,057

|
|
1
|
|
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Shareholders with notifiable interests (continued)

BisE - (1) Notes. (continued)

4. BECEHE IR EFIENVEE _RE=SEED 4, According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
SR E R BT - B T FdJ.P. Morgan Chase & and 3 of Part XV of the SFQ, cther than the following corporations which
Co. T RIS G LEMs - T RFEE S were held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. in the manner described below, all
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. HiEskEER T 100% these carporations were contrelled directly or indirectly as to 100% by J.P.

1EHIHE o Morgan Chase & Co.
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.
Bl g
HAESERH
| Percentage interest
. (direct or indirect) held by
| EEER Name of corporaticn J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. 98.95%
R GIRTIIE Specific Performance Obligations on Controlling Shareholder

REETERGS  ERERANSEETS AR R
BREFRREZROREFRIERLILTE—FA
BEZ & (MRA RS BENBARMERESR
RER) - RoFFAF+-A=+—H - RIERHR
BT LB ez fATEmAEYs 70058 T -
RERRBRR _F——FRAZAER -

[Gpag- 3o

1.

AZBFARZANE  ROTHEEHE8.6%
EiEERNHBAREEEEERATEEA
AL AR (M) PR el ([ ])
BENNREXRNEBAREHEEERD
SI([EREEDRIAEH  TRENYERE
MARERE  BEA B EHEBIE233-
230N+ BB FRITIA LB
BETIZ - REAHEY7,912,0007T - 588
WSIR D TR S R MR EMN TIE B IR
A% B SESTEKRERSENSHE
BI10% (PR A2, 511,0007) BIE fERE
S FREIETRERTER -

According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain as a
beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company or
remain as a single largest shareholder {(whether directly or indirectly through
its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at 31 December 2006, the aggregate
amount of the facilities subject to such obligation were HK$5,700 million.
Such facilities will expire before May 2011,

Connected Transactions

1.

On 6 March 2006, Worldfaith Properties Limited, a subsidiary in which
the Company has an indirect interesi of approximately 88.6%,
entered into a contract with China Resources Construction Company
Limited ("CR Construction™, a subsidiary in which China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited ("CRH"), the controliing shareholder of
the Company, has an approximately 99.6% interast, engaging it as
the main contractor for the construction works of the superstructure
of a twelve-storey commercial building at 233-238 Nathan Road,
Kowloon for a consideration of HK$97,912,000. Monthly payments
will be made according to the amount of works performed and
certified by the architect. 10% of the certified amount attributable io
CR Construction will be retained, subject to a maximum amount of
HK$2,511,000, as retention money which will be released after
completion of the construction.
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{

Connected Transactions (continueli)

2.

With an objective of becoming the largest consumer company in
China, the Group has teen restruciuring its non-core businesses so
as to shift its focus to the core consumer business and to divest the
non-core businesses. On 18 October 2006, Preparis Limtied, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
China Resources Petrochems Ga!s Group Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of CRH (the controlling shareholder of the Company), for
the disposal of its 100% equity interest in China Resources
Petrochems Holdings Limited (“CfRPH") for a cash consideration of
HK$2,780 million. CRPH was therj a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and the holding company of the Company’s piped gas
businesses, chemicals distribution businesses and other petroleum
related businesses in Chinese Mainland.

On 3 January 2007, China Resources Snow Breweries Limited (“CR
Snow™), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with all the holders of equity interest in & & (EH) R
1L ("Blue Sword”) for the acquisition of the entire equity interest
in Blua Sword at a cash congideration of RMBZ,500 million. Under
the agreement, Blue Sword would undergo a restructuring so that
the assets of Blue Sword upon completion would mainly consist of
the 38% interest in 14 brewery companies in Sichuan Province and
a 100% interest in a brewery campary in Guizhou Province. The
remaining 82% interest in the 14 Sichuan brewery companies was
owned by CR Snow. The acrlluisition enabled the Group to
consolidate its interest in the 14 Sichuan brewery companies and to
further enhance the operaticnal efficiency of, and the control of the
Group in, these breweries. As twD of the vendors, who together had
an approximately 10.85% interesfin Blue Sword, were also directors
of the 14 Sichuan brewery companies, which were subsidiaries of
CR Snow, that part of the acc]uisition attributable to these two
connected persons constituted a connected transaction of the
Company.
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Connected Transactions {continued)

4.

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected parties which constituted “continuing connected
trangactions” under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™).
Betails of those continuing cornected transactions which are subject
10 the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules
are summarised as follows:

{a) Tank storage agreements and facilities management
agreements
On 1 January 2000, China Resources Petroleum Company
Limited {"CRPC"), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company after being acquired in late 2000, entered
into a tank storage agreement with each of CRH, the controlling
sharehaclder of the Company, and Art Bill Investment Limited
("ABIL"), a subsidiary of CRH, for the usage of storage capacity
at the Chai Wan and Tsing Yi oil depots, raspectively. As the
oil depots are crucial to the operation of CRPC, the tank storage
agreements were entered for a term of 21 years commencing
on 1 January 2000C. The aggregate storage fee payable by
CRPC to CRH and ABIL was HK$141,600,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2006,

On 1 January 2000, each of CRH and ABIL entered into a
facilities management agreement with China Resources
Petrochems (Group) Company Limited {*CRPG"), which
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company after being
acquired in late 2000, in respect of the provision of
management services by CRPG for the Chai Wan and Tsing Yi
il depots, respectively. The facilities management agreements
also have a term of 21 years. For the year ended 31 December
20086, the aggregate management fee payable by CRH and
ABIL to CRPG was HK$19,992,000.
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Connected Transactions {(continue

(b)
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Facilities mr:magemen{1 agreement and godown
management agreement

On 31 December 2002, Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown Company
Limited (“Yuen Fat"), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company after being acquired in July 2003, entered
into a facilities managem’ent agreement {subsequently
amended pursuant to a supplemental agreement dated 15
April 2003) with CRH, the centrolling shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of management services by Yuen
Fat on the port premises and facilities developed on a site
owned by CRH in Sham E‘)hui FPo, Kowloon. Under the
agreement, Yuen Fat hagd paid CRH a monthly fee of
HK$800,000 (from 1 Jul3|/ 2003 to 30 June 2005) and
HK$1,000,000 (from 1 JiJIy 2005 to 30 June 20086} in
consideration for the right to keep, as the service fee payable
by CRH to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all cargo handling
fees, service charges and ather payments callected by Yuen
Fat at its own expenses frorn independent third parties. This
agreement was for a term of 3 years and 6 months
commencing on 1 January 2003 and was renewable at the
option of Yuen Fat for a further 3 years. On 28 June 2006, this
agreement was renewed b)quen Fat for a further terrn of three
years commencing on 1 July 2006. The monthly fee payable
is HK$1,000,000 throughout the term and all the other terms
and conditions remained unchanged.

On 31 December 2002, Yuen Fat also entered into a godown
management agreement (a's amended on 15 April 2003) with
Dragon Rider Development: Limited {*CRDL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of GRH, for the? management, by Yuen Fat, of a
godown owned by DRDL in Sham Shui Po, Kowloen. Under
the agreement, Yuen Fat had paid DRDL a monihly fee of
HK$1,700,000 (from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 200%) and
HK$2,000,000 (from 1 .IJuIy 2005 to 30 June 2008) in
consideration for the right o keep, as the service fee payable
by DROL to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all licence feas
and other payments collecied by Yuen Fat at its own expenses
from independent third parties. This agreement has the same
term as the above facilities management agreement. On 28
June 2006, this agreement was renewed by Yuen Fat for a
further term of three years commencing on 1 July 2006. The
monthly fee payable is HK$2,000,000 throughout the term and
all the other terms and copditions remained unchanged.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the aggregate receipt
of service fees payable|by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to HK$258.49$5,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$36,000.000. :




bk 28 TCop

()

gl

KR-RTEARFAAZ=H ERIMEHE
MELAnYITARAR(RAYTD S
AIATHSBEAL  ROZFALH
BR/EBERMI YRR BT LF
tTZAZ+—HEFNRMATE - HE
EERMBS - AYTHRAMEALE
ARG - A STIREEAIRE Qe
LRI A B TR B AT
RZH - A5 E—RE &R
1T - ABITRBIIRBE L@ L
AL E B A SRR AR S B
MIBEE  RPAWTRERETER
MBLE =KL AREHAER - TR
BHE—FFEANE+_A=Z+—HLt
FENRZZFHE -

Connected Transactions (continued)

(c)

Foodstuff agreements

On 3 June 2005, Ng Fung Hong Limited ("NFH"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the foodstuff
agreements for a term ending on 31 December 2007 with each
of the connected parties below in relation to the sale and/or
purchase of foodstuff products with these parties. Under the
foodstuff agreements, NFH and each of these connected
parties have agreed that in the event that any member of the
NFH group and any of these connected parties or any of its
associates enter into a foodstuff transaction, such transaction
will be conducted on normal commercial terms. The prices
paid or received by any member of the NFH group to or from
the above parties or their associates will either be at market
prices or at prices no less favourable to the NFH group than
those available to or from independent third parties. Details of
these transactions for the year ended 31 December 2006 are
summarised below.

HME-_RYAE
+-HA=+—-8
ILEFENT EREA
Amount of transactions

RRIE ) £ Wik EHH for the year ended
Connected party Reiationship Nature of transactions 31 December 2006
(%R
(HKS)
EETmAKELEORE HERBTMHBAE BERR 52,466,000
Shanghai Foodstuff A% AR R Purchase of foodstuff
Import & Export Corp. 49% shareholder of
a subsidiary of NFH
PREREGE LA FELWTHKBAST) RBEARG 70,401,000
Ceroilfood Development 20%HES AL R AVEER A Purchase of foodstuff
Company Limited an associate of a 20%
shareholder of a subsidiary
of NFH
Bk EE L T BEAYT—EHE LR HEARSD 62,202,000
China National Fisheries Gorp. AQ%IELR ARG Sale of foodstuft
49% shareholder of BERER 1,950,000

a subsidiary of NFH

Purchase of foodstuff
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(d)

(e)
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Textile agreement

On 3 June 2005, China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CRT"), a wholly-owped subsidiary of the Company,
enterad into the textile agreement with China Resources
National Corporation ("CRNC"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company, for a term [ending on 31 December 2007,
Under the textile agreement, (IJRT and CRNC have agreed that
in the event that any member of the CRT group and any
member of the CRNC group (other than the Group) enter into
a transaction of textile related merchandises, such transaction
will be conducted on normal commercial terms. The prices
received by any member of tlhe GRT group from any member
of the CRNC group will be ei]ther at market prices or at prices
no less favourable to CRT or its subsidiaries than those
available from independent third parties. For the year ended
31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of sale of textile
related merchandises to 1The CHNC group amounted tc
HK$1,195,000. ‘

Tenancy agreement |

On 3 June 2005, the Corﬁpany entered into the tenancy
agreement with CRNC, the|ultimate holding company of the
Company, for a term ending F:)n 31 December 2007. The CRNC
group is a conglomerate with significant property investments
including residential, commercial and industrial premises in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Under the tenancy agraement, the
Company and CRNC have]agreed that in the event that any
member of the Company enters into a lease arrangement with
any member of the CRNC group {other than the Group}, the
terms of the lease will be on normal commercial terms and the
lease term will not exceed 31 December 2007. The rent,
management fees and other charges set by any member of
the CRNC group to any mamber of the Group will be sither at
market prices or at prices no less favourable io the Group
than those available from Lx'1dependent third parties.

For the year enced 31 December 2006, the aggregate amount
of rental, managerment fees and other related charges payable
by the Group to the CRNC group was HK$56,384,000.



B L e

{®

3 P

R-BBAFAAZH  FAOREHER
RS R R RE D Rl A H100%ERE
HHBARESHERAR(ES
M - AR -RELF+ A=+
HiEmm RS - RERBRES - 4
LEREERERRE WAL EER
[ =ENGIEN S IR = PN
HFEHRARLERT - BERGTEAR
SHBTRLE  FTEMMRIREDRE
MEHE - B aRR TS I R R A 1 A
A —RERERGE - BEHEEM
B Bl E AT AT B B A ) AR S ML (]
BB EREEHIEERE W
FEEMETERBELE _BMRIEHN
HE - REBEE_FE F+A=+—
AIFEE - BEBRERE g A
W ER ey T R HLE AE%E5,412,0007T ©

ERZRALQT]L/HEQ A ISR A RS
MERRERZSETE TRETRSNIIER
Fre SRR BB E AR ESRIELS
RAF 144 3BT E LR AMEZ S ET

(a)

©

DT AFEEME

ToiR R G 5 A B B 1A
3T

THREERENERBFRLL (W5
FARRERHEERIER R

PRBERE_FBRREST_RA=+—
BB BRFREAAM LR -

Connected Transactions (continued)

{f)

Decoration agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the decoration
agreement with Uconia Company Limited (*Uconia"}, an
approximately 100% owned subsidiary of CRNC which in turn
is the ultimate holding company of the Company, for a term
ending on 31 December 2007. Under the decoration
agreement, the Company and Uconia have agreed that in the
evant that any member of the Company grants a gontract to
any member of the Uconia group or any of its associates for
the design, decoration and furnishing of the Group's offices,
retail outlets and investment properties, the services rendered
will be charged on normal commercial terms as described in
the decoration agreement. The prices charged by Uconia or
its subsidiaries or any of their associates to any member of
the Group will gither be at market prices or at prices no less
tavourable to the Group than those available from independent
third parties. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the
aggregate amount charged by the Uconia group or any of its
associates totalled HK$5,412,000.

The directors engaged the auditors of the Company/subsidiary to
perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The procedures were
performed solely to assist the directors of the Company to evaluate
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules whether, the

above continuing connected transactions:

(a)

(b)

had recefved the approval of the directors of the Company;

had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

had been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group,; and

had not exceedad the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2006.
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BTz L Connected Transactions (continued)

RATHEBLFNEBAE ML FLEERF The auditors of the Company/subs|diary have reported their factual
MEEEREREZE - YR TEEMAMERY findings on these procedures to tha directors that the samples the
BAYFES B R0)E - K(CPERE - auditors selected were in agreemeint in respect of items {a) and (b)
FREBMER (BTEABR T &R EEs above. In respact of item (¢), the|samples selected were, where
EMHEE - WAOBEME - HEEIZE LX) applicable, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group. In
ZANFMEZERERSNEERHIELLE - & respect of item (d), the auditors compared the aggregate amount
BESEERTABRBEE BT TR for each type of connected {ransaations as set out in section 4{a) to
=+ HEFENAMER - 4(f) above and reported that sucleh aggregate amounts had not
exceeded the relevant cap amount§ for the year ended 31 December
2006. I
RARNBRIERTNFDEMZFZS - The independent non-executive |directors of the Company have
ERRNREZ ST reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing

connected transactions have been entered into:

@ TEAEEM-—REEEEBBELZED {a) inthe ordinary and usual c!ourse of business of the Group;

5137 |
) E-RERXEIXEEHERELURS {) on normal commercial teyms or, if there are not sufficient
AR b8 B A il 5 MR I T comparable transactions, lDn terms no less favourable to the
MEZEREIE B ERERE] Group than terms availabie to or from independent third
R parties; and
© RBEZSTEEAEBTHRHAELATSE (c) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them
EREF2TRRBMA S ERK on terms that are fair and|reasonable and in the interests of
HRAA the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
REOLEIRETAE Subsidiaries and Associates
ROEEAELZAZ—A - B ERERBEL Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
B HEER TN E 161 EEH 1698 - December 2006 are set out on pages |161 to 169.
ZLERMOMEZRSELD Transactions in Securities of the Company and Subsidiaries
AR FIRFEACBETTIE L WA 2 AR R R Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
BERTZE=1T—R - Company are set out in note 31 to tha financial statements.

AAFIHHEMB L RREFALERE - DEiia Naither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
HRF)T] LHE S any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as reguired under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers and the aggregate turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less than 30% of
the Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Details of the significant post balance events of the Group are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

Auditors
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tehmatsu will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Yip Wah, Peter
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 4 Aprit 2007
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
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FEHETE R FRRN AT F 1606 )
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, ILIMITED
{incorporated in Hong Kong with Ifmi!eol’ fiabifity)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited (the "Company”} and jts subsidiaries {collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages {85 to 162, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2006,
and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes. ;

Directors’ responsibility for t‘he consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are resp:ransible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these copsolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
QOrdinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethicat
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consoli.c:ated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

|
|
|
|
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers interna! control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our epinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2006 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Pubiic Accountants

Hong Kong
4 April 2007

84 MR LB China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 F 4§




e EmE !
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

#EF 2006 €12 B 31 B[ For the year ended 31 December 2006

|
|
| ZRUR —RBAHE
2006 2005
e BEEET BEEET
Notes HKS$ million HK$ million
“ (E51)
| {(Restated)
|
=1l Turnover 5 65,437 53,891
HERE Cost of sales | {54,211) {44,608)
|
EH Gross profit | 11,226 9,193
HAth e A Other income 6 ' 1,833 1,673
MR HTA Selling and distribution expenses . (6,772) (5,452)
—RERITRER General and administrative expenses {2,297) {2,153)
MR A Finance costs 7 (454) {440)
RIS o R RHUBER Share of net results of associates 333 354
BREL AT Profit before taxation | 3,969 3,175
W Taxation 12 ' (644) {557}
AR Profit for the year 8 3,325 2,618
SFER Attributable to:
AR EAELE Shareholders of the Company 2,776 2,220
RIS B HE SR Minerity interests : 549 398
[
3,325 2,618
—— —_—
FhRA% Earnings per share 14
P23 Basic  HK$1.19 HK$1.02

B Diluted HKS$1.17 HK$1.00
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e EEAER
Consolidated Balance Sheet

FA2006 12 31 H At 31 December 2006

E i) 73

BEEE

—REYHE

—HEE AR ERD
Tl ek

~Hi¥E - WEBRRE

RS

HivBA A E

R NR) MR

ERA

ARE]

BRRERE

bid i) 3

TE

B 5 R H AR IR
PTEERTA

TR EHIE
RERRTTEE

ROAR

B RAEMENRE
PTAEERmIA
EEER

FEf iR

HER RN

SRERADHAM
ERBAM
RHAM
EAEHA AT

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

- Investment properties

- Interests in leasehold land held

for own use under operating leases
- QOther property, plant and equipment

Goodwil

Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Available for sale investments
Frepayments

Deferred taxation assets

Current assets

Stocks

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Taxation recoverable

Cash and bank balances

Current liahilities

Trade and other payables
Cerivative financial instruments
Short term loans

Taxation payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Long term liabilities

Deferred taxation liabilities
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Notes

15

15
15
16
17
20
21
22
30

23
24
25

26

27
25
29a

29b
30

ZUURE —BThE
2006 2005
BYEET EB¥EET
HK$ million HKS million
(&5
(Restated)
5,899 5,402
1,950 2,060
15,191 13,974
3,481 3,084
113 630
1,153 1,070
53 77
487 411
123 140
28,430 26,848
6,725 6,490
5,366 5,616
163 70
14 22
7,056 6,926
19,324 19,124
{12,554} (11,550)
(167) (85)
{4,997) (5,169}
(208) (234)
(17,926) (17,038}
1,398 2,086
29,828 28,934
(3,840) (5,040)
{1,023) (951)
24,965 22,943




R R i

B

=3
X0 R (GRS
g bl

L+

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

EQUAE

Equity attributable to shareholders

of the Company
Minority interests

Total equity

B Chen Shulin
T Director

—“BERAF

2006 2005

BisE EMEERT BEEBT

Notes HKS$ million HKS million

(&)

{Restated)

31 2,358 2,233

32 16,783 15,963
1

19,141 18,196

. 5,824 4,747

24,965 22,943

£4% Keung Chi Wang, Ralph

B E Director
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BERER
Balance Sheet

2006 12 F31 HAt 31 December 2006

FERERE Non-current assets

EEEE Fixed assets

—EEmR - Investment properties

—Hfutn - #ERRERH - Other property, plant and equipment
ol N el Interests in subsidiaries

FEh R Current assets

BSEHMWEKIIE Trade and other receivables

e BFITEE Cash and bank balances

AR Current liabilities

BB RRbESRIE Trade and other payables

i AREiA] Taxation payable

REEESE Net current assets
HEERHBAaR Total assets less current liabilities
ERBDAR MNon-current liabilities

RIEBTHA MR Deferred taxation liabilities
BERMHE Capital and reserves

AR 4 Share capital

35 Reserves

F#i# Chen Shulin
I8 Director

88 HERAEHFR 2 B China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 < §

fiist
Notes

15
15
18

24
26

27

30

31
32

18,361

ZOURE —FTRE
2006 2005
BYEET A¥OHET
HK$ million HKS million
L) 51
5 5
16,684 15,794
16,740 15,850
1,079 281
622 1,652
1,701 1,933

{71) (238)

1) (6)

{72) (244)
1,629 1,689
18,369 17,539

8 (8)
18,361 17,531
2,358 2,233
16,003 15,298
17,531

B4EE Keung Chi Wang, Ralph

ItIE Director



EARETER |
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement i

B 2006 4F 12 A 31 HFEF For the year ended 31 December 2006 |

|_.5307‘<$ ZBERF
’ 2006 2005
1533 SemEER AENAEL
Notes |HK&B million HKS$ million
! (EF)
| (Restated)
__r.—_..——-—
gEEHzREnRk Cash flows from operating activities !
HEEmBsRE Cash generated from operations 33A | 5,388 3,951
B EEREE Hong Kang Profits Tax paid I (208) (215)
APl kiR ES Chinese Mainiand income tax paid ,‘ (332) (193)
(EARE:AIF TS Overseas profit tax paid | ) (5)
RIBEHENE Hong Kang Profits Tax refunded | 7 4
RRPEAMAEE Chinese Mainland income tax refunded 2 -
EREHZRAEFNTH Net cash from operating activities | 4,855 3,542
I
BEEHZRERR Cash flows from investing activities |
W ETEEMEBRA Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets | 184 468
LB ERERER Proceeds from disposal of and repayment |
AEREZRE from available for sale investments | 1 117
EREBLAIRE Dividends received from associates | 206 216
P ERERR Dividends received from available
for sale investments ! 7 5
B4 Fe Interest received ! 269 170
BAEEEE Purchase of fixed assets | {3,127) (2,861}
HitE&ES Prepayment for rental deposit i {57) (57}
BHiSEBEMERED Prepayments on purchase of interests in [
TR HA S leasehold iand held for own use under i
operating leases i (56) -
ekl i) F YN $ R S Disposal of subsidiaries/business (net of |
HEZ R REGEE) cash and cash equivalent disposed of)  33B ' 1,970 497
CEBEARMERE Proceeds from disposal of associates | 8 739
WS A B, /55 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
(R MR RER {net of cash and cash equivalents !
REEH) acquired) 33C ! (583) {300)
B EIEE Acquisition of additional interests !
in subsidiaries | {17) (23)
AROEEHZ SR Net cash used in investing activities {1,195) {1,028)
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#i2 2006 ¥ 12 A 31 81+ £ For the year endad 37 December 2006

RMRAZH2RERR
EREE
EfRHBLRLHERE

ZB2
ENRARARA
EfFE
JITERABARIEER
BRTREAEEMGHRE
IURRITEHBERE
BERANRZAESTE

PEBHEA

RRBRED2 B35

AREREEGEND
ERREzEE

R—A—HZRAERASEE

R+ZA=+—-B2H%
BB HE

RaRRaBEEMZ 7

RERBRITRER

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to minority shargholders
of subsidiaries
Finance lease charges paid
Interest paid
Net proceads from issue of ordinary shares
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Capital elements of finance leasa rental
payment
Contribution from minority shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effact on foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cagh and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and

cash equivalents
Cash and bank halances
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ZRARE —“2EAF
2006 2005
BEERT HEHET
HKS million HKS$ million
(E5)

(Restated)
(3,265) (640)
(156) (177}
)] (1)

{786) (304)
1,107 436
10,110 6,880
(11,245) (6,684)
] {2)

633 17
(3,610} (475)

50 2,038

80 34

6,926 4,854
7,056 6,926

7,056

6,926




RARFHESE R |
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equn{cy

#E 2006 ¥ 12 F 31 B 1L F /& For the year ended 31 December 2006

| Vi |
L3 ama
FLARNAERR : Moty Tota
Equity attributabla to shareholders of the Company [ interests equity
RRES !
HREa |
Employes BR !
RE  BEEM  GEBR shembased  KEUE O HABE  HR6R |Eﬁiﬁ
Share Share  Valuation compensafon Warant Hedge  Exctange Retained &4
capital presmium reserve Teserve reserve reserve reserve | profits Tota)

FUEET  AYEET  AYEER  AMEER  AMEAT  AMoNR  AREER  [BNTER  AYNAAL  RNBRER  REAAR
HKmiion  HKBmilion  HKSmiion  HKEmTon  HKEmZon  HKSmdlon  HKEmTon !mmm HKEmon  HKEmZn  HKSmDon

RISBAE A Jamay 2006

-B-B 228 1524 4 5 18 3 o3 16,198 474 294
geae Exchange e adfustments - - - - - - %3 | - # 126 49
TERE Fai vie adustient on i

AAERE  avalabs for sal ivestments - - 2 - - - - . 2 - 2

BRGLER  Recoguoon of changesn
TARRME  tarvave ondervative

98 francial instruments - - - - [14}

{14)

(14} -

EEERBEE  NetincomeTexpenss)

2EARE recogrised drectly in equiy - - 2 - - 14 % - 351 1% a
RRUETEEH  Release upon scttement of

IARHY  devae traca '

siunents - - - - - o - - o - @
ALEMOAR  Reease doe todisposal o |

mid subsidiaries - - - - - - 45} | - 5} - 145)
RERERY  Proft atributatle to shareholders - - - - - - - 2,116 3776 549 335
AEEPEE o reoogused income and '

§3:1] expenses fof e year - - 2 - - 18) ng | 2,776 3,080 875 3755
EAABARG  Shore ssued al peamim 125 e - - - - - - 3,108 - 1,108
BEERRA  Snare fssue expenses - ) - - - - | - {l} - (i)
BREAAT  Acquiston of ubsidaries - - - - - - - - - 5 53
BAMOLE  Puchase of adtiond imerest '

§a i subsidiaries - - - - - - -l - - o) o
BEMERT  Dispesa of subdiaries - - - - - - - - - 19 in9)
ROBEALE  Rosase upon repayment of '

IAKa compound friancial

stuments - - - - (168) - -| 168 - - -
L) Divdands - - - - - - X 13,265 (5.266) {156] (3421)
SRREER  Contrution fom minory |
sharsholckrs - - - - - - - - - 633 £33
REDBEEE  Erpues s opion el i i . 7 i i . i 2 ) %
125 %2 2 P (168) {15) 315' (3z1) s 3077 iz
l
RoR¥AE A 31 Decerwer 2006 |
+2Bz1-6 2368 12606 6 168 - {13) 506 3510 19,141 5824 24,065
e}
|
|
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B Z 2006 F 12 31 B 1HFF For the year ended 31 December 2006

R-991%
-R-8

Eta2

HRiEER
IR%GE
i

EREZARE
ZHARE
REREAY

AEREER
10

EAGRARG

KBRDAF

BRRDAF
g
EERDLE
i

BB

SEREER

EARRIEN

B-B95E

o
REgs s
$ATENALRE Minodty Total
Equity attributable to sharehoiders of the Company interests equity
REES
L]
Employes Bk
R:  BOUN  GHEH sheebased  HEHE 20 HAHE 00 ERHE 0 S8R
Share Share  Valuation  compensation Warrani Hedge  Exchange  Retained it
capital premiun reserve fesenve reserve TESEIVe reserve profits Tota)
A¥EHE  A¥AER ABAER  BYEER  ANEER  AMERR  REZAER  RMABRR  ANEER  AYAER  BREER
HiGmifon  HKmZon  HKSmZon  HKSmon  HKSae  HKSeTme  HSmSon  HISmTon  Riafon HGaTon  HKS«m
At 1 January 2005
28 10837 2 92 168 {27 9 2,248 15250 4812 20,062
BEUBRARE Share of rmserves i associates - - 2 - - - - 5 7 - 7
Exchange rate adustments - - - - - - 179 - 179 It 83
Recoorition of fa vaue gan
on dervative francial
instruments - - - - - K] - - Kl - k)
Net income recogrised drectly
hequty - - 2 - - X i ] 216 74 20
Profi attriouiabls to sharshoiders - - - - - - - 220 220 39 2,618
Total recognised inogme and
expenses for the year - - 2 - - 3 179 2225 243 472 2.908
Share issued at premom i o7 - - - - - - 1097 - 1,087
Acquisition of subsiriaries - - - - - - - - 2 2
Purchase of additonal interest
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - {346) (3481
Relose: due o dsposal of
Subsiiaries - - - - - - - - (33 )
Dividends - - - - - - - 840) (645 {177 B
Contifbution from ménorty
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 7 i
Employes share option benetis - - - 5 - - - - 5 - 8
10 887 ? 53 - 0 179 1,585 2946 {£5) 2883
Ai 31 December 2005
223 11,624 4 145 168 3 158 3831 18,196 LELH

+-A=1-H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

F
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REERRA
FREN-EREFELRM Lz LMRR] - R
B REEREZSHERAT (BREMD L
e MERAR_FEAFET_HZ+-H8
B ITHR 2 Rl R B B MR S A 4
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R A A B F A -

FEMTERTETE - S ARNIRE
B0k DEERNEAARBHMEMR
H-ARTZTEEBAYERARNERE
B R ERBATREE SRz R THIE
REIBIRAEE169R »

MHEERNEE

BE-BERET AT -BULFEMER
WEDRBEALARBEHRAGS - BT M
ST ERRESRIEAN - MRS R
HBERAFETIRR -

o FAMIEHRE BIERRMESF TR
EERLAVIRECEABBER -

EAMEDY

EURFE - SEEARREHTROERET
FHEREAR - DEFAEEGERITNNE
EFEMNEERES AT ERERES
REFINEOAERRR -

HIBBRAF—A—Bit  FREEREBAR
EH R ERRRAEES R (g E
RIIJ) E30 S T L RE S TR A A A 2R | P 1L
Flaths - EERAERLLHIE GHER HaEH
[RER A LB RS s EHEHITTRE AT E S R R
ERBTT -

RIBLLBI& 6% - R MG SRR T R ey
HE - AMPUE SRR RN EELREER
MgmEP e RETAE G0 -

General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
{the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company as at 31 December 2006 to be China Resources National
Corporation ("CRNC"}, a company established in the Chinese
Mainland. The addraess of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food processing
and distribution, textite, property investment and petroleum and
related products distribution businesses. The principal activities of
the Company are property investment and investment holding, and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown
on pages 161 to 169.

Basic of preparation of the financial statements

The financial staterments for the year ended 31 December 2006 have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal accounting
policies as set out in nete 2, the financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Change in Accounting Policy

In prior years, interests in jointly controfled entities were accounted
for using the equity method, which are stated on the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group's share of net assets of the entities plus
goodwill arising on acquisitions, fess any identified impairment loss.

With effect from 1 January 2006, the Group adopts the proportionate
consolidation method as set out in the Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS™) 31 “Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities" for
the recognition of interests in jointly controlled entities. The Directors
of the Company consider that the use of proportionate consclidation
method better reflects the substance and economic reality of the
Group’s interests in jointty controlled entities.

Under the proportionate consolidation method, the Group's share
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses of joint controlled entities
is combined on a ling-by-line basis with simitar items in the Group's
financial statements.
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General (continued)

Change in Accounting Policy (continued)

Although the change in accounting policy does not have any effect
on the Group's net assets as at 31 December 2005 and the Group's
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2005, it would result in certain changes in individual
line items of the consolidated accounts. The new accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively and the comparatives have been
restated accordingly. Details of the accounting policy are set out in
note 2C.

(it  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances
(1} Effect on the consolidated profit and loss account for
the year ended 31 December 2005

WiaH
—R%InE  PBH2ES
2005 Effectof Z—RYRE
(88 changein 2005
{As previously accounting (XF)
reported) policy {As restated)
AEEHT AMAET A¥AAER
HKS million  HKS milion  HKS million
Turnover 53,584 307 53,891
Cost f sales {44,439} {259} {44,698}
Gross profit 9,145 48 9,193
Cther income 1,661 12 1,673
Selling and distribution expenses (5,449) 3) (5,452)
General and administrative expenses {2,102) {51) (2,153}
Finance costs {439} (] (440}
Share of net results of jointly
controlled entities 5 5) -
Share of net results of associates 354 - 354
Profit bafore taxation 3475 - 3475
Taxation {557} - (557}
Profit for the year 2,618 - 2,618
Attribuiable to:
Shareholders of the Company 2,220 - 2,220
Minonity interests 398 - 398

2,618 - 2,618
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B OaREEReE G C Change in Accounting Policy (continued)
() HIRRERDESED {)  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances
(continued)
2y R-BBAFT-A=+-HEKA& (2) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
REAMRZREE December 2005

WitEE

—BenE BEZEE
2005 Effectof Z—QBVHE
(RMEE®@)  changein 2005
{As previously  accounting (H)
reported) policy (As restated)

E¥EET EXEBR A%AEx
HK$ milien  HK$ million  HK$ million

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Invesiment properties 5,402 - 5,402
- Interests in leasehold land
held for own use under

operating leases 2,055 5 2,060
- Other property, plant

and equipment 13,398 576 13,974
Goodwil 3,084 - 3,084
Other intangible assets 227 403 630
Interests in jointly controlled entities 806 (896} -
Interests in associates 1,070 - 1,070
Available for sale investments 58 15 77
Prepayments 411 - 411
Deferred taxation assats 140 - 140
26,741 107 26,848

Current assets

Stocks 6,473 17 6,490
Trade and other receivables 5,487 129 5616
Derivative financial instruments 70 - 70
Taxation recoverable 22 - 22
Cash and bank balances 6,668 258 5,926

18,720 404 19,124
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-, —fRUITI{ED 1. General {continued)

A EHBROBE C  Change in Accounting Policy (continued)
()  EFETHRETEEED fii  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances
(continuedy)
2 R-BEAFL-_A=1+—H8F (2) Effect on the consclidated balance sheet as at 31
SEERMRZERED December 2005 (continued)

BHEH
—B9IE DPEZEY
2005 Effectof —BBRE

(B#28) changein 2005
{As previously accounting (R3)
reported) policy {As restated)

AKAET E¥EET  A%EER
HKS million  HK$ million  HKS$ million

#ABAR Current liabilities
BRREGREATE Trade and other payables {11,268) {282) {11,550}
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments {85) - (85)
RHER Short term loans (5,169) - (5,169)
LARE] Texation payable 234) - {234)
(16,756) (082)  (17.038)
ROAESE Net current assets 1,064 122 2,085
SHEREBAR Total assets less current liabilities 28,705 229 28,934
ERBAR Non-current liabilities
YAt Long term liabilities (4,811) (229) {5,040)
ERBAAR Deferred taxation liabifities {851} - {951)
22,943 - 22,043
BEREH Capital and reserves
i Share capital 2,233 - 2,233
i Reserves 15,963 - 15,863
EATRFMEES Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 18,196 - 18,196
TRERES Minority interests 4,747 - 4,747
-5 Total equity 22,943 - 22,843
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General (continued)

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards and

Interpretation

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued

a number of new and revised HKAS and Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"} that are effective or available for

early adoption for the financial year beginning 1 January 2006. in

the current year, the Group has adopted the following amendments

and interpretation, which are relevant to the Group's operations for

the financial year ended 31 December 20086.

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash Flow Hedges Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
(Amendment)

HKFRS Intrepretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

The adoption of the above amendments and interpretation had no
material effects on the Group's and the Company's results and
financial position and did not result in substantial changes to the
Group's accounting policies. No prior year adjustment has been
made.

Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendment and interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective. The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these standards, amendment or interpretations wil
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 8

HKFRS Interpretation 7

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Operating Segments

Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 “Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies”

HKFRS Interpretation 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HKFRS Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

HKFRS Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS Interpretation 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HKFRS Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements
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Principal Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements of the Company and of all its direct and indirect
subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group's interests in jointly
controlled entities and associates on the basis set out in notes 2C
and 2D below. The results of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associaies acquired or disposed of during the year are included
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. All material intra-group transactions and
balances have been gliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or
indirzctly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls
more than half of the veting power, or where the Company controls
the composition of its board of directors or equivalent governing
body. In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture held as a long term
investment and a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to
joint control. The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using proportionate consolidation method. Under the proportionate
consolidation method, the Group combines its share of the jointly
controlled entities' individual income and expenses, assets and
liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-ling basis with simitar items in
the consclidated financial statements. The Group recognises the
portion of gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the
jointly controlled entity that it is attributable to the other venturers,
The Group does not recognises its share of profits and losses from
the jeintly controlled entity that result from the Group's purchase of
assets from the jointly controlled entity until it resells the assets to
an independent party. However, a loss on the transaction is
recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction
in the net realisable value of current assets, or an impairment loss.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets
and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in
associates are stated at the Group's share of net assets of the
associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect
the policy on goodwill in note 2E.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consclidation represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, labilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiary/jointly controlled entity/an associate at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date
and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
and is not reversed in a subsequent period. On subsequent disposal
of a subsidiary, a jointly controlled entity or an asscciate, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 - “Business Combinations”
prospectively from 1 January 2005. Goodwill arising on acquisitions
prior ta 1 January 2001 continues to be recognised as a deduction
from equity and should not be recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account when the Group disposes of all or part of the
business to which that goodwill relates or when a cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after
1 January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such
goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the
gocdwill relates may be impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, a
jointly controlled entity or an associate represents the excess of the
Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/jointly controlled
entity/an associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of
acquisition. Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary and jointly
controlled entity are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit
and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition
of an associate is included as income in the determination of the
Groups' share of results of associate in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”,
“loans and receivables” and "held-to-maturity financiat assets”
dependent on the purpose for which the assets are acquired.
Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabiiities at fair value
through profit or loss” and financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (other financial liabilities).
Details of classifications and measurements are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and have two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

{b)

fc)
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not gquoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the eifective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group's management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed on initial
recognition. If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit
and loss account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities {continued)

@

fe)

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in nen-current assets uniess
management intends to dispose of the investment within twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities, that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably. These available
for sale investments are stated at cost less impairments. Apart
from this, available for sale investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
baing recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recegnised in the profit and loss
account.

An impairment 1oss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the equity investment is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the equity
investment and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a sirmilar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in
subsequent periods. Any subseguent increase in the fair value
of such equity investments is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

At each balance shest date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the profit and loss account in the period in which
they arise.
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2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
F Financial assets and liabilities (continued}

{H

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subseguently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are classified separately into respective
liability and equity components on initial recognition. On initial
recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the embedded call option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is included in
warrant reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component will remain in warrant reserve
until the embedded option is exercised. Where the opticn
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
the warrant reserve will be transferred to the retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss upon conversion
or expiration,

G Fixed Assets

@

{b)
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investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in
respect of which construction work has been completed and
which are held for long term rental and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are carried in the balance sheet
at their fair value. Changes in fair value of investment properties
are recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the
period in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, rent or administrative purposes or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all construction
expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and
other relevant expenses directly atiributable to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete
and the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.
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2. Principat Accounting Policies {continued)
G  Fixed Assets (continued}

{c)

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and construction
in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method. The residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each batance sheet
date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being 20 to 50 years

- Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or aver the

unexpired term of lease,

whichaver is shorter
510 15 years

10 years

510 25 years

3to 10 years

310 8 years

- Vessels

- Cold storage facilities

- Plant and machinery

- Furniture and equipment
- Motor vehicles

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of
other property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss account.

104 A% SR 25 China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Repori 2006 3§




FUOMHBIED

B BEEREME

(T) HARE

iy REBRIBOBECLEE
REFABZEEABHLOERE
ARz AR S RIERS O
Hz AEJIFIRIBREANES
RIEBEENER - SOFIEERR
AEZBEFETRERRAR
HES - YRR AEUBRE
BIE - I THEAZZRRESR
FEAR - mASATEBIERPD

iy BREBEOHEM
FREHTFTHEAEMGEIH R
BRERRy AEETIORESE
B ARE -

BEANZBAFWRARRRE G0k
E R R g R OMER
R fEe 2 #28) 75 BRI a8 49
MU ESEERSRER  FHS
—EBRERERAF S RNEHEE
A HIERIR -

B AN T i 2 AR AR TR
HREESZEERE - HESRS
@ MR TEUR -

(%) BEREZHE

RELTR - RHEREEFRBETR
AMEISIMIBEERECERE - AH
BAVEZ EMEREINAEZE - {7
BLRTAERE  AHREEMHTRE
BES T UAGE - (R ERAE
BRI R EERAEE A B &
o RITREE R RERER -

MR REBERERSE - AZERED
RRIH {8 £ 18 00 2 S 0 AT RO {5t T @ B
B MZAREROEETRRBER
AEMIB T E Y SRS EERAT
FHAREE - MESEREDHERRD
B EENFER ARER -

2.

G

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Fixed Assets (continued)

(el

fe)
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Leased assets

()  Assets acquired under finance leases
Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
incident to ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases and are accounted for as if purchased
whereby an amount equivalent to cost is recorded as
fixed assets and as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided in accordance with the Group’s
depreciation policy. Payments to the lessor are treated
as consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest
element is charged to the profit and loss account.

(i} ~ Operating lease charges
All teasas which do not transfer subxstantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income or expense ariging from operating leases
(net of any benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease) is recognised
in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the periods of the respective leases except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of the user's benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as
an investment property.

Impairment of fixed assets

At gach batance sheet date, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that fixed assets other than investment properties
are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are recognised
in the profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subseguently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the profit
and loss account in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on the straight line
method over their useful lives with amortisation commences when
the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of other
intangible assets with definite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names 10 to 20 years
Patent royalty . 50 years

These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each balance
sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts, Where indication of impairment exists, an impairment loss
is charged to profit and loss to reduce the assets to its recoverable
ameunt. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverabie amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amecunt that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance shest liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounis in the financial
statements, with limited excepticns. Deferred taxation assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case
of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling price
less all further costs of production and the related costs of marketing,
selling and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at each
balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as effective
hedging instruments. The Group has entered into two types of hedge
relationships, including fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

(a)  Fair value hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognised asset or lability or an unrecognised firm
commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the profit
and loss in the periods in which fair value changes arise.

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows
that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the
effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the changes
in fair value of hedging instruments is initially recognised in
equity and transferred to the profit and loss account when the
hedged item affects the profit and loss account. The ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the proiit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging {continued)

(b) Cash flow hedges (continued)
For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the associated gains or losses are removed
from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives
that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are classified as
held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken directly to the
profit and loss account.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business and net of
discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss
account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer {i.e. the
guarantor} to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantes (the "holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideraticn is
recognised in consolidated profit and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged
to the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except for costs
that are dirgctly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are ¢apitalised as part of the cost of that assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated foan facilities and debt
securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Principal Accounting Policies {continued)

Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity {foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the profit
and loss account in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of
the Group's net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevalling at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit and logs account in the period which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continugad)

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and other
participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for shares of
the Company in accordance with the Company’s share option
scheme. The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (employee share-based
compensation reserve).

Critical Accounting Estimates

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually by
independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or
calculated on the net rental income and allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisation rates of the
net rental income. These estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwilt

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2E. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have been
determined either based on value-in-use calculations ar the cash-
generating units' fair value less costs to sell. Details of the calculation
are disclosed in Note 16.

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 20086, a deferred tax asset of HK$54 million
{2005: HK$76 million) in relation to unused tax losses has been
recegnised in the Group's balance shest. The recognition of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in the profit and 10ss account in which such a
reversal takes places.
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Financial Risk Objective and Policies

The Group's activities expose it t0 a variety of financial risk: credit
risk, liquidlity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, bank batances and
derivative financial instruments entered into.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Sales to retail customers are made in cash
or via majer credit cards. The Group has na significant concentration
of credit risk; with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

In respect of transactions to use derivative financial instruments to
mitigate the Group's market risk, the Group have procedures and
policies in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s ability to fund prospective investment opportunities and
existing debt requirements is achieved by maintaining surplus cash
and the availability of adequate committed funding lines from high
quality financial institutions.

Interest rate risk

To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in
a preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and review regularly. To
avoid undue concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest
rate swaps to mitigate current and future corporate profitability from
interest rate volatility.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong
and have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

The Group also had foreign currency exposure arising from the
borrowings denominated in US dollars. Apart from forward foreign
exchange contracts as set out in Note 25 to meet these liabilities,
the Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
management wiil consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.
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i UGLDGIRSLITIH 5. Turnover and Segment Information
ZQURE —EFAF
2006 2005
BEGET AREET
HK$ rmillion HK$ miliion
(&5
(Restated)
BRBESLTIRAKNBAT Turnover represents sales by
RREFZHN the Company and its subsidiaries
BERATIHBEZHA : and share of jointly controlled
entities to outside customers and
comprises revenue from:
HERS Sales of goods 63,235 52,061
RERMRE LA Rendering of services and others 1,854 1,526
HelA Rental income 345 206
HeEmsE Sales of properties 3 8
65,437 53,891
FTERBEE-EERNS Primary reporting format - business segments
RANI BARER
iel 35
Foed Petroteurn #RR
Processing BROZ andRelated  APBRE
1. |4 and B8 Investment  Products lovestments 1] &t
Retal  Beverage Distibution Textile  Property Distribution and Others  Elimination Total
BYEEL BMEER BNEER  BMEEn  BMEEn  AMEEm  AMEEr  B%aEEn A¥EER
HSmion  HKSmifon  HKSmiion HKSmiion  HKSmifon HKSmifon HKSmiion  HKSmilion  HKS milion
BE-R®5E+2A Far the year ended
=+-BiLER 31 December 2006
BRE TURNOYER
HE External sales 20,363 9,432 5,769 4453 30 25100 - - 66,437
SHREe Inter-segiment sales” 55 23 33 - ] - 430) -
A Totat 20,418 9455 6,792 4453 349 25,100 - (430 65,437
HERG Segment result 467 753 359 169 19 (1) 3390
FEARHRAZE Uneflocated corporate expenses 80)
HEBA Interest income 273
Hepanz/ it on disposal of subsidiaries/
2RAEw business 517
Hina Financa costs {454)
HIERSLREARE Share of net results of associates - - 1 3) - %5 3
ik Taxation i644)
L3 i Profit for the year 3,325
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i DOGEBRSLTIHED 5,
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Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Primary reporting format - business segments {continued)

ST BARER
BER ERER
Food Petrofeum B#&R
Processing BEMR andRelated  XBER
4} & and #8  Investment  Products Investments &
Retal  Beverage Distribution Textle  Property Distribution  and Others Total
A%IET  AKEER ANEER  ANEER  ANMEER  ANBAR  B¥EER B%RER
HKS mion  HKSmiion  HKSmiion  H<Smilon HKSmilion  HéSmilion  HKSmilion  HKS mifion
o 2 7 As at 31 December 2006
+ZF=t+-8
it ASSETS
SEER Seqmen assets 12,207 13,700 3.9% 4,108 6,752 37 55 45,198
REBRAZGE interests in associates - - 186 44 - - 923 1,153
RREGEE Defarred taxation assats in
TREHR Taxation recoverable 14
FRHBNLRAE UnaBocated corporate assets 1,266
GORES Consolidated total assets 47,754
Al LIABILITIES
FHAf Seqment liabilities 5,828 5024 1,154 1,605 3 2,1% 4 17,039
it Tasalion payable 208
AREZAT Deered laxation Sabiities 1,023
FHABNDTAR Unallocated corporate liabilties 4518
BaARER Consofidated fotal fabilities 22,788
HikH OTHER INFORMATION
AERR Capital expenditure 1214 1,744 148 452 165 216 i 3940
HERRE Depreciation and amariisation 547 563 144 182 4 127 1 1,558
FESHESR Impairment loss racognisad 2 13 - 4 - - - 2%
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5. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Primary reporting format - business segments (continued)

REEI DHRER
RER 25N
Food Petroleum #ER
Pracessing RENR andRelated  HBRE
] ] £a and B8 Iwestment  Products Ivestments L3t sk
Retail  Beverage Distribution Textile  Property Distibution and Others  Elimination Total
AEAER  AMEER  AYEER RYRER  RERAL  AMEER BMEER  EREm  AKEER
HéSmilion  HKSmiion  HKSmilon  HKSmilon  HkSmilon  HKSmilion  HkSmiion  HKEmiion  HKS milion
E3)
{Restated)
For the year ended
31 Decemnber 2005 (Restated)
TURNOVER
External sales 16,111 6,846 5522 4291 a7 20,847 - - 53881
Inter-segment sales’ 9 ] 102 - 2 - - (227} -
Total 16,202 6,855 5624 429 299 20,847 - [227) 53,891
Segment result 348 535 502 175 796 813 [49) 3120
Unatocated comorate expenses 0]
Fair value gain on derivates
fnancia) instruments 48
Interest income 173
Finance costs (44D}
Share of net results of associates - - 19 - - 9} 344 - 354
Taxation (557)
Profit for the year 2618
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As at 31 December 2005
{Restated)

ASSETS
Segment assets
Interests in associates
Defemed taxation assets
Taxation rooverable
Unalocated comorate assels

Consolidated total assets

LIAEILITIES
Segment liabiliies
Taxation payable
Defemed taxation iablities
Unatocated comyrate Labilties

Consalidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expanditurs

Depreciation and amartisation
Inpairment loss recognised

5. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Primary reporting format - business segments (continued)
AEET baRER
RS BER
Food Petroleum RiE
Processing RESS andRelated  RAKE

n ) and 58 Investment  Products Investments st
Retail  Beverage Distribution Textile  Property Distribution  and Others Tolal
BHEET  AMBEL AYAET  B¥EET  R%EER  BY¥RER  AMOERn  ANEEX
HKS millon  HKSmilion  HKSmilon  HXSmiion  HKSwmillon  HKSmifion  HKSmilion  HKS miion
(85
{Restated)
10,466 9,962 3730 4,462 6,165 7,658 291 42,754
4 - 213 7 - 19 761 1,070
140
2
1,936
45972
5178 3,389 1,008 1,761 38 431 4 16,629
2
951
5215
23,029
1,142 657 2 220 355 252 1 2,861
427 521 128 187 2 150 3 1,39
5 i - - - - 48 123

-

Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates
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Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

@k HipER
E# Chinese Other =HS
Hong Keng Mainland  Countries Total
AEGET #¥GER A%EEn AMEER
HKS$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million  HK$ million
Tumover for the year
ended 31 December
2006 23,441 38,786 3,210 65,437
As at 31 December
2006
Segment assets 13,182 29,888 2,128 45,168
Additions to
segment assets 161 3,676 103 3,840
Turnover for the year
ended 31 December
2005 {Restated) 20,961 30,140 2,790 53,891
As at 31 December
2005 (Restated)
Segment assets 13,154 27,707 1,893 42,754
Addiions to
segment asseis 130 2,623 108 2,861
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6.

7.

Other Income

Other income incluces the following:

Dividends from unlisted available for
sale investmenis

Interest income

Discount on acquisition recognised

Valuation gain on investment
properties

Fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
business

Profit on disposal of interests
in associates

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Profit on disposal of available for sale
investments

Finance Costs

Interest on finance leases

Interest on bank loans and other loans
wholly repayable within five years

Interest on other loans not wholly
repayable within five years

Financing charges

Less: Amount capitalised in cost of
qualifying assets”

—QVRE ZRERE
2006 2005
EEEHET BREETL
HK$ million HKS million
(&FI)

(Restated)

7 5

273 173

- 48

528 489

108 48

517 -

1 64

§ 316

- 94
—QURE ZBRhF
2006 2005
AEREER E¥EER
HK$ million HK$ million
(B3

(Restated)

1 1

438 393

5 12

13 38

457 444
3) (4)

454 440

The amount capitalised represents the borrowing cost of loans which

are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining the qualifying

assets.
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8. Profit For the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Auditors' remuneration

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)

Depraciation

- Owned assets

- Ascets held under finance leases

(included in general and
administrative expenses)

Impairment loss recognised on
fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on
available for sale investments

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses)

Operating leases charges on land
and buildings*

Cost of goods sold

And after crediting:
Gross rental income
Less: Related out-goings

Net rental income

—QURE —BERE
2006 2005
AREEL BEEET
HK$ million HKS million

(E5)

{Restated)

24 20

3,681 3,114
1,515 1,338

12 4

24 74

- 49

K} 56

1,244 1,098
53,750 44190
345 296
{33) {28)

32 268

Incluging contingent rent of HK$186 million {2005: HK$160 million).
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ole 9. Directors’ Emoluments

—QURE “RERF
2006 2005
AEaET BEHHT
HK$ miltion HK$ mitlion
e Fees 1.12 0.97
BEAFS k2 Basic salaries and allowances 13.19 14.42
DIREHR Provident fund contributions 1.15 113
SACEiZAN Bonus paid 4.0 4,97
19.47 21.49
AR R 3 Share-based payment - -
B b4
Fees Other Emoluments
BEi&
R AREHE It 5
Basic Provident Bit
Salaries and Fund SR ait 2005
hat 2 ¢ 2006 Allowances  Contributions Bonus paid' Total Total
RAXEER AREER A¥XBER AYEER BEEEL BEEBT
j § §:2] Name of director HK3 million HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million HKS milion
P Song Lin 0.05 1.81 0.23 0.95 3.04 2.74
BB Chen Shuiin 005 .71 0.10 0.83 269 2.32
8% Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 0.05 248 0.27 0.46 3.26 3.03
s Wang Qun 0.05 1.07 0.08 0.70 190 1.18
BIE Lau Pak Shing 0.05 2.96 0.33 0.62 3.96 384
B Kwong Man Hirm 0.05 2.40 007 0.45 287 2.88
BtH Qiao Shibo 0.05 0.38 0.02 - 0.45 2.23
B Yan Biao 0.05 0.38 0.05 - 0.48 2.5
314 Jiang Wei 0.05 - - - 0.05 0.05
Img Wang Shuaiting 0.04 - - - 0.04 -
HBE Xie Shengxi 0.05 - - - 0.05 0.05
BrEs Chan Po Fun, Peter 0.14 - - - 0.14 0.14
N Houang Tai Ninh 0.14 - - - 0.14 0.14
FHH Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.14 - - - 0.14 0.14
HHE Cheng Mo Chi 0.14 - - - 0.14 0.02
BES Benard Chamwut Chan 0.01 - - - 0.01 -
[HTE0e3 Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.01 - - - 0.01 -
#5 Zhong Yi - - - - - 0.48
A5 Total 112 13.19 1.15 4.01 10,47 -
—ETnE 2005 09 14.42 113 497 - 21.49
i TEA DS EMFY 2 MM - BRALTIE 1 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating
KR EEATIGNTHFLRE - results, individual performance and comparable market statistics

during both years.
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+. BEOLGHERQO 10. Five Highest Paid Employees

FENABEFERRENN(Z2BA & The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2005:
L) HE - #FECHREXHEEA - Ef—0 two) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out in note 9
(CSERF: Z)REFEEMEIT2H above. The details of the remunerations paid to the other one {2005:
SEFENT three) highest paid employees are follows:
ZQGRE —¥BhE
2006 2005
AR AMTET
HK$ miltion HKS$ million
BEEFE RN Basic salaries and allowances 1.20 6.47
NI REN Provident fund contributions - 0.07
E{J7EH Bonus paid 2.60 2.91
AR HEANER Shara-based payment - 2.78
3.80 12.23
G (CERRF S EERERNE TR The emoluments of this one (2005: three) highest paid individuals
wBE waere within the following bands:

No. of persons

“EBETRF
2005

—QUAE
M HK$ 2006
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 2,500,001 - 3,000,000 -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 3,000,001 - 3,500,000 -
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 3,500,001 - 4,000,000 1
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 4,500,001 - 5,000,000 -

120 ERAIHER 2T China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 F




+—-R02%&

g

HE
ZOAMREZAAEE2NEASRZ TAE
PRS- ZE B HERARERES
MER IhBIERIREES - {HRED
REEAREHEEZRHFRM LY - MR
BIERTHERIRBRHRAMRERR
Bz #35K -

ERENBACHNE 2 B

EBE 2R

BEEARARNRZHCHA

R E A 23 iR R

TEAY
BEMEDBE AR EBHBRANGRLS
BRI S NERERRCEFIEFBEKR - X
REAFAZAHIAETIEREE A LOR
K- EABEMASE - AREEFHINE—
OEFEREMEEHK -

ALneypRARKG R mES S Bl RS
HS @R EOEEN 68T EL (ZFFA
F : B0 ) °

Staff Provident Fund

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The amount of contributions is
based on a specified percentage of the basic salary of employees
and any forfeited contributions in respect of unvested benefits of
staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

ZRURE —BRHE
2006 2005
BRHER BEEET
HKS million HKS million
Group contributions to staff

provident fund 35 32
Farfeited contributions utilised - -

Amount charged to consolidated
profit and logs account 35 32

Un-utilised forfeited contributions - -

Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only abligation of the Group with
respect to these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese Mainland
amounted to approximately HK$268 million (2005: HK$206 million).
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12. Taxation

Current taxation
Hong Kang
Chinegse Mainland
Cverseas

Deferred taxation
Hong Kong
Chinese Mainland

—QGRE ZEEHE
2006 2005
ANMBERT AMOET
HK$ million HKS million
(&%)
(Restated)
213 187
338 251
2 2
553 440
69 73
22 44

644

557

Hong Kong Profit Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the
estimated profits for the year. Chinese Mainland income tax has
beer provided for based on the estimated assessable profits in
accordance with the relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries
in the Chinese Mainland. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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12. Taxation (continuec)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits

Tax rate as follows:

—OUR “LERE
2006 2005
EREBERL BYERET
HK$ million HK$ million
{E3)
(Restated)
Profit before taxation (excluding share
of net results of agsociates) 3,638 2.821
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5%
{2005: 17.5%) 636 494
Effect of different taxation rates
in other jurisdictions 107 68
Income not subject to taxation 213) (120)
Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 45 a7
Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (31) (26)
Tax logs not recognised 192 141
Cwverprovision on taxation in
previous year (14) -
Income eamning companies exempted
from taxation (78) S7)
Taxation charge 644 557
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13. Dividends

—RURE ZRFREF
2006 2005
E¥AER AMEET
HKS million HK$ million
Additional final dividend paid for
the previous year as a result of
exercise of share options 1 10
2006 interim dividend paid for
HIK$0.14 (2005: HK$0,13)
per ordinary share 328 288
200€ special interim dividend paid for
HK$1 (2005: Nil) per ordinary share 2,356 -
20086 proposed final dividend of
HK$0.26 (2005: HK$0.25)
per ordinary share 616 580

3,301 878

At tha meeting held on 4 April 2007 the directors proposed final
dividend of HK$0.26 (2005: HK$0.25) per ordinary share. This
proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s number
of ordinary shares as at the date of the board meeting, is not
recognised as a liability in these financial statements. The total
dividends paid by the Company, including the final dividend for the
year 2005, amounting to HK$3,265 million (2005: HK$640 million)
are reflected in the current year financial statements.
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Earnings Per Share

ZQUR —FERE
2006 2005
AMAET AREET
HKS$ million HK$ million
The calculation of the basic and diluted
earnings per share is based on
the following data:
Earnings
Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share 2,776 2,220
Inierest saving on exercise of
convertible bonds 50 115
Profit attributable to sharehoiders
of the Company for the purpese of
calculating diluted earnings
per share 2,826 2,335
QYR —EPhE
2006 2005
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic
garnings per share 2,325,474,383 2,183,572,848
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
- Share options 36,205,744 42,752,535
- Conwertible bonds 49,148,795 119,595,400
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 2,410,828,922 2,345,920,583
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15.

The Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2005
Exchang difference
Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/
bustess
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business
Addttions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Adjustment on valuation

At 1 Jaruary 2006 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/
business

Relating to disposal of subsidizries/
businass

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Adjustment on valuation

At 31 December 2006

Fixed Assets

R0 - BEREA
Other property, plant and equipment
fittER
HERAN
1gs #at
Interests in BRRAH
leasehold BTEE
land held Plant,
for own BRWE  machinery
BEWME  useunder  Buildings  and other
Investment  operating held for fixed NGt 1
properties leases own use assels Sub-totai Total
A¥EEn AMEER A¥ENMn  AMESR  A¥aNk  B%AER
HK$ miion HKE milion  HKSmillon  HKS milion  HKSmilion  HKS milion
5,089 2,238 4,603 13,375 17,978 25,305
8 27 a7 276 373 408
- 59 227 506 733 792
(418) (32) (14) (36) {50) (500)
33 83 592 1,855 2,447 2,861
(97) (79) {110} (305) 415 (591)
- 95 285 {380} {95) -
489 - - - - 489
5,402 2,391 5,680 15,291 20,971 28,764
23 46 196 499 695 764
- H 136 205 431 465
- {168} (153) (1,238) (1,391} (1,589)
37 65 470 2,495 2,965 3,427
{80} (4 (66) (570) (636) (730)
(61) (14) 400 (328) 72 3)
528 - - - - 528
5,889 2,320 6,663 16,444 23,307 31,326
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+aH. BTG 15. Fixed Assets (continued)

HivtR - AARRR
Qther property, plant and equipment
HteaA
HEREN
TrRs @
Interests in e
leasehold BERZ
tand held Plant,

for own BEAWF  machinery

HRYE  useunder  Buildings  and other
Investment  operating held for fixed Mt &4t
properties leases own use assels Sub-total Total
BEEET  AMEER  A%EER  AY¥EET  AREER  A%EER
HK$ milion  HK$ milion  HKSmilion  HKS milion  HKS milion  HKS milion

RihERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment
R-RBRE-A-B At 1 January 2005 - 288 917 4,885 5,802 6,080
EAER Exchange difference - 4 24 19 143 147
HEHBAR, 2 HEGY Relating 1o disposal of subsidiaries/
business - 5) {3) (26) (29) {34)
’EENE Charge for the year - 55 197 1,080 1,287 1,342
HERE Written back on disposals - (1) {7 {233) (280) (291)
EERHERR Impairment loss recognised - - 3 kY] 74 74
kb ] Reclassifications - - 5 (5} - -
BR-2RAF-A-0(EH At 1 January 2006 {As restated) - 331 1,130 5,867 6,997 738
ELER Exchange difference - 7 48 23 278 286
HERDAR/ EREAY Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business - {19} (52) (295) {347} (366)
EEERE Gnarga for the year - 54 241 1,032 1473 1527
Hitge Writlen back on disposals - {1 (58} {451) (509) {510}
CHBZEENR Impairment loss recognised - - 9 15 24 24
BHRE Reclassifications - 2) M - (1 {3)
R-BEAET=A=1-H At 31 Dacember 2006 - 370 1,317 6,599 7.916 8,286
EE3E Net book values
Ro2RAF+T=AZ+-R At 31 December 2006 5,899 1,950 5,346 8,845 15,18 23,040
ROFFEFT-A=-B(E)  At31 December 2005 {Restated) 5,402 2,060 4550 9,42¢ 13,974 21,436
BT SR BE Representing assets stated:
et At cost - 2,320 6,663 16,444 23107 25427
B-SR FEEREAE M 2006 professional valuation 5,899 - - - - 5,89

5,899 2,320 6,663 16,444 23,107 31,326
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+aH. BETIOe 15. Fixed Assets (continued)

RS BERHNA
Other property, plant and equipment
g E HERE
Investment i £ Other it it
properties Buildings assets Sub-total Totat
A¥EER REAET BY¥EHER BEEEL ANEET
HK$ million HKS milicn HK$ milion HKS$ million HK$ milion
X435 The Company
BATEE Cost or valuation
R-RTRF-F-H At 1 January 2005 51 2 i9 2 72
RE Additions - - 1 1 1
diE Disposals - - - - -
R-RBRIEF-AST-BE At 31 December 2005 and
—R2AF-F-P 1 January 2006 51 2 20 22 73
FE Additions - - 1 1 1
fi) 3 Disposals - - (1) (1) (1)
R-SEAF+-A=+-H At 31 December 2006 51 2 20 22 73
KB EEE Accumulaiad depreciation and
impairmant
R-%%iF-A-H At 1 January 2005 - - 14 14 14
AEFRHE Charge for the year - - 3 3 3
HERD Written back on disposals - - - - -
RIBRAF+-RA=1-8 At 31 December 2005
E-EEA§-F-A and 1 January 2006 - - 17 17 17
FEENH Charge for the year - - 1 1 1
HERE Written back on disposals - - 1) (1) {1
RIFFAETZR=1-8 At 31 Decembar 2006 - - 17 17 17
BREFE Nst book values
RIBEAF+-A=+-H At 31 Dacember 2006 51 2 3 5 56
RCBFRETZR=1+-A At 31 Decamber 2005 51 2 3 5 56
ETAEFANR KE - Reprasenting assets stated:
A Al cost - 2 20 2 22
B-RR, \FHERHE At 2006 professional valuation £ - - - 51
51 2 20 22 73

128 BRAMEFR 2 [ China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 E 4§




+EH.EET 0D

NREEZREESE

LS L

&R
ERERNSA IR
FPMROSRZNER
EEMRSEZNER

PEAR
BERBRNFE DR
EPHRABEZBR
RERZNEHE DR

&
BEPRRORAZ R
ERERORHZNE

345
&
BrRROREL DR

REAR
B2 E

Fixed Assets (continued)

—QURE ~BF5E
2006 2005
EXTET EMERT
HKS mifion HKS$ milton
(&5
(Restated)
Carrying amounts of the property
interests comprise:
The Group
Hong Kong
Properties held on long lease 4,001 3,676
Properties held on medium-term lease 2,357 2,260
Properties held on short lease 18 2
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on long leass 1,196 955
Properties held on medium-term lease 5,516 4,966
Properties held ¢n short lease 67 71
Overseas
Properties held on medium-term lease 9 25
Properties held on short lease kY 37
13,195 12,012
The Company
Hong Kong
Properties held on megdium-term lease 51 51
Chinese Mainland
Properties held on medium-term lease 2 2
53 53
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15.

Fixed Assets {continued)

Tha investment properties have been valued at 31 December 2006
by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuers.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets held under finance leases of
the Group at 31 December 2006 amounted to HK$1 million (2005:
HK$7 million).

Fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$ 153 million (2005: HK$228
million) are pledged for short term loans in the sum of HK$206 million
(2005: HK$238 million) and long term loans in the sum of HK$8
million (2005: HK$10 million}.

Other fixed assets mainly comprise vessels, leasehold improvements,
cold storage facilities, plant and machinery, furniture and equipment,
motor vehicles and construction in progress.

Impairment loss was made as a result of the cutsourcing of certain
production processes in connection with the change of production
plan relating to one of the manufacturing businesses.
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16. Goodwill

The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2005
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries

At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006

Exchange difference

Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
Goodwill adjustments {note)

Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries
Disposal of subsidiaries/business

At 31 December 2006

Carrying values
At 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2005

EETHET
HK$ million

2,530

247
306

3,084

3,481

3,08

Note: The goodwill adjustments mainly represent the adjustment on the
carrying amounts and fair values of {ixed assets of subsidiaries acquired

during the year ended 31 December 2005.
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+x@moe 16. Goodwill {continued)

BREEESEZERSEABU ([CGUD - it Tha carrying amaount of goodwill was allocated to the cash generating
DENERETTAHEERMAERRES A unit (“CGL™ representing an operating entity within the business
BzEENR-UTARESKZHBRE segments identified by the Group for the purpose of segment

reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is
presented below:

ZURRE —FERE

2006 2005

EEOET AETHT

HK$ million HK$ million

BE Retail 1,183 1,114

R Beverage 1,842 1,505

BRNRIEER Food Processing and Distribution 369 342

fE Textile 87 68
DR AMEREH Petroleum and Related Products

Distribution - 55

CGUZ ATk E&ENREANENEARE - The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on a

HEHEAEERBREERBRBY = FHH value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow projections

BRIMEE B RERA - BE-FHY basad on financial budgets approved by management covering a

HERBEERGMESERS|METHE  mAAAHR three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are

SRINIET RS2 R INASTE - extrapolated using the estimated growth rates and all cash flows

are discounted at the discount rates stated below.

FAMBRMHTEZETERE Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:
alnank
mfbit2
ENMRE
Nominal
growth rate
beyond
the initial
i b cash fiow
Discount rate projections
{%) (%)
7E Retail 7.2 9.0
o Beverage 6.4 7.0
BRNIEEH Food Processing and Distribution 7.0 5.0
i Textile 57 5.0
FrRAr R R ERNCGUZ IMETHE SR The discount rates used is based on the respective CGUs’ weighted
(EURMEMERSE 7 FERR) AR - average costs of capital which reflect specific risks relating to the

relevant segments,
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17. Other Intangible Assets

The Group
Cost

At 1 January 2005

Exchange difference

Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business

At 1 January 2006 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Disposal of subsidiaries/
business

At 31 December 2006

Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

At 1 January 2005
Exchange difference
Charge for the year
Impairment loss recognised

At 1 January 2006 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognised

Disposal of subsidiaries/
business

At 31 December 2006

Net book values

At 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2005 {Restated)

R
1] feHR
Brand Patent &
names royalty Total
EEGET  ANEBT  A¥AER
HKS$ milian ~ HK$ million ~ HKE million
204 75 279
4 2 B
42 430 472
250 507 757
8 2 0
(a4} (509) {553}
214 - 214
67 2 69
2 - 2
26 28 54
2 - 2
97 30 127
4 - 4
16 15 31
1 - 1
(17 {45) (62)
101 - 101
113 - 13
153 630
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18.

19.

Interests in Subsidiaries

The Company

Unlisted shares, at cost

Amcunt due from subsidiaries,
at fair value

—QURE —RERE
2006 2005
BEEERT HEBET
HK$ million HK$ million
15,927 12,377
757 3,417

16,684

15,794

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, and bear interest

rate at 4% p.a.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2006 are

set out on pages 161 to 169.

Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly
controlled entities which are accounted for using the proportionate
consolidation method is set out below:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Income

Expenses
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ZQURE —RBhF
2006 2005
BEEHET EBERET
HK$ miilion HKS million
557 1,366
- 1,372
(48) (491)
- (681)
16 847
(1)

{811)
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20.

Interests in Associates

The Group
Unlisted

Share of net fliabilities
Amounts due from associates,

at fair value

ZQURE —EBEERF
2006 2005
HEEEL AEEEL
HK$ million HK$ million
(379) (465)
1,632 1,535
1,153 1,070

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest bearing
at prevailing market rate and are not repayable within the twelve
months frem the balance sheet date.

Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December 2006 are set

out on pages 161 to 169.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associates is set out below:

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Group’s share of net liabilities

of associates

Reverue

Profit for the year

Group’s share of net results of
associates for the year
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—QUAE —PTHE
2006 2005
BMEST HEEET
HK$ milfion HK$ million
39,892 32,210
{44,917) (38,629)
(5,025) (6,419)
(379) {465)
12,476 13,595
3,392 3,546
333 354




-8t 21. Available for Sale Investments

ZUUARE —¥BAF
2006 2005
AEEET BEEET
HKS million HKS$ miltion
(&5
(Restated}
rs (0] The Group
JEmER A Non-current investments
FEIEL TR - BHAE Unlisted shares in Hong Kong, at cost 11 10
PP D Unlisted shares in Chinese Mainland,
A ER BRI at cost less impairment loss 42 66
FEM iR E 5E Amounts due from invastes
sompanies - 1
53 77
Lt EF BRI LTIRG - BEEAFRRE The above investments mainly represent investments in unlisted
BB 7 RE - AR AIEETIGA] equity shares and are measured at costs less impairment at each
HEMZERD - EEREREER SR balance sheet date. As there is no active market for trading, their
{H{E - fair values cannot be ascertained reliably.
hy Junil AL 12 348 22. Prepayments
ZQUAE —FEZaF
2006 2005
ARAER AEEHT
HK$ million HK$ million
F3 L] The Group
M EREE-#—A—H Tank storage service fees prepaid —
at 1 January 324 346
H o RERERZ A Less: Amount recognised during
the year (22) {22)
302 324
HekEeRA Rental deposits 200 118
Rt-_A=+-BzEH Balance at 31 December 502 442
BR-FRERZ 8 Poriion L0 be utilised within one year 35 31
BR-—ERDACBH Portion to be utilised after one year 467 41
BRt+-A=+—Bz&EH Balance at 31 December 502 442
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= R REI0D 22. Prepayments (continued)

BiR 8 — TR B R & 2 B AL 2 —[E Pursuant 10 the tank storage agreements (the "Agreement”) entered
BaRMETA 2 ik (g% B into with a holding company and a fellow subsidiary, the recognised
RZRETAEHEREZIGRANTAX amount can be applied to set off portion of the total tank storage

it 2 S0 R AR R 22 » service fees payable during the year under the Agreement.

—t=. 81 23. Stocks
—UURE —2RHE
2006 2005
LA BEEAT
HKS$ million HKS million
(E5)
{Restated}
K3 1| The Group
FEDR Properties held for sale 146 151
FH#E Raw materiais 1,170 937
BREGREEME Consumables and packing materials 1,761 1,095
& Work-in-progress 247 276
) Finished goods 3,401 4,031
6,725 6,490
M. o RITEkGRT 24. Trade and Other Receivables
.3 1L F4T
The Group The Company

—UUR ZB20E ZQUAE _BThE
2006 2005 2006 2005

AY¥AET A¥OERL E¥aBEn  BMNEER
HKS milion  HK$ milion  HKS mifion  HK$ million

(B2
{Restated)
BB BER Trade receivables 2,512 3,000 - -
HipBWRE - BER Other receivables,
AR deposits and
prepayments 2,817 2,570 37 45
LG NG Amounts dua from
subsidiaries - - 1,042 236
RS aRAtE A RRE Amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries 12 18 - -
BRBBATRA Amounts due from
associates 25 28 - -
5,366 5,616 1,079 281
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ZHR. DRI AR 24. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
FEM—-MBiGTEPLUTZIEEH The Group normally trades with its customers under the following
credit terms:

() BIRE R (@) cash upon delivery; and
(Z) RTREBRE (b) open credit within 60 days
RETAMERE SRR RE ST The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the balance
sheet date:
~QURE ZETRF
2006 2005
BRAERT RiL T
HK$ million HKS million
(B3
(Restated)
M The Group
0—30% 0-30 days 1,874 2,335
31—60X 31 - 60 days 357 338
B1—90% 61 -90 days 120 164
>80k >00 days 161 163
2,512 3,000
FEMBPEHAMNBESREGBEWRZREL R The fair value of the Group's and the Company’s trade and other
MESEEEDEAS - receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.
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25. Derivative Financial Instruments

3 1L Fe 1]
The Group The Group
QU —QURE CZ8%14f _—FRIF
2006 2006 2005 2005
BE afi 13 Al
Assets Liabilities Assels Liabilities

BMEHT ANEET  ANBER  E¥AER
HKS milion  HK$ milion  HKS milion  HKS million

Derivatives under hedge
accounting

Cash flow hedge:
Oil futures contracts 109 118 59 70
Foreign currency
forwards contracts - - - -

109 118 59 70
Other derivatives
Qil futures contracls 52 33 1 3
Foreign currency
forwards contracts 2 - - -
Interest rate swaps - 16 - 12
Total - current portion 163 167 70 85

Cash flow hedge - Oil futures contracts

In 2006, some group companies which engage in il products trading
business had commodity futures contracts designated as effective
hedging instruments of managing price and timing risks in connection
with forecast purchases and sales.

As at 31 December 20086, fair value loss of HK$14 million (2005:
gain of HK$1 million) has been recognised in hedge reserve and is
expected to be transferred to the profit and loss account at various
dates in the coming six months after the balance sheet date, the
period in which forecast purchases and sales are expected to occur.

At 31 December 2006, the Group had long and short oil futures
contracts with notional contract amounts of US$143 million (2005:
US$138 million) and US$96 million (2005: US$108 million)
respectively and maturities of less than one year after the balance
sheet date.
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25. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

QOther derivatives — Qil futures contracts

At 31 December 2008, the Group had oil futures contracts to buy
665,000 metric tonnes (2005: 200,000 metric tonnes) and to sell
485,000 metric tonnes {(2005; 200,000 metric tonnes) of oil product
at fixed prices to limit the risks arising from the fluctuations in oil
prices. The notional amounts of these buy and sell contracts were
US$191 million (2005: US358 million} and US$137 million (2005:
US559 million), respectively, with maturities of one month after the
balance sheet date. As the aforesaid contracts did not qualify for
hedge accounting and as a result, gains or losses arising from a
change in fair value are recognised in consolidated profit and loss
account.

Other derivatives - Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to improve its risk profile by
swapping 30% to 50% of its Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate
{("HIBOR") based borrowing from HIBOR to London Inter-Bank Offer
Rate (“LIBOR").

At 31 December 2006, the Group had interest rate swaps with
national contract amounts of HK$1,500 million (2005: HK$1,500
million} and mature in next year matching the maturity of the related
borrowings.

The above derivatives are measured at fair values at each balance
sheet date. The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts
and commodity futures contract are either marked o market using
listed market prices or broker quotes. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is estimated by referring to the prevailing market interest rate
for similar financial instruments quoted by financial institutions.
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26.

27.

Cash and Bank Balances

Included in cash and bank balances are the foilowing amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the operations to which they relate.

iy X248
The Group The Company
QUK —BFRF  ZUUR “BER¥
2006 2005 2006 2005

EMEABT  ANEER A%EER  B¥aEn
HKS miion  HKS milion  HK$ million  HKS million

US Dollar
(HK Dollar equivalent} 2,825 1,590 403 450

The effective interest rate on bank deposits ranged fram 2.25% to
5.35% (2005: 0.09% to 4.30%), with an average maturity of 30 days
(2005: 30 days).

Trade and Other Payables

ey L *29
The Group The Company
—QURE CZ2%iF Q0K —ERAF
2006 2005 2006 2005

AYERT ENHER ANBER AYWEER
HK$ milion  HKS milion ~ HK$ milion  HKS million

(&30
(Restated)
Trade payables 6,017 5,905 - -
Other payables and
accruals 6,430 5516 8 30
Provigions {note 28} )| 57 - -
Amounts dus to
subsidiaries - - 63 208
Amounts due to fellow
subsiciaries 57 54 - -
Amounts due {0
associates 19 18 - -
12,554 11,550 ! 238
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27.

28.

Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance

sheet date:

ZQURE —FERE
2006 2005
AYBET A¥TET
HKS miliion HKS million
(&5
{Restated)

The Group
0 - 30 days 3,847 3,983
31 - 60 days 1,288 948
61 — 90 days 330 540
>90 days 552 434
8,017 5,905

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other
payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amaount.

Provisions

The Group
At 1 January 2005
Utilisation during the year

At 1 January 2006
Utilisation during the year

At 31 December 2006

AETET
HK$ million

88
(31)

57
(26)

31

The amounts represent provisions for restructuring activities for
operations acquired in previous years. These provisions were utilised

in accordance with the restructuring plans adepted when such

operations were acquired,
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29a. Short Term Loans

ZRURE “EBRF
2006 2005
ENTET BREERT
HK$ million HK$ million
The Group
Current portion
- sacured bank loans 3 3
- unsecured bank loans 30 241
- other unsecured loans 9 -
- of long term obligations under
finance leases 2 7
Short term bank loans, trust receipts
and overdrafts
- secured 206 238
- unsacured 4,747 2,546
Other unsecured loans - 2,134
4,997 5,169
29h. LLong Term Liabilities
—U@sE ZFF0F
2006 2005
BREET ANEER
HK$ million HK$ million
(B3
{Restated)
The Group
Secured bank loans repayable within
5 years 8 10
Unsecured bank loans repayable
within 5 years 3,741 4,952
Unsecured bank loans not wholly
repayable within 5 years 6 6
Other unsecured loans repayable
within § years 58 88
Obligations under finance leases
repayable within 5 years 3 1t
Other unsecured leans not wholly
repayable within & years 68 224
3,884 5,291
Current portion included in current
liabilities {44) (251)
3,840 5,040

A A M2 5 China Resources Enterprise, Limited = Annual Report 2008 5 143




~thZ HAffcn

FRE
RHAMEZ IR AR
TEHBR -

BITHR
—FHULERER
MEREERER
Ak

HibErR
—HEEMERN
MELLEERFR
Lk
RRBERRA
—FLEERFR
RMEREERFR

REFEMFNREFANR, BERBRTH
Rz Bgs - ERLTEHEMERL
E([EHRE)) HFREANRAEL LR
LISNEAFRE LR RBRHRIERER
BIE-BARRZ &0 (TiRAEERIER
HI BT AMER) -

FHEFUEY  EIRARMABHZE
SEE - BE55|BEHBOR - LBORE HE
ARBITREZ HRRPREE -

AAMESER T TRENRTEHI.90%
F495%(ZFEAF  0.72%E5.55%) T
g 0

29b. Long Term Liabilities {ccntinued)

—QURE “EFRE
2006 2005
BMEET AYRET
HK$ million HKS million
(E3))
(Restated)
The Group
The nan-current portion of long term
liabilities are repayable as follows:
Bank Loans
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 44
After 2 years, but within 5 years 3,717 4,676
After & years 4 4
Other Loans
After 1 year, but within 2 years 64 1M
After 2 years, but within 5 years 53 85
After 5 years - 116
Obligations under finance leases
After 1 year, but within 2 years 1 4
After 2 vears, but within 5 years - -
3,840 5,040

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans repayable within five years, China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (*CRH"), a holding company, is required to remain
as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the
Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly
or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company.

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked to HIBOR,
LIBOR and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bark of China
respectively,

The effective annual interest rates on the Group's floating rate
borrowings range from mainly 3.90% to 4.95%. (2005: from 0.72%
to 5.55%).
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—thZ. SHANE o 29h. Long Term Liabilities (continued)

ROSEXFE+-_A=1—8 FHEEHT At 31 December 2008, the Group has a syndicated loan of HK$3,000
—HEHEEI BB (ZBFRE : B8 million {2005: HK$3,000 million) of which HK$1,700 million has been
3,000 8m) 2REEZ  EhaiTE% drawn down that bears interest rate at HIBOR plus 28 basis point
1,700A B TEBAEE - BRAHBORM and will mature in May 2011. Other borrowings are repayable wholly
26T - BN B ——FRAEH - Hfth ar partly within 5 years from 31 December 2006.
BHRALS-BENFTAZ+—B&sts
FRMBEBRIHRR
AR ARBEmE I AMITR IS A The Group’s barrowings that are denominated in currencies other
BT 7 3K - than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:
ey 1 %47
The Group The Company
It V2V “RERE VUK “BERLF
2006 2005 2006 2005

BEOHT A%EEL AMEER A¥%EER
HK$ milion  HX$ milion  HK$ milion  HKS milion

Eni:) | US Dollar borrowings
(BRRES) {HK Dollar equivalent) 1,111 3,833 - -
=+. DRERI 30. Deferred Taxation
EREEHETIELAMCEH (HR B The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior to
i 2 AT I F offsetting of balance within the same taxation jurisdiction) recognised

during the year is as follows:

il Hit it

Tax losses Others Total
ZQUAE —B2AF CZUOAE —9%E% ZQUAE _T¥infF
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
BEEHT AYEERT BYAET ENOER BNaEn E¥EAR
HKS$ milion  HKS milion  HKS million  HK$ milion  HKS milicn - HKS milfion

r.% 1. | The Group
BREVEEE Deferred taxation assets
#—A—-A At 1 January 76 117 64 50 140 167
ERAERER (Charged)/credited to
(ingk) /iR consolidated profit and
loss account (24} 43) 5 5 (19) (38)
Y RRRE 2 7] Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - 9 - 9
ERRR Exchange rate adjustment 2 2 - - 2 2

w+-A=+-18 At 31 December 54 76 69 B4 123 140
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30. Deferred Taxation (continued)
Deierred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 20086, the Group
has unrecognised tax losses of HK$902 million {2005: HK$661
million) arising from tax losses which is uncertain as to whether it
can be utilised to set oif against future taxable income. Qut of this
amount, the unrecognised tax loss of HK$480 miillion (2005: HK$347
million) will expire within 5 years.

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the years
are as follows:

BEREDE mERGENE
Revaluation Accelerated
of investment tax &h
property depreciation Total
E¥EBT  B¥WEER EBMEER
HKS milion ~ HK$ mition  HKS miliion
The Group
ALt January 2005 705 232 937
Charged/(credited) to consolidated profit
and loss account 86 {7) 78
Refating 1o disposal of a subsidiary (65) - {65)
At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006 726 225 953
Charged/(credited) to cansolidated profit
and lass account 95 123) 72
At 31 Dacember 2006 823 202 1,023

The Company's deferred taxation liabilities relates to the accelerated
tax depreciation of its investment property, land and building and
other assets.
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31,

Share Capital

ZRUR —22h%
2006 2005
RHEE P REGRE A
Number of Nominal  Number of Nominal
shares Value shares Value
BHk E¥EER BER AMBER
milion  HKS million million  HK$ million
Authorised
Ordinary shares
of HKS1 each 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2,233 2,233 2,123 2123
Exercise of share
options 125 125 52 52
Allotment of shares - - 58 58
At 31 Dacember 2,358 2,358 2,233 2,233

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives
of the Company by the participants {the "New scheme"). In addition,
certain outstanding share options were still held under a share option
scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated
on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31 January 2012.
The board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants including executive or non-executive directors of the
Group, any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established
by any employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group,
any executives and employees of consultants, professional and other
agvisors to the Group, chief executive, substantial shareholder of
the Company, associated companies of the Group, associates of
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
and employees of substantial shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable within
a period of 10 years immediately after the date of grant or are vested
over a period of time up to maximum of four years aifter the
acceptance of a grant.
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=+—mEun 31. Share Capital (continued)

AR RS A B 2 R B A Details of the movements of the share options granted under both
T share option schemes are summarised as follows:
RRENE
Number of share options CRARE2
fitagmar
R-BWAE VEER BEER PEER REER Fdut 2 s Estimated
-A-8 ]| o 11 &% +-A=+-8 fair value of
fiem HEITH Granted Exercised Cancelted Lapsed [oF <hyl the share
#HAN Exercise  Outstanding at during during during during  OQutstanding at option
Date of grant Price 1/1/2006 the year the year' the year the year 3122006 granted?
BT it
HK$ HK$
#in
Ofd Scheme
20/6/2000 7.180 7,945,000 - 7,470,000 - - 475,000 -
21/11/2000 7.080 3,399,000 - 2,454,000 - - 945,000 -
11,344,000 - G024 000 - - 1,420,000 -
ity |
New Scheme
Q7/02/2002 7170 14,514,000 - 13,880,000 - - 634,000 -
05/03/2002 7.350 11,486,000 - 8,121,000 - - 3,365,000 -
08/03/2002 7.500 780,000 - 780,000 - - - -
19/04/2002 7.400 3,650,000 - 3,366,000 - - 284,000 -
23/05/2002 8.900 44,000 - 44,000 - - - -
02/08/2002 8.320 3.834,000 - 2,454,000 - 660,000 720,000 -
orN2002 7.700 1,752,000 - 1,752,000 - - - -
24/01/2003 7.250 578,000 - 528,000 - - 50,000 -
14/04/2003 6.290 4,216,000 - 3,822,000 - - 394,000 -
01/08/2003 7.100 660,000 - 580,000 - - 80,000 -
(08/10/2003 8.900 1,661,000 - 1,220,000 - 89,000 352,000 -
02/12/2003 9,000 1,070,000 - 1,070,000 - - - -
14/01/2004 8720 38,963,000 - 20,868,00¢ - 2,582,000 15,113,000 -
20/04/2004 8.880 5,216,000 - 2,206,000 - 28,000 2,892,000 -
25/05/2004 8.150 24,443,000 - 20,285,000 - - 4,154,000 -
02/06/2004 8.550 5,022,000 - 4,422,000 - - 600,000 -
2210772004 9.800 1,590,000 - 1,252,000 - 178,000 160,000 -
04/10/2004 10.350 45,454,000 - 27,514,000 - 328,000 17 622,000 -
17/01/2005 11.400 1,580,000 - 580,000 - 880,000 120,000 -
2200772005 12.500 960,000 - 240,000 - - 720,000 -
167,483,000 - 115,078,000 - 5,145,000 47,260,000
178,827,000 - 125,002,000 5,145,000 48,680,000
ARELTE
Exercisable at the
end of the year 30,722,000
METEHHER (%)
Weighted average
exercise prica (HKS) 9.23 - 8.29 - 9.86 9.40
AR A ASIIT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Eitn
Oid Scheme
B Directors 5,986,000 - 5,586,000 - - -
£ 1 Emplayees 5,358,000 - 3,938,000 - - 1,420,000
i o) |
New Scheme
% Directors 24,266,000 - 23,666,000 - - 600,000
{21 Employses 131,453,000 - 83,133,000 - 5,145,000 43,175,000
HABERE Other participants 11,764,000 - 8,279,000 - - 3,485,000
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E4—BEen 31.

Share Capital (continued)

+ 18 4 E]
Number of share options ERRKE
A g M
gt 3 3% REEE REER o 33 4 REEE P=R9VEE Estimated
—A-8 R T 7] %% +=R=+-B fair value of
Eheidl | HETR Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed EETR the share
FHER Exercise  Outstanding at during during during during  Qutstanding at option
Date of grant Price 11172005 the year the year’ the year the year 311212005 granted?
piL:o BEn
HK$ HKS
Ein
Old Scheme
20/6/2000 7.180 11,861,000 - 3,816,000 - - 7,945,000 -
21/11/2000 7.080 4,163,000 - 754,000 - - 3,399,000 -
16,014,000 - 4,670,000 - - 11,344,000 -
i1 18]
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7170 19,638,000 - 5,124,000 - - 14,514,000 -
05/03/2002 7.350 19,624,000 - 7,816,000 - 322,000 11,486,000 -
08/03/2002 7.500 980,000 - 200,000 - - 780,000 -
19/04/2002 7.400 7,204,000 - 3,554,000 - - 3,650,000 -
23/05/2002 5.900 136,000 - 92,000 - - 44,000 -
02/08/2002 8.320 5,870,000 - 1,836,000 - 100,000 3,834,000 -
07/11/2002 7.700 1,790,000 - 38,000 - - 1,752,000 -
24/0172003 7.250 1,182,000 - 576,000 - 28,000 578,000 -
14/04/2003 6.290 7,428,000 - 3,162,000 - 50,000 4,216,000 -
01/08/2003 7.100 1,070,000 - 410,000 - - 660,000 -
08/10/2003 8.900 2,888,000 - 945,000 - 282,000 1,661,000 -
02/112/2003 9.000 1,380,000 - 290,000 - - 1,070,000 -
14/01/2004 9.720 45,441,000 - 4,520,000 - 958,000 38,963,000 -
20/04/2004 9.890 5,600,000 - 384,000 - - 5,216,000 -
25/05/2004 9.150 35,856,000 - 11,251,000 - 162,000 24,443,000 -
02/06/2004 9.550 5,022,000 - - - - 5,022,000 -
22/07/2004 9.800 3,100,000 - 1,510,000 - - 1,580,000 -
04/10/2004 10.350 49,680,000 - 3,900,000 - 316,000 45,464,000 -
17/01/2005 11.400 - 1,750,000 70,000 - 100,000 1,580,000 2.503
22/0712005 12.500 - 860,000 - - - 960,000 3.862
214,869,000 2,710,000 47,778,000 - 2,318,000 167,483,00C
230,883,000 2,710,000 52,448,000 - 2,318,000 178,827,000
ARERTTR
Exercisable at the
end of the year 137,027,000
PETFSTER (&%)
Weighted average
exercise price (HK® 9,04 13.79 8.51 - 8.93 9.23
TROBIESTESHBRE - SEBNT Details of the share options held by the directors included in the
above table are as follows:
Eith
0ld Scheme
% Directors 10,486,000 - 4,500,000 - - 5,986,000
{28 Employees 5,528,000 - 170,000 - - 5,358,000
g
New Scheme
B E Directors 24,466,000 - 200,000 - - 24,266,000
{8 Employess 169,829,000 2,710,000 38,080,000 - 1,896,000 131,453,000
R85 Other pariicipants 20,574,000 - 8,488,000 - 322,000 11,764,000
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Share Capital (continued)
Notes:

1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised guring the year was HK$16.80 (2005: HK$12.24).

2, The fair vatue of the share option granted represents the weighted
average of the fair value of the share options with different exercisable
period.

These fair values were calculated using the Trinomial Lattice model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

SRURE “B¥h¥
2006 2005

Exercise price {(as set out in the

above table)

Waighted average share price - HK$11.95
Expected volatility - 24.3%
Option life - 10 years
Risk-free rate - 4.1%
Expected dividend yield - 2.7%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous 1 year. The expected
lifee used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$23 million for the
year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: HK$53 million) in relation to
the share options granted by the Company.
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The Company

At 1 January 2005

Premium on share issued
Employees share option benefits
Profit for the year

Diicends

At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006

Premium cn share issued

Share issue expsnses

Employees share option benefits

Release upen repayment of
Compound financial ingtruments

Profit for the year

Dividends (Note 13)

At 31 December 2006

FoanHoRTPIE 2 HBAHE] 220
AHET(CETRE - B¥3361THET) ¢

Reserves
The Group

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 91 to 92.

The retained profits of the Group include approximately HK$92 million
{2005; HK$100 millior) and approximately HK$5 million (2005: HKS7
million) retained by associates and jointly controlled entities of the

Group, respectively.

=140

HREH

Employee

Bit#M share-based EREEHA GE#
Share  compensation Warrant Retained -1l
premium reserve reserve profits Total
AMAET AMRETR EMOET EMAER B¥aER
HKS million HKS milkgn HKS milion HK$ million HK$ miion
10,637 92 168 3,176 14,073
a8y - - - 987
- 53 - - 53
- - - 825 825
- - - (640} (640)
11,624 145 168 3,361 15,298
983 - - - 983
(1] - - - (1)
- 23 - - 23
- - (168) 168 -
- - - 2,965 2 965
- - - (3,265) {3,265)

12,606 188 - 3,229 16,003

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to HK$3,229 million (2005: HK$3,361

million).
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33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows from operating activities

A

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Share of net results of associates
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
business
Profit on disposal of associates
Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments
Fair value losses/(gaing} on derivative
financial instruments
Dividend income from unlisted
available for sale investments
Interest income
Interest expenses
Net loss/{profit) on disposal of
fixed assets
Impairment loss recognised on
fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on available

for sale investments

Impairment loss recognised on cther
intangible assets

Cepreciation and amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Discount on acquisition recognised
as income

Tank storage service fee utilised

Valuation gain on investment properties

Share based payment charged
against equity

Release of hedge reserve upon
settlement of derivative financial
instruments

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Changes in properties held for sale

Changes in other stocks

Changes in trade and
cther receivables

Changes in derivative financial
instruments

Changes in trade and other payables

Cesh generated from operations

ZRVRE “EERE
2006 2005
A¥RET A aET
HKS million HK$ million
(&%)
(Restated)
3,969 3,175
(333) (354)
(517) (138)
(1) {64)
- (94)
4 (48)
{7 {5)
(273) (173)
441 402
36 (177)
24 74
- 49
1 2
1,527 1,342
K| 56
- (46)
22 22
(528} (489)
23 53
{2) -
4,417 3,587
5 ¥
812) (1,325)
{652) (670}
(29) {8)
2,459 2,360
5,388 3,951
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ZE+Z.GenannnmRECD 33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

< HEHBL S, B  Disposal of subsidiaries/business
—QURE ZBERE
2006 2005
E¥REL ARBER
HKS million HK$ million
HEEESE Net assets disposed of:
BTRE Fixed assets 1,223 466
[k Goodwill 34 -
HitERHaE Other intangible asseis 4m -
REFE DR ZHER Interests in associates 19 -
aER Available for sale investments 27 -
w8 Stocks 620 -
H5 R E LGRS Trade and other receivables 936 6
RERBITER Cash and bank balances 979 15
BB R AR RIE Trade and other payables (1,285) (6)
FE IR Taxation payable (49) -
EHER Short term loans (96) -
23} e Long term loans (303) -
BEHEAM Deferred taxation liabilities - {65)
s E Minority interests (119) {33)
2,477 383
ERER Reserves released {45) -
B R ERETEE Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
FRiq x| business 517 138
2,949 521
RTFEAREN - Satisfied by:
BEKA Cash consideration 2,949 512
BHERM Deferred consideration - 9
2,949 521
HMHBAE, HEMBzREE Analysis of the net inflow of cash
REGERNBEIH and cash equivalents in respect of
disposal of subsidiaries/business
BEWRERMA Cash considerations received 2,949 512
HEBRERRTESF Cash and bank balances disposed of {(979) (15)
1,970 497
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Acquisition of subsidiaries/business

33. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

ZRUARE it <3 %
2006 2005
ANERR EELAEE o
HKS million HK$ million
The carrying amounts and fair values
of the net assets acquired:
Fixed assets 465 792
Other intangible assets - 472
Available for sale investments - 19
Stocks 48 102
Trade and other receivables 27 59
Deferred taxation assets - 9
Cash and bank balances 10 385
Trade and other payables (93) (437)
Taxation payable M {n
Short term toans (98) )
Long term loans - (229}
Minority interests (53) 2)
Discount on acquisition - (46)
Goodwill on acquisition 348 247
653 1,361
Discharged by:
Cash 593 685
Balance of consideration payable 60 94
Prepaid consideration - 582
653 1,361
Analysis of the net outflow of cash
and cash equivalents in respect of
acquisition of subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
Cash consideration (593} (685)
Cash and bank balances acquired 10 385
(583) (300)
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34, Capital Commitments

S 1L 347
The Group The Company
Y “BRENF  ZQUR —FEI0F
2006 2005 2006 2005
HERET  AMEBHT A¥EER  AMEER
HK® milion  HKS milion  HK$ milion  HKS million
Capital commitments
outstanding at the
balance sheet date
are as foliows:
Contracted but not
provided for 999 374 - -
Authorised but not
contracted for 1,249 866 - -
2,248 1,240 - -
35. Operating Lease Commitments
(a) Aslessee
k3 1L E4%
The Group The Company
YUK “RFRE  ZUOR “R¥RF
2006 2005 2006 2005
BMEEL  ANEER  A¥EER BREER
HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion  HKS million  HKS million
At the balance sheet
date, the total future
minifmum lease
payments under
nen-cancellable
operating leases are
payable as follows:
- Within one year 978 791 - -
- In the second to
fitth year
inclusive 3,105 2,318 - -
— After five ysars 5,020 4,642 - -
9,103 7,751 - -
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=+5. 00 mRn e 35. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

(F)  fERFAAGE {a) As lessee (continued)
BRAORAECHHEASTREMNTIM Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the Group
EEIAzZES - BOXER-—E=1% for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are negotiated
ZHEAFEHES - for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 30 years.
(Z) %BHEA (b) As lessor
b3 1] F. /45|
The Group The Company
QUK _¥¥0F ZQUAE CZBEIE
2008 2005 2006 2005

AMEET BNIEL  AMEEL BMEER
HK milion  HK$milion  HK$ million  HK$ million

REHER  RETOIHEERNTROTHR At the balance shest

Wz RERERERS: date, the total future
minimum lease
aayrnents under

non-cancellable
operating leases are
receivable as follows:

-E—FR - Within ong year 463 391 1 -

-EE-FEZERF - In the second to
(BERERWE) fifth year

inchzsive 560 563 1 -

-hFzk - After five years 297 275 - -

1,320 1,233 2 -

tEME s HELHARAFENTTF1E1D These properties have committed tenants for an average term from

Fe 1 to 10 years.
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36.

37.

Contingent Liabilities

iy A48
The Group The Company
—QUR “¥%HF QU —¥%afF
2006 2005 2006 2005

AXPERT RAY¥RER A¥eER E¥aEx
HKS mition  HK$ million  HKS million  HK$ million

At the balance sheet
date, there were
contingent liabifties in
respect of guarantees
for banks and cther
foans provided to

- subsidiaries - - 7,826 7,054
- an associate 500 500 500 500
500 500 8,326 7,554

Material Related Party Transactions

On 18 Qctober, 2006, Preparis Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with China Resources
Petrochems Gas Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH
(the controlling shareholder of the Company), for the disposal of its
100% equity interest in China Resources Petrochems Holdings
Limited (*CRPH") for a cash consideration of HK$2, 780 milion. CRPH
was the holding company of the Company's piped gas businesses,
cheminals distribution businesses and other petroleum related
businesses in Chinese Mainland. This transaction was completed in
November 20086.
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37.

Material Related Party Transactions {continued)
Transactions batween the Company and its subsidiaries, which are
related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to the
transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions.

—QURE _FELEF
2006 2005
ANOHET EYEER
HKS million HK$ million
Purchase of gcods from associates 368 408
Receiving of services from
A holding company 1 1
Fellow subsidiaries 237 128
Associates 25 25
Sales of goods to
A holding company 1 -
Fellow subsidiaries 42 18
Associates 142 113
Rendering of services to fellow
subsidiaries 5 2
Operating lease paymeant
A holding company 3 -
Fellow subsidiaries 53 47
Associates 2 2
Tank storage service fees
A holding company 140 140
Fellow subsidiaries 2 2
Management fee received for provision
of certain services at oil depot
A holding company 1 1
Fellow subsidiaries 19 19
Transaction under godown management
agreement and facilities management
Receipt of service fee from
A holding company 172 131
Fellow subsidiaries 86 79
Payment of monthly fee to a holding
company 36 33
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37. Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

(continued}

The Group had the following material related party balances:

TQURE TEERE
2006 2005
AXBER AR
HK$ million HK$ million

Amount due from:
Fellow subsidiaries 12 18
Associates 25 28

Amount due to:

Fellow subsidiaries 57 54
Associates 19 18

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in Chinese
Mainland.

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies under CRNC
which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it
also conducts businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by the PRC government in the ordinary course of
business. The Directors are of the opinion that those entities other
than the CRNC group do not have the power to govern or participate
in the financial and operating policies of the Group. The transactions
including sales and purchases of goods and services, with these
entities are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group's business.
The Group believes that it has provided, at the best of its knowledge,
adequate and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions
as summarised above,

Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely
the directors of the Company as determined with reference to
remuneration committee, is disclosed in note 9.

£ TN & B 2 B China Resources Enterprise, Limited » Annual Report 2006 8 159




=+ SBNanzln

BZRRR BT EZATOARFERR
feIkizaRas (hBEEDFREEEH
BiLEEERAT([ERALRE) FTESR
CTREROARESBHERT Y —HER
1 BEREEDS ARELTREFE
Xk - FRAREHERGREI00%
DRITRAMESREREOBTHERT
Baflt - EXB SR E_SFLFNAT
HHEE -

Eth HEREEE
FeoREH160EMBMMBEREC RS
BR-PLFEAMEE I -

38. Post Balance Sheet Events

39.

The Company entered into a framework agreement with China
Petroleumn & Chemical Corporation {*Sinopec”} on 14 March 2007
regarding the disposal of the Company's petroleum distribution
business, which was held by China Resources Petrochems
Investmenis Limited ("CRPI"), Under the framework agreement,
subject to the signing of a formal agreement, the Company agreed
to dispose 100% cf the issued share capital of CRPI to Sinepec for
a cash consideration of HK$4,000 million. The formal agreement is
expected to be signed in mid-April 2007.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements set out on pages 85 to 169 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 4 April 2007.
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TEMBARIRBERR]
Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

F2006 12 31 A At 31 December 2006

ERTRARRIER/
3352y 3

BFxE4
Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued TRMEG F48RE HRBATRSH
MBS RBB AT ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the held by EE&HE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(-en
{1) Retail
REEL R
Incorporated in Hong Kong
hE(FHE)ERATE 5,000,0008 SRREE 10C.0 - 1000 FEEK
Chinese Arts & Craits (H.K.) ARz LBk Retail business
Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each
ERER (BER)ARDTA 80,000,0008 G R A 100.0 - 1000 EWEN - RAPRRER
China Resources Vanguard BRI EER #E
{Hong Kong) Company 90,000,000 ordinary shares of Supermarket operations,
Limited HK$1 each investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise
BPRARERRIT
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
R REBERETHARRE  #E%226200,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HBHEE
HK$226,200,000 Supermarket operations
FHER (BMBTHELT 8,000,000 T 100.0 - 1000 HMEH
US$8,000,000 Supermarket operations
XAREBEERBREETE  AR%1,000,000% 100.0 - 1000 BHER
FRAAA RMB1,000,000 Supermarket operations
* HBENERLA AE¥253,820,0007T 85.0 - 850 HWMER
(Suguo Supermarket Co., Lid) RMB253,820,000 Supermarket operations
" BREFARAE AR %1,400,000,0007T 100.0 65.0 350 HhER
(China Resources Vanguard AMB1,400,000,000 Supermarket operations
Co., Lid}
¢ MTEREERETEREE AR%100,000,0007 100.0 - 1000 BWER
(China Resources Cikelong RMB100,000,000 Supermarket operations

{Zhejiang) Supermarket
Co., Ltd.}
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ERTRHARREEN BFESH

£30 Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued FMEBIS A095BE MELAIRFE
HBAERBRAT ordinary share capital/ aftributable  held by the held by ERE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital {o the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities

(=) W
(1) Retail {continued)

BRI (51
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (continued)

EDERETHT (BH) AFR%30,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 BWHE

HRELR RMB30,000,000 Supermarket operations
(China Resources Vanguard

(Guangzhou) Superstore

Co., Ltd.)

RERBAFADMAIL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Tactical Sclutions Incorporated 10057 51.0 - 51.0 HRAER
US$100 Investment holding

(2 B&

(2) Beverage

REBRLURERRL

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

FRSEWESRAT 42,800,100 7T 51.0 510 - AR
China Resources Snow US$42,800,100 investment holding
Breweries Limited

RhE AL I
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

EASKER@RE)ERAE B80,814,189% L 51.0 - 1000 RENSFPEEER

(China Resources Snow US$60,814,189 Manufacturing and

Braweries (Liaoning} distribution of beer
Company Limited) products

EHABLYEAEERAT 21.200,000% 7T 51.0 - 000 RENSHEEER

{China Resources Snow US$21,200,000 Manufacturing and

Brewery (Dalian) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
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Breweries {Shenyang) Co.,

Ltd)
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ERfTHARREEA, BEER
i3y E Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued EREMS FLEHE RKELIESE
HRLTRBRAT ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby FHE&R
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(Z) GRG0
(2) Beverage (continued)
P eE R AR I ()
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland {continuad)
ERZRRA(ERHR A AR ¥246,000,0007T 51.0 - 1000 HEADHEEEER
{China Resources Snow RMB246,000,000 Manufacturing and
Breweries (Anhui) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
ERSEMH CRT) iR AE%120,000,0007T 35.7 - 700 HEASHRBEER
HELEF RMB120,000,000 Manufacturing and ~
(China Resources Snow distribution of beer
Brewery (Zhejiang) Stock products
Co., Ltd)
MIERESEAGRETAT AR%113782501T 318 - 62.0 BUENLHWEER
(China Resources (Sichuan) RMB113,792,501 Manufacturing and
Blue Sword Breweries distribution of beer
Co., Ltd)) products
EEES () e h AR¥124,143 8537T 31.6 - 620 HENSHWEER
BREELT RMB124,143,853 Manufacturing and
{China Resources Blue Sword distribution of beer
{Chengdu) Brewery Co., id.) products
ERES @) BT A F%35,000,0007T 316 - 620 HEHIHBBES
HREERR RMB35,000,000 Manufacturing and
{China Resources Blue Sword distribution of beer
(Leshan) Brewery Co., Ltd.} products
EPER (81 9B A %100,000,0007T 31.6 - 62.0 HENSHRBEES
HRIEARA RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and
{China Resources Blua Sword distribution of beer
(Mianyang) Brewery Co., Ltd.} products
E¥RSRENE(EREBAT ARN116,240,0007T 459 - 900 HENSHEBEES
{China Resources Snow RMB116,240,000 Manufacturing and

distribution of beer
products




gRfrirdRREEN/
BRRE

BxEak

Percentage of capital

Mominal value of issued ENMEBE FLTHA WRLFEHE
HBASRBR AR ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the held by ERH
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(ZI &)
(2) Beverage (continued)
WP B AR REIL ()
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland {continued)
* OBERSRREMLERLE AEM570,000,0007T 459 - 90.0 BHEAS HEEER
(China Resources Snow FMBS70,000,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.) distribution of beer
products
» BERERRE ()RR 338,000,000& 7T 51.0 - 1000 REAER
BRAOF
(China Resources Snow 1JS$386,000,000 Investment holding
Breweries (China}
Investment Co., Ltd.}
KOEREH (FIDEREE  AKE%12,000,000% 51.0 - 1000 BENSHREESR
(C'estbon Food and Beverage ~ RMB12,000,000 Manufacturing and
{Shenzhen) Co., Ltd)) distribution of beer
products
(2) RERIRAEH
{3) Food Processing and Distribution
REEERREL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
BUTERAT 1,046,258,000f% &R /8% 100.0 - 1000 EESRAWEY  BiHE
0.1 EER 2 RefERRAER
Ng Fung Hong Limited 1,046,258,000 ordinary Distribution of fresh, live
shares of HK$0.1 each and frozen foodstuff,
abattoir operation, acting
as food agent and
investment holding
TR KEFRLE 50000008 EREEEM 1T 94.0 - 940 EHEARRKE
2 BiRm
Ng Fung Frozen Meats & 5,000,000 ordinary shares of Trading of frozen meats
Aquatic Products Co. Limited HK$1 each and aquatic products
@ PEBSEHARAF 60,000/ B IR E &% 1,0007T 357 - 510  ERHE
k¢
Chung Keng Luen Livestack 60,000 ordinary shares of Wholesale of live pigs

Company Limited

HK$1,000 each
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ERTHERREEH BEEH
BERE Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued P8 13 088 RELIARSE
HRABRBR AT ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the held by ZERE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(=) AEMIRERE
{3) Food Processing and Distribution {continued)
RRBRARRAL
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
@ (TREREAXAR) 60,864 BRAE1ET 51.0 - 51.0 ®REER
A=yl
China International Fisheries 60,864 ordinary shares of Invastment holding
Corp US$1 each
REBRTHAE AR
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@ Victory Retum Corporation IBRSREE R FBR 51.0 - 1000 HRAERRHNEET
BRAHRE
1 ordinary share of US$1 each Marine fishing and the
provision of ship stores and
fishing supplies
ReBXBERAT
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
T ERRRGRIDERAF A B ¥543,000,0007C 70.0 - 700 SEGR FEEY A5
NIRRSHS
(Ng Fung Foods (Shenzhen) RMB543,000,000 Livestock raising, abattoir
Co., Ltd.) operation, meat products
processing and poultry
wholesaling
PE&SRTRAL
Incorporated in the Panama
@ JinFengS.A. 0RFREEBEL 2 EBR 51,0 - 1000 Hifg - RSEERRE
ARUEERE MEHT
B
200 ordinary shares of Marine fishing, vessel
US%1 each chartering and the provision

of ship stores, fishing
supplies and bunker oil
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ERfTHARKRFEE"
HRRS

BAE

Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued ERMA1G FLERE RELIARH
HRASRBRAT ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the held by ZERE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(M) g
(4) Textile
REBERARLL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
ERGE (G ARAF 100,000,0008 SR E & 100.0 - 1000 #EER
it Al )
China Rescurces Textiles 100,000,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
(Holdings) Company Limited of HK$1 each
ERGERERRT 5,000,000 SR EE 1000 - 1000 #HERBERFEER
AT Tl
China Resources Textiles 5,000,000 ordinary shares of Trading of textiles and
Company Limited HK$1 each investment holding
Ml BERL A 2,000,0008 FREE 100.0 - 100.0 MREEHERERERR
ARSI ERR
Hsin Hung Textiles Limited 2,000,000 ordinary shares of Trading of apparel and
HK$1 each investment holding
REBREE AR |
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland
ERGBERBRERAE 73,200.000% 7% 100.0 - 1000 BREFERRBEEH
{China Resources Textiles US$73,200,000 Investment holding and
Investment & Development trading of cotton
Company Limited)
@ ENBERHERDR] AEK120,665 71870 51.0 - 51.0 WhREEREHRIZARR
(China Resources Jinhua RMB129,665,718 Manufacture and trading of
Co., Ltd.} textile products and
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CRTEARRIEE BREEH
BRE* Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued ARMAL FLARHE KBLARRH
HELSIRHRLST ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the held by TE#RE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(B) HREDR
(5) Property and Logistics
REEERRI
Incorporated in Hong Kong
BaME (FE)ERQE MEREEES T2 SRR 100.0 - 1000 REZRENEER
CRE Properties 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding and
{Hong Kong) Limited property management
CRE Property REREERS T EAR 100.0 - 1000 #ElRA
(Silvercord) Limited 2 ordinary sharas of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property JRBRAEAM Tz SRk 100.0 - 100.0 PERHA
{Argyle Centra} Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Nan Fung Centre) 2 BREHEER 1 w2 Tk 100.0 - 1000 WERHE
Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
BEREER LA 1,000,00088 S EEAEM 1T 1000 - 1000 SEHERAEER
ZEBRR
Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown 1,000,000 ordinary shares of Whar{ & godown services
Company Limited HK$1 each
R EARERAEREH
{6) Petroleum and Related Products Distribution
REGE AR
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EHR (G ARAT M SRmERE I Ty SRR 100.0 - 1000 BREIER
China Resources Petrochems 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Irvestment holding
(Group) Company Limited
RiEHRLF 40,000,0008 SEEEANS T 100.0 - 1000 BDoEREBEEES
kil
Callany Limited 40,000,000 ordinary shares of Trangportation services and
HK$1 each trading of petroleum
ERERERAE 30,000,000 SREEEM 1T 100.0 - 1000 HERHER
2B
China Resources Petroleum 30,000,000 ordinary shares of Trading of petroleum
Company Limited HK$1 each products
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ERTEHARKREEE
ERESX

BEER®
Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued FREEL F28H7 HBLERE
HERASEBBAT ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby TERE
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
(F)BERRHEREAEAE
{6} Petroleum and Related Products Distribution (continued)
RESUARIL
Incorporated in Hong Kong (continued)
EHHLERD A 5,000,000k BREERS 1T 100.0 - 1000 B8
ZEinik
CRC Petrol Filling Station 5,000,000 ordinary shares of Petrol filing station
Company Limited HKS$1 each operation
EEREERLT 10,0008 B R EEAES 1T 100.0 - 1000  @EHLY
ZEER
Ting Key lnvestment 10,000 ordinary sharas of Petrol filling station
Limited HK$1 each operation
(t) #HEREHRMH
{7) Investments and Others
PREBERRI
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EREIEMBEBERRAF MEREEEN T, BAk 100.0 100.0 - HB
CRE Finance (Hong Kong) Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Financing
PHEISREREL
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
Purple Finance Limited REREEIE T, BB 300.0 100.0 - M
2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Financing
RERZLBRAERRI
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@# AHIT Investments Limited 2000 S RBEE 1 ET 2 TiBAR 10.0 - 100 HEBRARRGHYE
200 ordinary "A” shares of Investment in container
US$1 each terminal operations
in Hong Kong
@# AHutchison Ports Yantian 200 BRE 1 F T2 iRk 10.0 - 100 EFEAERAREER
Investments Limited 200 ordinary shares of BiE
US$1 each Investment in container
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B -
Notes:

r

@ il

[5

HERZS  2ERVAAMBREBELTNMESEREARTE  HERERIHAEORARNEEATAREHZHILAR
BB D E)EHE -

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length
and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materialty affect the results or
assets of the Group.

BREBEBEN  SORZEEERMERR MK AELE

Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incarporation,

FEPEAEERRZZ 2R ESSIRRE a2 EERE -

For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland with an English name, such name has been adopted by each company.

E - FEMUARMAAECSITRTHMAS FRAR T IRE - HPEBSEELER ZREAFIM  REEEFERNR
HEAFE L BEFAERETHREENER KL B¥228ET -

During the year, the Group acquired equity interests in certain brewery companies for an aggregate consideration of HK$653
millior of which HK$593 million was paid in 20086, As a result of the acquisitions, the Group's profit for the year and the net assets
at the year end have both been decreased by HK$22 million.

FAN NG|
A Associates

* BHEEXK
*  Equity Joint Venture
OSNERE

* Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
B ot = -1
**  Listed Joint Stock Company
# BATHLHREMELSZNERGHMITEEARES
# Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates
@ AIEAED - HERFEHAITEE 2R
@ Companies not audiied by Deloitie Touche Tehmatsu
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FTEYEHE

Schedule of Principal Propertie

R 200612 B31 H At 31 December 2006

S

*nm

PRl

il Group's
Location Interest

s i
(FAHK)
Floor
Area

(sq.m.)

Type
A&

Lease term

HOER

R{Ei iR

Properties held for investment

&
Hong Kong

HE AR O — B

HEARRT - T ERD 1 — 448 - B FE - 5B

BB iam @ A RS E e IME R SR
HEETE ARIE688R T B & #1655

Argyle Centre, Phase |

Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F,

1/F, 2/F, 3/F, 4/F and Flat Roof,

5/F and Part of External Walls and the Sign board of
Portion A of Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung Choi Street
South and Argyle Street and scavenging lane,

688 Nathan Road

65 Argyle Street

Mongkok

Kowloon

el =Ll

HEI 57 B E T

AD34-A041 « AD44 -~ A12B ~

A4201 - A4301 - Ad502 K A4B02TE 6T -
BHIEIBEEETS)

BB B OBRRIEERKARKICM 2 =/
HRERIELQE264 — 2985

Nan Fung Centre

Lorry parking space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units AQ34-A041, AD44, A128, A4201, Ad4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with
Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F
264-298 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

¥

T 9B - 10AE R — 2B
NFEKDEA L EREIR

Star House

Shop 9B, 10A on G/F & Shop B on 1/F
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
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AmEN

FHM (RBHH)

Friktats Floor
ud | Group’s Area Type Lease term
Location Interest {sq.m.) ik HibEm

F{ER R ()

Properties held for investment (continued)

510
Hong Kong (continued)

gadl

#T5—8% - 20A - 20BR20CREHAL -
BREAD (AADYEHADBARD)
1E3B 2R RAEBEATA
FADBABH419- 317 RIEH2— 8% 100% 8,982
Lok Sing Centre

Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
Entrance at Sugar Street {Entrance B}

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level

18-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

i
Long

O =

AR

R38R

B0 R 2B 1A

HEE13, 14, 15, 161 79REfL

NUEELR Y A B RIEI0H 100% 7,849 [V =3
Silvercord C/CP Long
Shop No. 38 on the G/F

Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F

Tower 1 and Car Park

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement

30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

REAM

NEERRVEEBE 1651 100% 13,900 T R
CAC Tower Medium
185 Hoi Bun Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon
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=nm

FRib#gas

fi s Group's
Location Interest

BEE R
(RFH¥)
Floor
Area

(sq.m.}

Type
Rig

Lease term

BOED

RS o
Properties held for investment {continued)

&
Hong Kong (continued)

PAREAAL

WF 791118 15E2082F (BEXE)

B ™1 — 23 B

NEFEPBRUHRENSH 100%
Chung Dah Godown Building

Ground fioor, 7/F, 9/F to 11/F,

15/F to 20/F {including Main Roof}

and car park Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor

115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

EHp L

IO E - 2B RIUEBEEE -

AMBANRE - 62 HEE

21-24RHBEH - T EBLM S -
BEA7IP1-P103 - L1-L7 * L9-L15 - L17-L43

MR EIBRAESSH 100%
Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Rocf Flat,
Unit 401 on 4/F, Godown on &/F,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces No. L8 on Lower G/F,
P1-P103, L1-L7, L9-L15, L17-L43,

88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories
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33,485

/%
I'CP
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ce

 HY
Medium
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R R

F.¥ L | (|HH)

FRiGHLs Floor
114 4 Group's Area Type Lease term
Location Interest {sq.m.) R AkhEm

REI R e

Properties held for investment {continued)

T
Hong Kong (continued}

HELRHBRET SROBTIER

HEEL30 - L40 - L45 - Ld6 - LA7RLABSR s

AELHESEE17H 100% 9,702 i/E ke
Yau Tong Industrial City I/CP Medium
Workshop on 7/F, 8/F and 9/F of Block B and

Lorry Parking Space

Nos. L3¢, L40, L45, L46, L47 and

L48 on Basement

17 Ko Fai Road

Yau Tong

Kowloon

HEMALT

WTE48

& 8 ST E B 488 — 4005k 100% 3,125
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

b3
Long

OB

ch g Ay i
Chinese Mainland

A
Medium

BRALPIT 2R B AR 100% 62,915
TP R 1965

O B

TP & @ A i E R AR — BR305 100% 43,566 )

Medium

O o

BEREEFRNT R AREFIREE 100% 16,212 Vg R HA
R oA RE BB R C/0 Medliurn

Figat [ [k E FE - oY= Re L) - MoE I: I
Note: C: Commercial R: Residential CP: Car Park o Office I: Industrial
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AFMBEREE

Five-Year Financial Summary

“BR-E “BRE=F “HRAF —2FEF ZJUR
BETEL HETETL HYAET EXGBT BEEORT
(E5)2 (@52 (&5)2
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

HKE million  HK$ milion  HK$ milion  HK$ million HK$ million

(Restated) ¢ (Restated}? (Restated) 2

HoRig Consolidated results
Bl Turnover 28,822 34,671 47,078 53,891 65,437
RFEELHET Profit attributable to
shareholders 1,378 1,429 1,480 2,220 2,776
BREXBH Basic earnings per share HK$0.67 HKS0.69 HK$0.70 HKS1.02 HK$1.19
HHRARS, Dividend per share
T Interim HK$0.09 HK$0.10 HK$0.11 HKS$0.13 HK$0.14
k5 Final HK$0.13 HK3$0.14 HK$0.16 HK$0.25 HK$0.26
HK$0.22 HK$0.24 HK$0.27 HK$0.38 HK$0.40
BT E Special interim HK$0.25 1 Note 1 - - HK$1.00
BEREBMR Consolidated balance sheet
BriE Fixed assets 13,420 14,820 19,215 21,436 23,040
B Goodwill 1,025 1,346 2,319 3,084 3,481
Efn@AE Other intangible assets 138 204 211 630 113
RHRE Long term investments 2,262 1,976 1,659 1,147 1,206
FHHA Prepayments 367 458 960 411 467
BRBREE Deferred taxation assets 90 149 167 140 123
ROHTEFE Net current assets 2,554 2,928 3,140 2,086 1,398
BERiER Employment of capital 19,856 21,873 27,671 28,934 29,828
B Share capital 2,080 2,080 2,123 2,233 2,358
= Reserves 10,432 10,910 13,002 15,963 16,783
R Shareholders' funds 12,512 13,000 15,125 18,196 19,141
PHREER Minority interests 3,290 3,859 4,811 4,747 5,824
REBAH Long term liabilities 3,151 4,184 6,797 5,040 3,840
BEDHAMR Deferred taxation liabilities 903 830 938 951 1,023
DERES Capital employed 19,856 21,873 27,671 28,934 29,828
B - Notes:

1. ZERZERPAREERE RS RRDE
RER—RBAKEZRAR LS 2R BRI
=

2. AEEG-FRNE-A-BEHAMEBIREE LR
THITROBHEEERALISEHE « MaTEE
EREBEES|IH —EE=F - —EFENFR=-T
FHFASTHREBTFH TR - Al - B dstii
HTHEEN_—_S¥=F+-A=+—10 . —2F0
¥+=-A=+-BR-S¥AF+A=T—HNEE
SAERHERRE-PF=F4+-_A=+-8 - =¥
FHFE+-_A=+—BHR-¥RLrE+=-A=+—8
I FENEESEH -

1.

The 2003 special interim dividend represented a special distribution in
specie of one share in China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for
every ten shares of the Company was distributed.

The Group has changed its accounting policy on jointly controlled entities
1o proportionate consolidation for the financial period commencing from
1 January 2006. The new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively and certain 2003, 2004 and 2005 comparative figuras
are restated accordingly. However, the change in accounting policy
would not have any impact on the consolidated net assets as at 31
December 2003, 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2005 and the
consolidated net profit for the year ended 31 December 2003, 2004
and 2005.
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BRREAFAEGRERE

Summary of Notice of Annual General Meeting

UTHEEARFEEFAFREZRREN - AMA%
EXHERERRTREEERA -

ZRAZERAFEIN —FE+ERAZT—HE
HNTF=R=15  RETLBFEBB265RER
RESOBRITRIBEASE - EREB FPIER -

L LF F

1. HEREBRE_BFRNF+_A=+-BL
FEOEEIMERERATREREBEE

="

2. EAHREKRHBE -

3. HREFEFRETHEESZHAS -

4. HIRGEEEREETAMTEMSE -

5 RTEBe-REEUBLDTBHEESRITRE

10%.2 {73

6. RTEFE-RKRBMUBTTBBSHARE
20% 2 BSMR D -

7. HENEEBRTHRGBBEEEENMRETR
BEFSEZIMEMBOZGEE - SEX
FHARFCHABTHEERTRMN G Z—
R -

Set out helow is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting,
the full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to
shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will

be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 31 May 2007 at 3:30 p.m. for the

following purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31
December 20086.

2.  To declare a final dividend.

3.  Tore-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

4,  To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6. Togrant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional shares
not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7.  To extend the general mandate under item 6 hereof by increasing

the number of shares permitted to be issued equivalent to the number
of shares repurchased under item 5 hereof.

A% A0 2 5 China Resources Enterprise, Limited « Annual Report 2006 £8 175




DEEH

£
R

EHagE
BRAA K

=) 8- g

EBER

5
Y29
Bk

FRTEB
B
)5

R
EREE
A E

BIFHRTHES
REHF
BRAE
FREF
BHRE
BER
wmmE

LEHE
FRE

23 L]
e - MRS ®EHEITT

ERHEA
BT

FERE 26 5

MR 3918

EBEF

B RIT (BB AR AT
BITET (B BERAT
LS RURITEBRAE

Corporate Information

Chairman
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Wang Qun

Lau Pak Shing
Kwong Man Him

Non-Executive Directors
Qiao Shibo

Yan Biao

Jiang Wei
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Xie Shengxi

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Chan Po Fun, Peter
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Auditors
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Announcement of annual resulis
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China Resources Enterprise, Limited

{Incorparated in Hong Kong with limited lability}
(Stock Code: 291)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Mecting of the Company will be held at 50th Floos, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 31 May 2007 at 3:30 p.m. for the follawing purposes:

bl ol ol o

To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 31 December 2006.
To deciare a final dividend.
To re-clect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.
To re-appoint Auditors and suthorise the Directors 1o fix their remuneration.
As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as sn ordinary resolution:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT:

(a} subject to paragraph (b} below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to repurchage shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) or on any other stock exchange
on which the securities of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this , sttbject to and in accordance wiih ail applicabie lawa and the
requirements of the Roles Governing the Listing of Securitics on the Stock Exchangg or of any other stock
exchange as amended from time to tinte, be and is hereby generally and onconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which the Directors of the Company arc authorised to
repurchage pursyant to the approval in paragraph (a) 2bove shall not excged 10% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this Resolution and the said approvai shall be limited
accordingly; and .

(¢c) for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period™ means the period from the passing of this Resolution until
whichever ig the carliest of: .

(i) the conclusion of the pext annua! general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next aonual general meeting of the Company is required by law
to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolutien of
the shareholders in general meeting of the Company.™ ’ ’

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following rezolution as an ordinary resolution:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION -

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (¢} below and pursuant to Section 57B of the Companics Ordinance, the exercise by the

. Dircctors af the Company duting the Relevant Périod (as hereinafter defined) of all the powens of the Campany to
allot, issue and deal with sdditional shares of HK$1.00 each in thie capital of the Company and to make or grant
offers, agreements and options {(including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercize of such power be 2ed is hereby gencrally and unconditionally approved;

{b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall scthorise the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, ngreements and options (including bonds, warraits and debentures
-convertible into shares of 1he Company) which would.or might require the exercise of such power after the cnd of
the Relevant Period;

(c) the apgregate nominal amouni of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to 2n option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above, otherwize. than (i) a Righis Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) an issie of shares under any
option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issuc of shares or rights to
acquirc shares of the Company; (iii) an issue of shares npon the exercise of the subscription or conversion rights
under the terms of any warranis or any securitics of the Company which ar¢ convertible into shares of the
Company; or (iv) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company from
time to time, shall zot exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capitai of the Company as
at the date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingty; and

(d) for the purpoze of this Resolution, ) _ ’

*Relevant Period™ means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of: -

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; )

(i)} the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law
to be held; and . . ’

(iii) the date on which the aulhoiity sct ont in this Resolution ia revoked or varicd by an ordinary resolution of
the sharcholders in general meeting of the Company; and .

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the Directors of the Company to the holders of

shares of the Company on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares as

&t that date (Subject to such exclusions or other armangements as the Directors of the Company may deem necessary

or expedient in relation (o fractiona) entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws

of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong

Kong applicable to the Company).”

As special business, 1o consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION )

“THAT subject to the passing of the resolution as proposed under items nos. 5 and 6 set out in the notice convening this

meeting, the general mandate granted t¢ the Direcrors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares

pursuaal 1o the resolution as proposed under item no. 6 set out in the nofice convening this meeting be and is hercby

. extended by the addition thercto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the

Hong
Notes;
[

2.

Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuaat to the resolution as propased under item
no. 5 set out in the notice convening this meeting, provided that such amount of shares so repurchased shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the said Resolution.”

By Order of the Boand
LEE Yip Wah, Peter
- Secreiary

Kong, 26 April 2007

Any member entitled o attend and vote st the meeting is entitted to appoint one oF More presics to sttend snd, on & poli, vote instesd of
him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of atiorney or other authority (if any) under which it is sizned. or a notarially
certified ronv theranf mMuel e Indosd with the ranfesaae PR T L
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2.

Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™ or on any other stock exchange
on which the securities of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable taws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock
exchange as amended from time to time, be and is hereby gencrally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which the Directors of the Company are authorised to
repurchase pursuant 1o the approval in paragraph (a) above shall not excged 10% of the aggrepate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and .

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution uatil
whichever is the carlicst of: )

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual genecal meeting of the Company;

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law
to be held; and

(iii} the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of
the sharcholders in general meeting of the Company.™

As special business, 1o consider and, if thoug fit, pass the fotlowing resolution as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT: ’

(a} subject to paragraph (c) below apd pursuamt to Section 578 of the Companies Ordinance, the exercise by the
Directars of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of 2ll the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares of HK$1.00 cach in the capital of the Company apd to make or grant
offers, agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph () above shall authorise the Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers, agrcements and options (including bonds, warrants and debentures
-convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require the exercise of such power after the end of
the Relevant Period;

{¢) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally 10 be allotted
{whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above, aotherwise than (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) an issue of shares under any
option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue of shares or rights to
acquire shares of the Company; (iii} 2n issue of shares upon the exercise of the subscription or conversion rights
under the terms of any warrants or any securities of the Company which are convertible into shares of the
Company; or {iv) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company from
time to time, shall not exceed 20% of the sggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(d)  for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period™ means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earljest of:

(i}  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;,

(i) the expiration of the period within which ihe next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law
1o be held; and ’ .

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of
the sharcholders in gencral meeting of the Compaay; and

“Rights [ssue” means an offer of shares open for & peried fixed by the Directors of the Company to the holders of

shares of the Company on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares as

at that date (subject to such exciusions or other arrangements as the Directors of the Compsny may deem necessary

of expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws

of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong

Kong applicable to the Company).”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolytion as an ordinary resalution:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the passing of the resclution as proposed under items nos. 3 and 6 set out in the notice convening this
mecting, the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares
pursuant to the resolution as proposed under item no. 6 set ot in the notice convening this meeting be and is hereby
extended by the addition thercto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the
Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to the resolution as proposed under item
no, 5 set out in the notice convening this meeting, provided that such amount of shares so repurchased shall not exceed
10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the said Resolution.”

By Qrder of the Board
LEE Yip Wah, Peter
- Secretary

Kong, 26 April 2007

Any member entitied to atiend and vote ! the meeling is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of
him. A proay need not be 3 member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy. together with any power of attorney or other avthority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially
certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the registered office of the Company at 39th Floor, China Resources Building. 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not Jess than 48 hours before the 1ime appointed for holding the meeting,

With regard to item no. 2 in this notice, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends a final dividend of HK$6.26 per ordinary
share payable on or about |5 June 2007. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Menday, 28 May 2007 to Thursday,

" 31 Muy 2007, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected, in order to gualify for the proposed fina

As at

divigdend, all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar, Standard
Registrars Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's Road Easi, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday.
25 May 2007.

With regard to item no. 3 in this notice, 1he Board of Directors of the Company proposes that eight retiring Directors, namely Mr. WANG
Qun, Mr. LAU Pak Shing, Mr. QIAC Shibo, Mr. YAN Biao, Mr, JIANG Wei, Dr. CHAN Po Fun, Peter, The Hon. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
end Mr. SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon who shall be cligible for re-eleciion, be re-clected as Directors of the Company. Details of these
Directors are set out in the appendix 11 to the circular o sharcholders dated 26 Aprit 2007. The Board of Directors of the Company
recommends to the sharcholders 1hat the Directors® fee for the year ending 31 December 2007 shall be detérmined at HK3$80,000 per
annum for each exccutive and non-executive Director and HK$160.000 per annum for each indcpendent now-executive Director, pro-rated,
where appropriate, and payable in December 2007.

the date of this announcement, the executive directors of the Company are Mr. Song Lin (Chairman), Mr. Chen Shulin

(Managing Director), Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph (Deputy Managing Director), Mr. Wang Qua (Deputv Managing Directar),
Mr. Lau Pak Shing (Deputy Managing Director} and Mr. Kwong Man Him (Deputy Managing Director). The non-executive
directors are Mr. Qiao Shibo, Mr, Yan Biao, Mr, Jiang Wei, Mr. Wang Shuaiting and Mr. Xie Shengxi. The independent
non-executive directars are Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter, Mr, Hogang Tai Ninh, Dr, {i Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Cheng Mo Chi, The

Hon.

Bernard Charnwnt Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon.
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Proxy form for use at the Annual General Meeting of CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED (the “Company”) to be held at,"
3:30 p.m. on Thursday, 31 May 2007 and at any adjournment thereof.

1/We (note 1)

of

being the registered holder(s) of shares (note 2) of
HK$1.00 each in the capital of the Company, hereby appoint the Chairman of the meeting or (nete 3)

of

or failing him

of

to act as my/our proxy at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 31 May 2007 at 3:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof and to vote on my /our behalf as indicated below
(note 4).

AT THE
DISCRETION
FOR AGAINST OF PROXY ABSTAIN
{note ¢) (note 4} (note 4) {note 4)

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended
31 December 2006.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. (a) To re-elect Mr. Wang Qun as Director,
(b)Y To re-elect Mr. Lau Pak Shing as Director.
(¢} To re-elect Mr. Qiao Shibo as Director.

{d) To re-¢lect Mr. Yan Biao as Director.

(e) To re-elect Mr. Jiang Wei as Director.
{(f} To re-elect Dir. Chan Po Fun, Peter as Director.

(g) To re-elect The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan as Director.

(h) To re-elect Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon as Director.

(i) To fix the fee for all Directors.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. Ordinary Resolution in Item No. 5 of the Notice of Annual
General Meeting. (To give a general mandate to the Directors
to repurchase shares of the Company)

6. Ordinary Resolution in Item No. 6 of the Notice of Annual
(General Meeting. (To give a general mandate to the Directors
to issue new shares of the Company)

7. Ordinary Resolution in Item No. 7 of the Notice of Annual
General Meeting. (To extend the general mandate to be given
to the Directors to issue shares)

Datedthis___  dayof___ . 2007 Shareholder’s signature: (note 5)
Notes:
1. Full name(s} and address({es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

2. Please insert the number of shares of HK$1.00 each registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed 1o relate to all
the shares in the Company registered in your name(s).

3. If any proxy other than the Chairman is preferred, strike out “the Chairman of the meeting or” and insert the name and address of the proxy desired in
the space provided. ANY ALTERATION MADE TO THIS PROXY FORM MUST BE INITIALLED BY THE PERSON WHO SIGNS IT.

4, [MPORTANT: IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR ANY RESOLUTION, TICK THE BOX MARKED “FOR” BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. IF
YOU WISH TO VOTE AGAINST ANY RESOLUTION, TICK THE BOX MARKED “AGAINST” BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. IF YOU
WISH TO ALLOW YOUR PROXY TO CAST HIS VOTES ON ANY RESOLUTION AT HIS DISCRETION, TICK THE BOX MARKED “AT THE
DISCRETION OF PROXY” BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION, IF YOU WISH TO ABSTAIN FROM VOTING ON ANY RESOLUTION, TICK
THE BOX MARKEI} “ABSTAIN" BESIDE THE APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION. Failure to complete any of the boxes for each item will entitle your proxy
to cast his votes on the relevant resotution at his discretion.

5. This proxy form must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or in the case of a corporation must be either under its common seal
or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

6. Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at any meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such
share as if he were selely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders be present at any meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said
persons so present whose name stands first on the register of members in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof,

7. To be valid, this proxy form, together with the power of alturner’ or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof,
must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at 39th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48
hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

8. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. The proxy
need not be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting in person to represent you.

9. Completion and deposit of the proxy form will not preclude you from attending and voting at the meeting if you so wish.



@ EHEIERRA A
China Resources Enterprise, Limited

(708 it 3 B S0 89 5 R4 A )
(B 7 fC 5% 291)

HESHARARAS U THRIFAF]) RSt FEAZ+-BEHETF IR IETZRABEAARACENA
MEEPAZ2AREARE

ANSEE (Bt
Ak 2%
£y o R B A o 4 B A {1009 70 AR 3 3% B (BfRE =) 2 BEREH A
BEERGEEN (=)
Hir ik 2%
BY 4 XL oK R K - AUEAT

e 4t £
REN/BHFZRBA RRUEFELAREZLFAAZT—HARMOTF IR T BEFESITFERE2CRENKR
SOMBITZMATAFRGRRIMAG WRIEA/ BERUTHRBE. (HEH)

B % ¢ HARRE -
(Bfatm) (B 3t M) (R 3z m) (B 3L 11 )

— | ERERFEBE_FEZAREFL _AZ+—BILEBRF
2 R 4R 5 BT 0 05 T o W
B REASRR

e

(1) MBERELRBND-

(2) ERPIEREELTL.
(3) WBGHELE BT
(4) WREREERITNE-
(5) MW MEE AT
(6) TEBHMEFHL AT
(7) HmEBETEEBABTES.

(8) MEWMALFeA4 Hhawar.

(9) MERARPZNE-

IZ]

S B AT AL $R AT 5 5 W .

B

FIRMAMFAGESRN LA A RESR (BRI
T Jap W 02 A A O 2 — B sk ) -

FIRERAFRAEEARAHZERBER BRART
B @ITALFRAGZ — RE ) -

>t
.

L] FIRBREEERTESNS-CAZIERBR (WA

WEBRITHRGZ —mE -

Hf: —FF-LF A A i@ K (B EET)

it &

- A EW LA B at e

= %éﬁ;%% MTERETERmMinETr BEEE MR HERSE- AR REEARVHBAREZHY MTERETZELA

= MEERAAEFUNSZALBKR SO IO ERR ] FHRBL WESHRENLE BTHREERARZEX LB -ZRRBERE
ZERER - SANBRAMERT-

M B BTHORRERS-FAME BEIATRARB AR AR L /8 MTHNHRERH -—HHER ﬂEﬁHR.ﬁZ
([EHIMAALT /18- MTHANRITEIREARBERNARAR BEORARER > TARRRE/AAAL/ 8- B
THREARMEARBA REFRNAARZ(RAIMAA LI/ JR-mEF—IAMEMERANERREEMER-H BTZRR
A EH TR RN

R SRVEEINBLFE MTH BMTZEATEREAZER-ABRNA-FRLOA-MRREERGEAMNELAOERER LA AT
AREXBEARFHEE

b MRS SRR ORI WEF—GEFALHTEHGRERICREA ARG ERER GRS N A — RS SR RN —
ﬁiﬁﬂﬂZﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬂ%iﬁmft&ﬂjﬁ&ﬂﬁ;& AR LB NTHBE ST AR T BT TR FA G-

= 1SR o0 A s R B A 2 MU 0O B4 R S 1 CHOAT ) BCAE oy 2 0 AT R WD 22 B B SR O o S8R T O 108D I - ) B T 4% 4 T it
PR P ARERANRALB R BREE . VAR

A AAHBMER LR SN BT HRE T AR A URULEE BRI R RIS - 2R RS DE LT ZRAH
ABEBLFE KGR BT
y R MTHZAXERREZEIRBENTHALTE RGN LESWAZRM-.




File No.82-4177
THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you
should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager,
solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold all your shares in China Resources Enterprise, Limited, you should at
once hand this circular and the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser or to the
bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale was effected for transmission to
the purchaser.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

EHEIEARAT]
China Resources Enterprise, Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 291)

PROPOSALS FOR GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES
AND
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The notice convening the annual general meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
to be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Thursday, 31 May 2007 at 3:30 p.m. is set out on pages 16 to 19 of this circular.
Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, you are requested to complete and
return the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the annual general meeting. Completion of the proxy form and its return will not
preclude you from attending and voting at the annual general meeting if you so wish.

Hong Kong, 26 April 2007



DEFINITIONS

In this document, the following expressions have the following meanings unless the context

requires otherwise:

“Annual General Meeting”

“Articles of Association”

“Companies Ordinance”

“Company”

“Directors”
MGroupH

“Hong Kong”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Repurchase Proposal”

’

“Repurchase Resolution’

“Securities and Futures
Ordinance”

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 31 May 2007
at 3:30 p.m., notice of which is set out on pages 16 to
19 of this circular

the articles of association of the Company

the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

China Resources Enterprise, Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
whose Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 291)

the directors of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

18 April 2007, being the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this document for ascertaining certain
information contained herein

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange

the proposal to give a general mandate to the Directors
to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase
Shares during the period as set out in the Repurchase
Resolution up to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of the
Repurchase Resolution

the ordinary resolution to be passed as referred to in
item no.5 of the notice of the Annual General Meeting

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)



DEFINITIONS

“Share(s)” share(s) of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the
Company
“Share Repurchase Rules” the relevant rules set out in the Listing Rules to

regulate the repurchase by companies with primary
listing of their securities on the Stock Exchange

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“Takeovers Code” the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Repurchases

“HK$” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong




LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

m FEHAIXFRAT

China Resources Enterprise, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with Himited liability)
{Stock Code: 291)

Directors: Registered Office:
Executive Directors: 39th Floor

SONG Lin (Chairman) China Resources Building
CHEN Shulin (Managing Director) 26 Harbour Road
KEUNG Chi Wang, Ralph (Deputy Managing Director) Wanchai

WANG Qun (Deputy Managing Director) Hong Kong

LAU Pak Shing (Deputy Managing Director)
KWONG Man Him (Deputy Managing Director)

Non-executive Directors:
QIAO Shibo

YAN Biao

HANG Wei

WANG Shuaiting

XIE Shengxi

Independent Non-executive Directors:
CHAN Po Fun, Peter

HOUANG Tai Ninh

LI Ka Cheung, Eric

CHENG Mo Chi

Bernard Charnwut CHAN

SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon

Company Secretary:
LEE Yip Wah, Peter

Hong Kong, 26 April 2007
To the shareholders,

Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSALS FOR GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES
AND
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2006, a general
mandate was given to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase
Shares. Such mandate will lapse at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. It is
therefore proposed to seek your approval of the Repurchase Resolution at the Annual

-3



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

General Meeting to give a fresh general mandate to the Directors to exercise the powers of
the Company to repurchase Shares. An explanatory statement as required under the Share
Repurchase Rules to provide the requisite information of the Repurchase Proposal is set
out in Appendix I to this circular.

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

It will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting two ordinary resolutions
respectively granting to the Directors a general mandate to allot, issue and deal with
Shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of the
resolution (i.e. not exceeding 473,823,224 Shares based on the issued share capital of the
Company of 2,369,116,120 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming that such
issued share capital remains the same at the date of passing the resolution) and adding to
such general mandate so granted to the Directors any Shares representing the aggregate
nominal amount of the Shares repurchased by the Company after the granting of the
general mandate to repurchase up to 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of the Repurchase Resolution.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the executive Directors of the Company are Mr.
SONG Lin, Mr. CHEN Shulin, Mr. KEUNG Chi Wang, Ralph, Mr. WANG Qun, Mr. LAU
Pak Shing and Mr. KWONG Man Him; the non-executive Directors of the Company are
Mr. QIAO Shibo, Mr. YAN Biao, Mr. JIANG Wei, Mr. WANG Shuaiting and Mr. XIE
Shengxi and the independent non-executive Directors of the Company are Dr. CHAN Po
Fun, Peter, Mr. HOUANG Tat Ninh, Dr. LI Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. CHENG Mo Chi, The
Hon. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon.

Pursuant to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, Mr. WANG Qun, Mr. LAU Pak
Shing, Mr. QIAO Shibo, Mr. YAN Biao, Mr. IANG Wei and Dr. CHAN Po Fun, Peter will
retire from office at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election. Pursuant to Article 115 of the Articles of Association, The Hon. Bernard
Charnwut CHAN and Mr. SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon will hold office only until the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting. Details of the retiring Directors proposed to be re-elected at the Annual
General Meeting are set out in Appendix II to this circular.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Set out on pages 16 to 19 of this circular is the notice convening the Annual General
Meeting.

At the Annual General Meeting, resolutions will be proposed to the shareholders in
respect of ordinary business to be considered at the Annual General Meeting, including
re-election of retiring Directors, and special business to be considered at the Annual General
Meeting, being the Ordinary Resolutions proposed to approve the Repurchase Proposal,
the general mandate for Directors to issue new Shares and the extension of the general
mandate to issue new Shares.
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ACTION TO BE TAKEN

A form of proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with this circular.
Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, you are requested to complete and
return the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the Annual General Meeting. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not prevent you from attending and voting at the meeting if you so wish.

RIGHT TO DEMAND A POLL

Pursuant to article 60 of the articles of association of the Company, at the Annual
General Meeting, resolutions put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of
hands, unless a poll is taken as may from time to time be required under the Listing Rules
and/or any other applicable laws and regulations or unless a poll is (before or on the
declaration of the result of the show of hands) demanded by:

(a) the chairman; or

(b) not less than five shareholders present in person or by proxy and having the
right to vote at the meeting; or

(c)  a shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy representing not
less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having the
right to vote at the meeting; or

(d) a shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy holding Shares
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid
up on all the Shares conferring that right.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors believe that the Repurchase ’roposal, the proposed general mandate
for Directors to issue new Shares, the proposed extension of the general mandate to issue
new Shares and the proposed re-election of retiring Directors are all in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors recommend that all shareholders
should vote in favour of such resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Yours faithfully,
SONG Lin
Chairman




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This appendix serves as an explanatory statement, as required by the Share
Repurchase Rules, to provide requisite information to you for your consideration of the
proposal to permit the repurchase of Shares up to a maximum of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the Repurchase Resolution.

This appendix also constitutes the memorandum as required under Section 49BA(3)(b)
of the Companies Ordinance.

1. SHARE CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company comprised
2,369,116,120 Shares.

Subject to the passing of the Repurchase Resolution and on the basis that no further
Shares will be issued or repurchased prior to the Annual General Meeting, the Company
would be allowed under the Repurchase Proposal to repurchase a maximum of 236,911,612
Shares representing not more than 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

2. REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the interest of the Company
and its shareholders. Such repurchase may, depending on market conditions and funding
arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net assets and/or earnings per
Share of the Company and will only be made when the Directors believe that such a
repurchase will benefit the Company and its shareholders.

3. FUNDING OF REPURCHASE

In repurchasing Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for
such purpose in accordance with its memorandum and articles of association and the
Companies Ordinance. The Companies Ordinance provides that the amount of capital
repaid in connection with a share repurchase may only be paid from the distributable
profits of the Company and/or the proceeds of a new issue of Shares made for the purpose
of the repurchase to such an extent allowable under the Companies Ordinance.

There might be an adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the
Company as compared with the position disclosed in the audited accounts contained in
the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2006 in the event that the power to
repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal was to be carried out in full at
any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors do not propose
to exercise the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Proposal to such
extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working
capital requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the
Directors are from time to time appropriate for the Company.
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4. SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange
during each of the previous twelve months before, and the period from 1 April 2007 to,
the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:

Shares

Highest Lowest

HK$ HKS$

April 2006 17.75 15.40
May 2006 18.00 14.90
June 2006 16.10 13.40
July 2006 17.60 15.05
August 2006 17.84 16.52
September 2006 17.98 16.00
QOctober 2006 18.28 16.18
November 2006 21.50 17.96
December 2006 23.80 19.68
January 2007 25.30 22.00
February 2007 25.25 20.65
March 2007 26.10 19.40
April 2007 (up to the Latest Practicable Date) 30.15 25.30

5. UNDERTAKING

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may
be applicable, they will exercise the powers of the Company to make repurchases pursuant
to the Repurchase Resolution and in accordance with the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of Hong Kong.

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable
enquiries, their associates, have any present intention to sell any Shares to the Company
or its subsidiaries under the Repurchase Proposal if such is approved by the shareholders
of the Company.

No connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) have notified the Company
that they have a present intention to sell Shares to the Company or its subsidiaries, or
have undertaken not to do so, in the event that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by
the shareholders of the Company.
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6. TAKEQVERS CODE

If on the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase
Proposal, a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company
increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of Rule 32 of the
Takeovers Code. As a result, a shareholder or group of shareholders acting in concert,
could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to make a
mandatory offer in accordance with Rules 26 and 32 of the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, China Resources National Corporation, the ultimate
holding company of the Company, is interested in 1,232,764,380 Shares (representing
approximately 52.03% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date). In the event that the Directors exercise in full the power to repurchase
Shares under the Repurchase Proposal, then (if the present shareholdings remains the
same) the attributable interest of China Resources National Corporation would be increased
to approximately 57.82% of the issued share capital of the Company.

The Directors are not aware of any consequences which may arise under the
Takeovers Code as a result of any repurchases made under the Repurchase Proposal. In
the event that the Repurchase Proposal is exercised in full, the number of Shares held by
the public would not fall below 25%.

7. SHARES REPURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company had not repurchased any Shares {(whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise) in the six months preceding the Latest Practicable Date.




APPENDIX 11 DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

The following are the particulars of the eight Directors proposed to be re-elected at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 31 May 2007:

Mr. WANG Qun

Mr. WANG Qun, Deputy Managing Director, aged 50, has been an executive
Director of the Group since January 2000 and was appointed Deputy Managing
Director in March 2006. He is a director of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and China Resources National Corporation. The former is the immediate
holding company of the Company and the latter is the ultimate holding company of
the Company. He is also an executive director of China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited and is responsible for the entire operation of the Group’s brewery business.
Mr. WANG has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the People’s University of China.
He has previously worked in the China National Economic Committee and held key
management position in a Shenzhen based conglomerate. Mr. WANG joined the
Group in 1994. Save as disclosed above, Mr. WANG did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company
or other members of the Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. WANG is and was not
connected with any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. WANG has no fixed term of service with the Company. He will be, subject
to rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings
pursuant to the Articles of Association. Mr. WANG is entitled to a monthly
remuneration of HK$102,600, an extra month’s pay as fixed bonus, a discretionary
bonus as approved by the compensation committee of the Board from time to time
with reference to his duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the current market situation and is entitled to the Directors’ fee as
determined by shareholders at its annual general meeting. At the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 2 June 2006, it was approved that the Directors’ fee for the
year ended 31 December 2006 be determined at HK$50,000 per annum. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, Mr. WANG has personal interest in 360,000 Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. WANG has confirmed that there are no other
matters relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. LAU Pak Shing

Mr. LAU Pak Shing, Deputy Managing Director, aged 57, has been an executive
Director of the Group since 1997 and was appointed Deputy Managing Director in
March 2006. He graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly known
as Hong Kong Baptist College) and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
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Accountants. Mr. LAU represented the Executive Committee of Hong Kong Cold
Storage Merchants Association Limited as Chairman for many years. Mr. LAU has
around 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting, corporate finance, property,
godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently in charge of the Group’s
Hong Kong property division and logistics business. Mr. LAU joined the Group in
January 1994. Save as disclosed above, Mr. LAU did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company
or other members of the Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. LAU is and was not
connected with any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. LAU has no fixed term of service with the Company. He will be subject to
rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings
pursuant to the Articles of Association. Mr. LAU is entitled to a monthly remuneration
of HK%$230,000, an extra month’s pay as fixed bonus, a discretionary bonus as
approved by the compensation committee of the Board from time to time with
reference to his duties and responsibility with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the current market situation and is entitled to the Directors’ fee as
determined by shareholders at its annual general meeting. At the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 2 June 2006, it was approved that the Directors’ fee for the
year ended 31 December 2006 be determined at HK$50,000 per annum. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, Mr. LAU has personal interest in 600,000 Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. LAU has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders
and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. QIAQO Shibo

Mr. QIAO Shibo, Non-executive Director, aged 52, was appointed executive
Director of the Group in July 2001 and had been a Deputy Managing Director since
November 2001 until his re-designation as a non-executive Director in March 2006.
He is also the director and Vice President of China Resources (Heldings) Company
Limited and China Resources National Corporation. The former is the immediate
holding company of the Company and the latter is the ultimate holding company of
the Company. Mr. Qiao is currently the Chairman of a fellow subsidiary of the
Company, China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, the listing of its shares on
the Stock Exchange was withdrawn on 26 July 2006. At present, he is responsible for
the operational management and strategic restructuring of China Worldbest Group
Co. Ltd. Mr. QIAO holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese language from Jilin
University, China. Save as disclosed above, Mr. QIAO did not hold any directorship
in other listed public companies in the last three years or any position with the
Company or other members of the Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. QIAQ is and
was not connected with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. QIAQ has no fixed term of service with the Company. He will be subject
to rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings
pursuant to the Articles of Association. As a Non-executive Director, Mr. QIAO is
entitled to the Directors’ fee as determined by shareholders at its annual general
meeting. At the Company’s annual general meeting held on 2 June 2006, it was
approved that the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December 2006 be determined
at HK$50,000 per annum. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. QIAO has personal
interest in 1,400,000 Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. QIAO has confirmed that there are no other
matters relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. YAN Biao

Mr. YAN Biao, Non-executive Director, aged 45, was appointed executive
Director of the Group in 1994 and was a Deputy Managing Director before his re-
designation as a non-executive Director in March 2006. Mr. YAN is also a director of
China Resources {Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. The former is the immediate holding company of the Company and
the latter is the ultimate holding company of the Company. He is the Director of
Legal Affairs of the China Resources Group and also a non-executive Director of a
fellow subsidiary of the Company, China Resources Land Limited whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. YAN is currently responsible for the operational
management and strategic restructuring of China Worldbest Group Co., Ltd. He has
a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking University, China and an MBA degree
from the University of San Francisco, USA. Save as disclosed above, Mr. YAN did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years or
any position with the Company or other members of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. YAN is and was not connected with any directors, senior management or
substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. YAN has no fixed term of service and is subject to rotational retirement at
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association. As a Non-executive Director, Mr. YAN is entitied to the Directors’ fee
as determined by shareholders at its annual general meeting. At the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 2 June 2006, it was approved that the Directors’ fee
for the year ended 31 December 2006 be determined at HK$50,000 per annum. As at
the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. YAN has personal interest in 1,000,000 Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. YAN has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders
and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Mr. JIANG Wei

Mr, JIANG Wei, Non-executive Director, aged 44, has been a Director of the
Group since 1995. He is currently the director and Chief Financial Officer of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation.
The former is the immediate holding company of the Company and the latter is the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Mr. JIANG is also a non-executive
director of fellow subsidiaries of the Company, China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited and China Resources Logic
Limited, a non-executive director of China Assets (Holdings) Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Greentown China Holdings Limited. The
shares of the above five companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. JIANG is
also a non-executive director of a feilow subsidiary of the Company, China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited, the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange was
withdrawn on 26 July 2006. Mr. JIANG is also a director of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
which is a listed company in China. Mr. JIANG obtained both his Bachelor’s degree
in International Trade and Master’s degree in International Business and Finance
from the University of International Business and Economics in Beijing, China. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. IANG did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years or any position with the Company or other members
of the Group. Save as disclosed above, Mr. JIANG is and was not connected with
any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. JIANG has no fixed term of service and is subject to rotational retirement
at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association. As a Non-executive Director, Mr. JIANG is entitled to the Directors’ fee
as determined by shareholders at its annual general meeting. At the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 2 June 2006, it was approved that the Directors’ fee
for the year ended 31 December 2006 be determined at HK$50,000 per annum. As at
the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. JIANG has personal interest in 240,000 Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. IANG has confirmed that there are no other
matters relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Dr. CHAN Po Fun, Peter

Dr. CHAN Po Fun, Peter (BBS, MBE, JP, FCPA (Aust.}), Independent Non-
executive Director, aged 85, has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced
accountancy in Hong Kong for 59 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum
Technology and Modern Chinese Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for
Underwater Technology. Dr. CHAN is a trustee of the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University (also as its Research Professor) and the United College of Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of The Kowloon Stock Exchange, a
founding director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and has served three
terms as the Chairman of the former Hong Kong Federation of Stock Exchanges.
Save as disclosed above, Dr. CHAN did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company or other
members of the Group. Dr. CHAN is and was not connected with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Dr. CHAN has no fixed term of service with the Company and is subject to
rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings
pursuant to the Articles of Association. The Director’s fee payable to Dr. CHAN as
independent non-executive Director is determined by shareholders of the Company
in annual general meeting. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2
June 2006, it was approved that the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December
2006 be determined at HK$140,000 per annum. Dr. CHAN did not receive other
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2006. As at the Latest Practicable Date,
Dr. CHAN has personal interests in 336,000 Shares and share options to subscribe
for 200,000 Shares and is deemed to have corporate interest in 170,000 Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. CHAN has confirmed that there are no other
matters relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Hon. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

The Hon. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (GBS, JP), Independent Non-executive
Director, aged 42, was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 30 November 2006. He is the executive director and President of Asia
Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance Company Limited. He also acts as
an advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart
from the roles in the business community, Mr. CHAN also serves as a member of
the Legislative Council representing the insurance industry and a non-official member
of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition, Mr. CHAN holds
directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage Holdings Limited,
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited. Mr. CHAN
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has been a director of Asia Financial (Assets Management) Limited (AFAM) since
November 1992. On 2 April 2002, the Takeovers and Mergers Panel of the Securities
and Futures Commission found that AFAM had breached rule 26.1 of the Takeovers
Code and it was publicly reprimanded for the breach. AFAM is now under voluntary
liquidation. Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHAN did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company
or other members of the Group. Mr. CHAN is and was not connected with any
directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. CHAN has no fixed term of service with the Company and is subject to
rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings
pursuant to the Articles of Association. The Director’s fee payable to Mr. CHAN as
independent non-executive Director is determined by shareholders of the Company
in annual general meeting. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2
June 2006, it was approved that the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December
2006 be determined at HK$140,000 per annum. Such fee was paid to Mr. Chan on a
pro-rata basis based on time of service with the Company in 2006. Mr. CHAN did
not receive other emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2006. As at the Latest
Practicable Date, Mr. CHAN does not have any interest in the Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. CHAN has confirmed that there are no other
matters relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon

Mr. SIU Kwing Chue, Gordon (GBS, CBE, JP), Independent Non-executive
Director, aged 61, was appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 30 November 2006. Mr. SIU had been a government official for over 36
years before his retirement from the civil service in 2002. Mr. SIU rose to the rank of
Secretary, Government Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high-ranking
government positions, namely the Secretary for Economic Services, Secretary for
Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and eventually retired from his last posting
as Secretary for Planning, Environment & Lands. Mr. SIU now serves an independent
non-executive Director of a listed company in Hong Kong, Transport International
Holdings Limited and two of its subsidiaries, as well as ICEA Finance Holdings
Limited. Save as disclosed above, Mr. SIU did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years or any position with the Company or
other members of the Group. Mr. S1U is and was not connected with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.
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APPENDIX 11 DETAILS OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

Mr. SIU has no fixed term of service with the Company and is subject to
rotational retirement and re-election requirements at annual general meetings
pursuant to the Articles of Association. The Director’s fee payable to Mr. SIU as
independent non-executive Director is determined by shareholders of the Company
in annual general meeting. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2
June 2006, it was approved that the Directors’ fee for the year ended 31 December
2006 be determined at HK$140,000 per annum. Such fee was paid to Mr. SIU on a
pro-rata basis based on time of service with the Company in 2006. Mr. SIU did not
receive other emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2006. As at the Latest
Practicable Date, Mr. SIU does not have any interest in the Shares within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. SIU has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his re-election that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders
and there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to rule
13.51(2} of the Listing Rules.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

M FHLIRERAA

China Resources Enterprise, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 291)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of the Company wili
be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on Thursday, 31 May 2007 at 3:30 p.m. for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the Reports of
the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2006.

To declare a final dividend.

To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

"THAT:

(a)

(b)

subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined} of all the
powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$1.00 each in the
capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock exchange on which the
securities of the Company may be listed and recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended from time to
time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which the
Directors of the Company are authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and
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(c)

for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period
from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; and

(ili) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked
or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT:

(a)

(b)

(c)

subject to paragraph (c) below and pursuant to Section 57B of the
Companies Ordinance, the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of HK%1.00
each in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and debentures
convertible into shares of the Company) which would or might require
the exercise of such power be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the Directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) to make
or grant offers, agreements and options (including bonds, warrants and
debentures convertible into shares of the Company) which would or
might require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant
Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an
option or otherwise) and issued by the Directors of the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) an issue of shares under any
option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company;
(iii) an issue of shares upon the exercise of the subscription or conversion
rights under the terms of any warrants or any securities of the Company
which are convertible into shares of the Company; or (iv) an issue of
shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
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Company from time to time, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of passing this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

(d) for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by law to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked
or varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting of the Company; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the
Directors of the Company to the holders of shares of the Company on
the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings
of such shares as at that date (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory
outside Hong Kong applicable to the Company).”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution
as an ordinary resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the passing of the resolution as proposed under items nos. 5
and 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting, the general mandate granted
to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares
pursuant to the resolution as proposed under item no. 6 set out in the notice
convening this meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of
an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital
of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority granted
pursuant to the resolution as proposed under item no. 5 set out in the notice
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convening this meeting, provided that such amount of shares so repurchased
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the said Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
LEE Yip Wah, Peter
Secretary

Hong Kong, 26 April 2007

Notes:

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to
attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or other autherity (if any) under
which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the registered office of the
Company at 39th Floer, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

With regard to item no. 2 in this notice, the Board of Directors of the Company recommends a final
dividend of HK$0.26 per ordinary share payable on or about 15 June 2007. The register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 28 May 2007 to Thursday, 31 May 2007, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company’s Registrar, Standard Registrars Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 25 May 2007.

With regard to item no. 3 in this notice, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes that eight
retiring Directors, namely Mr. WANG Qun, Mr. LAU Pak Shing, Mr. QIAO Shibo, Mr. YAN Biao, Mr.
JIANG Wei, Dr. CHAN Po Fun, Peter, The Hon. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. 51U Kwing Chue,
Gordon who shall be eligible for re-election, be re-elected as Directors of the Company. Details of these
Directors are set out in the appendix II to the circular to shareholders dated 26 April 2007. The Board of
Directors of the Company recommends to the shareholders that the Directors’ fee for the year ending 31
December 2007 shall be determined at HK$80,000 per annum for each executive and non-executive
Director and HK$160,000 per annum for each independent nen-executive Director, pro-rated, where
appropriate, and payable in December 2007. ’
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